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Co m pan y profil e

The ALNO Group is the second largest manufacturer of fitted kitchens in Germany and the fifth largest
in Europe. In addition to its headquarters in Pfullendorf (Baden-Württemberg), the company operates
production facilities at its locations in Brilon (North Rhine-Westphalia), Coswig (Sachsen-Anhalt) and
Enger (North Rhine-Westphalia), as well as in Dubai in the United Arab Emirates. The ALNO Group
has subsidiaries in the United Kingdom, France, Switzerland and the USA. The company employs
1,900 men and women worldwide.
The traditional ALNO company developed from a carpentry shop named "Selbständige Schreinerei
Albert Nothdurft" and celebrated its 85th anniversary in 2012. From its small beginnings in Wangen
in 1927, the company grew to become an international kitchen furniture corporation with global
activities. Since 1960, the company has concentrated on the development, production and sale
of kitchen furniture, as well as on the sale of electrical appliances and accessories. ALNO began
its European and later worldwide expansion in 1969. Today, the company has around 6,000 trade
partners in 64 countries. Foreign sales currently account for around 28 % of total sales.

2012 Annual Report

ALNO sells kitchens in all price ranges based on its internationally recognized and diversified brand
structure. Quality, design and innovation are just as important as excellent value for money and high
customer benefit. The kitchens are marketed through trade partners representing RTA and self-service
markets, furniture stores, kitchen specialists and property development companies. ALNO enjoys a
very high level of brand recognition and sympathy due to its long tradition.
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O N E T H I N G ' S F O R S U R E: A L N O

Since 1927, ALNO kitchens have been synonymous with quality,
useful innovations and award-winning design made in Germany
– fundamental values with which the brand very soon won
international acclaim. Today, ALNO is one of the world's leading
manufacturers of kitchen furniture.
Whatever our customers may plan for their home: one decision
is clear from the start. With an exclusive kitchen from ALNO, they
can be confident they have made the right choice even before the
first brick has been laid.
That feeling is also reflected in the brand's new claim. It answers
the question about the right kitchen, ends the search for the right
quality and expresses a thought that every proud owner of an
ALNO kitchen knows only too well:
ALNO. Now that's a kitchen.
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HISTORY

1990
Introduction of the multi-brand
strategy. Impuls Küchen GmbH

H ISTO RY

is founded in Brilon (North RhineWestphalia).

1927
1927
Albert Nothdurft founds a
carpenter's shop under the name
"Selbstständige Schreinerei
Albert Nothdurft" in Wangen
near Göppingen.

1992
ALNO Austria is founded.

1956

1994

Albert Nothdurft moves to

The multi-brand strategy is

Pfullendorf in Baden and risks

extended. Introduction of the

the transition from a trade and

PINO brand and foundation of the

manufacturing firm to an industrial

company Pino Küchen GmbH in

enterprise.

Coswig (Sachsen-Anhalt).

1934

1957

1960

1995

These modest beginnings

In spring, the newly founded

The first fitted kitchens are

ALNO goes public

flourished into a classical

company in Pfullendorf begins

produced by ALNO. The company

(general standard):

family-run company.

to produce small kitchen

grows strongly in the space of ten

ALNO Möbelwerke

furniture units.

years. Sales rise from EUR 2.5
million to EUR 35.2 million, the
workforce grows from 95 to 677

GmbH & Co. KG
becomes ALNO AG.

employees.
1958
The former carpenter's shop
becomes ALNO Möbelwerke
GmbH & Co. KG. The company's name ALNO is derived
from the name of its founder
Albert Nothdurft.

1969-1984
The company expands to other
European countries. Subsidiaries
are set up in:
France (1969), Belgium (1970),
Italy (1972), Switzerland (1974),
United Kingdom (1980) and the
Netherlands (1984).
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2003

2011

Merger with the Casawell Service
Group (Wellmann, Geba, Wellpac).
Focus on the core business;
non-kitchen interests are sold off.

Introduction of a new product
communication
design
award

range for WELLMANN based on
the new 13 centimetre grid size.

2010

Further extension of the multi-

New jobs are created with the

brand strategy with the takeover

establishment of a production line

of Gustav Wellmann GmbH &

for glass and ceramic fronts in

Co. KG.

Pfullendorf.

2012
2005

2010

2012

ALNO Middle East FZCO is set up

The subsidiaries in Austria, Bel-

ALNO AG celebrates its 85th

and a production facility opened in

gium, Spain, the Netherlands and

anniversary.

Dubai (UAE).

Italy are transformed into purely
marketing organizations.

ALNO sets up a subsidiary in the
US and opens a kitchen studio in

The "ALNOSTAR SATINA" kitchen

New York.

wins the coveted reddot design
award, as well as the iF product

For its traditional brand, the

design award together with the

company launches a new brand

innovation "Edition Fly".

and product campaign entitled
"One thing's for sure: ALNO".
The ALNO Group successfully
concludes a cash capital increase
yielding total gross revenues of
EUR 46.2 million and manages to
turn around.
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS |

LETTER FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

L E T T E R F RO M T H E C H I EF
E X ECU T I V E O F F I C ER

Let us look back together on a pleasing year 2012. ALNO AG has managed to turn around and is
once again operating at a profit and investing in sustainable growth. At the end of a long and difficult path, it gives me particular pleasure to share the past year's successes with you today: the
successful capital increase, the expansion of our foreign business and above all the commitment
of our employees have returned ALNO to a sound footing on which we can now continue to grow.
We have mastered the challenges together and the results for this past financial year show that we
pushed all the right buttons.
This is particularly evident in the significantly better earnings quality. In the financial year just ended,
EBITDA before reorganization improved dramatically by EUR 36.0 million to EUR 16.9 million (previous
year: EUR –19.1 million) and clearly outstripped our own prognosis.
The same positive trend was also observed in EBIT, the operating result rising to EUR 0.9 million
(previous year: EUR –10.7 million). In fact, after adjustment for once-only effects, such as reorganization costs and restructuring contributions, the operating result improved significantly, from EUR
–35.0 million in 2011 to EUR 3.8 million in 2012, a rise of EUR 38.8 million.
The ALNO Group generated sales revenue totalling EUR 446.3 million in 2012 (previous year:
EUR 452.8 million). Although this means a minor drop of 1.4%, this was an anticipated consequence
of our new sales strategy. Domestic sales dropped 2.4% to EUR 318.5 million while foreign sales
rose 1.1% to EUR 127.8 million.
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MAX MÜLLER
Chief Executive Officer
of ALNO AG

Important steps were taken in recent months and laid the basis for this result. We have successfully
solved problems in production and given the company a new strategic orientation. The inappropriate price policy launched in 2010 has in the meantime been replaced by a new strategy according to which we have consistently avoided sales with a negative contribution margin. Business in
other countries is also developing satisfactorily. The previous year's downward trend in sales has
been halted. We have regained the confidence of many uncertain customers and are once again
generating growth.
After a number of turbulent years, we now find ourselves in a promising position and can look to
the future with optimism. The foundations for this were laid in the financial year just ended. Despite
the many challenges and necessary cutbacks, we did not relinquish important investments for the
future and continued to invest in all locations.
In Pfullendorf (ALNO), for instance, the company invested in a new production line for glass fronts
in 2011, leading to a decisive improvement in manufacturing competence. Fronts finished with a
glass or ceramic surface are produced on this new line. This special know-how and flexibility in
production make it easier for us to meet customers' individual wishes more effectively.
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LETTER FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

"I M PO RTA N T ST EPS H AV E BEEN
TA K E N I N R EC E N T M O N T H S A N D L A I D
T H E BASIS FO R T H IS R ESU LT."

In the financial year just ended, a modern water-based painting system was installed in Pfullendorf.
As a result, ALNO will be able to supply individual units in all non-high-gloss RAL colours in future.
In addition, the Pfullendorf location now also includes a new paintshop in which high-gloss parts
can be produced directly in the factory. This investment has reduced the delivery time for parts and
kitchens by a full week.
In Enger, WELLMANN now packages carcase parts in cardboard instead of plastic sheeting and
purchased a number of new packaging machines for this purpose in 2012. The packaging on the
various production lines in the Enger factory is now of the same standard as that of the ALNO
Group's other brands.
We have also invested in our locations in Brilon (Impuls) and Coswig (Pino) in 2012. In Brilon, first
steps were taken to optimize the assembly line for customized units by installing a new machine
for drilling and setting hardware. In Coswig, we have further optimized the production process and
modernized both the machines and the plant. A further sum of EUR 350,000 was invested here in
a high-performance saw for cutting worktops.
The company's positive economic development is closely related to the capitalization and financial concept adopted in 2012. As a result of this bundle of measures comprising a capital reduction with subsequent guaranteed cash capital increase of EUR 46.2 million, the company is now
virtually debt-free.
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This has also made ALNO more attractive to new investors. In this context, we explicitly welcome
the commitment of Whirlpool Germany GmbH, which strengthened its position as a major anchor
investor in ALNO by taking over all unsubscribed or unplaced shares at the full subscription price.
In this way, ALNO AG was able to strengthen its equity position, win the confidence of old and
new shareholders and at the same time create the leeway needed for future growth. Overall,
these measures have successfully stabilized the company and created a sound financial basis
on which ALNO can grow sustainably.
Exports are a central pillar of our growth strategy and will be consistently boosted, with further
scope for action, so that we can respond to market potentials in other countries more directly in
future. Our long-term goal is to boost our exports to 40% of total sales. Following our recent success in export business, ALNO is primarily relying on growth in defined core markets, namely the
USA, China, the United Kingdom, Switzerland and France.
Experts expect the market volume for kitchen furniture to increase to USD 12.6 billion by 2016 as
the US construction sector recovers. This would be equivalent to 51.8% growth over 2011. In line
with this prognosis, ALNO AG stepped up its presence in the world's largest kitchen market and
opened a new showroom in Miami, Florida, in May 2013. We have already been successfully represented by our own subsidiary and our own kitchen studio in New York since January 2012.
ALNO AG is also stepping up its export activities in the Chinese market. In early November 2012,
we signed a joint venture agreement for the Chinese market. The partners are ALNO China Holding Ltd. based in Hong Kong and Wonder Treasure Holdings Ltd.The aim of the joint venture is to
enlarge the existing network of dealers in this important growth market quickly and efficiently, and
to step up the contract business. Above all, we have won an established partner with an excellent
network in the Chinese market. This partnership is already bearing fruit: in late October, ALNO won
out against several German manufacturers of kitchen furniture and delivered more than 500 kitchens
for the Jin Mao Palace project in Beijing, one of the most exclusive housing construction projects
in the Chinese capital.
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LETTER FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

" W E W I L L F U RT H E R ST R E N GT H EN OU R POSI T I O N
AS I N N OVAT I O N L E A D E R."

Although a great deal has been achieved, we naturally cannot rest on our laurels. Our production capacities must be utilized even more efficiently. We expect distinctly higher sales revenue in 2013 and
are optimistic that ALNO's earnings quality will likewise continue to improve. To this end, we expect a positive market environment, particularly in the upper price segment, strong growth abroad
as a result of opening up new markets, and an expansion of our present activities abroad. Taking
over smaller competitors is also a conceivable scenario for filling our capacities and simultaneously
rounding off and supplementing our existing portfolio.
As in every year, we will focus particularly on the ALNO Group's comprehensive and award-winning
product portfolio. Our new brand and product campaign "One thing's for sure: ALNO" emphasizes
ALNO's strengths in respect of quality and innovation, while underscoring the traditional ALNO
brand's "lighthouse function" in the kitchen furniture market. Continual and successful further
development of products meeting customers' needs will also strengthen our position as innovation
leader. ALNO's innovative concept of a moving kitchen marks a step towards an exciting future
market. The Tielsa brand will in future feature a dynamic, flexible kitchen concept which, for the first
time, will be geared entirely to the individual needs and circumstances of its users, both ergonomically and technologically.
Following the successful implementation of our capitalization and financial concept, ALNO will
consistently continue the established course and is planning a bond issue with a volume of up to
EUR 45 million in this context. The proceeds will be used to finance our growth strategy, particularly
abroad. In addition, the bond will also have a positive impact on the ALNO Group's entire capital
structure and thus represents another major milestone towards our intended long-term stability.
The exceedingly positive economic development is also due to our strong and sustainable corporate
culture. In the financial year 2011, the ALNO Group set out to develop a new corporate mission statement actively incorporating our employees. Attention focused above all on emphasizing the value of
our employees when drawing up the new mission statement. They are the third pillar on which the
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success of our company is based, along with its tradition and experience. The Board of Management
adopted the new mission statement for the ALNO Group and began to implement it in the financial
year just ended. Together with the company's turnaround, this step will also help to assure the sustainability of our success.
The results of a recently published, nationwide study into "Best employers" by the news magazine FOCUS in cooperation with the career network XING confirm that we are on the right track:
ALNO is the undisputed No. 1 among manufacturers of kitchen furniture and also ranks among the
TOP 15 in the larger sector of "consumer goods". This distinction is most gratifying, reflecting as it
does the solidarity and high commitment of ALNO's employees.
ALNO is back on the road to success and that is due, first and foremost, to the efforts of our
employees. They have shown great persistence in the difficult years behind us. We were only able
to achieve the turnaround with their motivation, cooperation and readiness to accept cutbacks. Our
employees' efforts are consequently bearing fruit and we are therefore particularly pleased to report
that the reorganization has now also been completed in the personnel sector. In the coming months
and years, the Board of Management and the executive management will do everything possible to
ensure a positive trend and thus repay the employees some of the things they relinquished.
May we also express a warm thank you to the members of the works council, our shareholders and
customers for their confidence in 2012.
ALNO is on the way to regaining its former strength and we look forward to what will hopefully be
an even more successful financial year together with you in 2013.

MAX MÜLLER
Chief Executive Officer of ALNO AG
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BOA R D O F M A N AG EM EN T

RALPH BESTGEN, IPEK DEMIRTAS, ELMAR DUFFNER, MAX MÜLLER (from left to right)
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MAX MÜLLER

IPEK DEMIRTAS

Chief Executive Officer
since 6 April 2011

Chief Financial Officer
since 13 July 2011

Max Müller was formerly sales and marketing manager of a
company in the clockmaking industry, as well as managing
director of a medium-sized company group specializing in
business with Eastern Europe and the USSR. As founder
of various enterprises and member of several corporations in a whole variety of sectors, Max Müller can draw
on considerable business experience. In addition to his
position as Chief Executive Officer of ALNO AG, he has
been chairman of the supervisory board of two Swiss
investment companies, Comco Holding AG and Starlet
Investment AG, since 1993. Before then, Max Müller was
CEO of the Comco Group and Chairman of the Board of
Adler Bekleidungswerke AG & Co. KG. Both companies
belonged to ASKO/Metro AG. Within the space of two
years, he restored the ailing Adler Bekleidungswerke AG &
Co. KG and made it one of the most profitable mainstays
of the ASKO Group.

After graduating in business administration, Ipek Demirtas first worked for the STINNES Group, then spent over
ten years at PricewaterhouseCoopers and seven years
as managing director of Petroplus Mineralölprodukte
Deutschland GmbH and Marimpex Mineralöl-Handelsgesellschaft mbH. She subsequently became Chief Financial
Officer of Environmental Solutions Europe Holding B.V.
(OTTO Group), Maastricht, and managing director of several subsidiaries of the OTTO Group, where she was able
to restructure strategic fields of business with great success. Ipek Demirtas joined ALNO AG in January 2010 as
manager of Group finance. Since July 2011, Ipek Demirtas
has been Chief Financial Officer responsible for finance/
accounting, controlling, human resources/organization, IT
and capital markets/special projects.
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RALPH BESTGEN
ELMAR DUFFNER
Chief Operations Officer
since 1 November 2011

As COO, Elmar Duffner is responsible for worldwide sales,
production, product development, marketing and corporate communication. A graduate in engineering science
and economic engineering, Elmar Duffner successfully
served various companies as managing director, including
the kitchen manufacturer Optifit and Poggenpohl Möbelwerke GmbH, of which he became managing director in
2002. During his period with Poggenpohl, he successfully continued the premium kitchen manufacturer's international expansion. Under his leadership, the company
grew at above-average rates with a consistently upward
performance. Elmar Duffner has been president of the German Furniture Industry Association since 2008 and is a
member of the Executive Board of "Arbeitsgemeinschaft
Die Moderne Küche e. V.".
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Chief Sales Officer
since 1 February 2013

Mr. Bestgen obtained a degree in business administration
from Wiesbaden Technical College before joining the Electrolux Group and the Brandt Group Hausgeräte GmbH,
where he was responsible for the sales and market divisions. Mr. Bestgen also spent many years as a member
of the executive management of Bauknecht Hausgeräte
GmbH, a member of the Whirlpool Group, most recently as
chairman of the executive management. He can draw on
extensive experience acquired in the course of many years
in German trade and industry, as well as in the development and enlargement of national and international sales
organizations.
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1/
JENS HARTMANN
Managing Director
Impuls Küchen GmbH
2/
RALPH OSSIANDER
Managing Director
logismo Group
Head of Quality
Management
ALNO Group

3/
HANSJÖRG
ROLLSHAUSEN

5/
MANFRED
SCHWELLINGER

Head of Restructuring,
Takeovers & Foreign
Subsidiaries
ALNO Group

Works Manager
Pfullendorf

Managing Director
tielsa GmbH

6/
HERMANN JOSEF
PÖHLS

4/
HEIKO DROST
Managing Director
pino Küchen GmbH

Managing Director
Impuls Küchen GmbH

7/
JÜRGEN MÜLLER
Head of Controlling
ALNO Group
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8/
THOMAS SIBER

10 /
DIRK FISCHER

Head of Purchasing
ALNO Group

Managing Director
of the general
partners of
Gustav Wellmann
GmbH & Co. KG

9/
FRANZ RITTER
Managing Director of
the general partners
of Gustav Wellmann
GmbH & Co. KG

11 /
STEFAN SEIDE
Managing Director
pino Küchen GmbH
Head of Human
Resources
ALNO Group
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R E P O RT O F T H E SU PERV I SO RY BOA R D

HENNING GIESECKE
Chairman of the Supervisory Board

In the year under review, the Supervisory Board of ALNO
Aktiengesellschaft (ALNO AG) duly exercised the duties
and responsibilities incumbent upon it in accordance with
statutory regulations, the Articles of Incorporation and the
rules of procedure. It devoted its attention to the company's position, continuously monitoring and advising the
Board of Management in the process.
The Board of Management provided the Supervisory Board
with regular, timely and comprehensive written and oral
reports on all aspects of fundamental significance for
the Group. Above all, the Supervisory Board discussed
the Board of Management's reorganization plans, the
corporate planning, ongoing development of business,
the company's strategic further development, its liquidity
prognoses, its capitalization and financial measures, its risk
position and its risk management. We were kept abreast of
individual developments diverging from the planning by the
Board of Management. The company's strategic orientation
was coordinated with the Supervisory Board and the Board
of Management reported regularly on the progress made
in implementing the strategy. The Supervisory Board was
involved in all decisions from an early stage onwards.
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Outside of these meetings, the Chief Executive Officer
also regularly informed the Chairman of the Supervisory
Board with regard to the company's current position and
development, its risk position and other significant developments.
All developments requiring the consent of the Supervisory Board in accordance with statutory regulations, the
Articles of Incorporation and the rules of procedure were
also considered and decided by the Supervisory Board.
It also considered individual transactions of importance.
In response to enquiries by the Supervisory Board or by
the Chairman of the Supervisory Board, and at various
meetings, the Board of Management and the auditor also
reported on any risks affecting the net assets, financial
position and results of operations of the individual ALNO
Group companies, as well as on the action taken to counter these in 2012. Second-tier management executives
were also consulted on specific topics.
The collaboration between Supervisory Board and Board
of Management was characterized by intensive and open
communication.
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MEETINGS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

The Supervisory Board met on 14 occasions in the financial year 2012. Seven of these were physically attended
meetings, the other seven taking the form of telephone
conferences. All members of the Supervisory Board were
able to attend more than half the meetings.
There were no conflicts of interest to be disclosed to the
Supervisory Board and with regard to which the shareholders' meeting must be informed.

MAIN ASPECTS CONSIDERED BY THE SUPERVISORY
BOARD AT ITS MEETINGS

The Supervisory Board regularly met to discuss the company's market situation and development, as well as to
check and monitor its income statements and balance
sheets and its net assets, financial position and liquidity, as well as the Group's reorganization and strategic
orientation.
The Board of Management presented its corporate planning for the financial year 2012 at the Supervisory Board
meeting on 19 January 2012. After intensive debate and
checking, the Supervisory Board approved the corporate
planning presented for the financial year 2012. In addition,
the Supervisory Board was also informed of the progress
made with regard to the capitalization and financial activities. The Controlling division was presented in detail by the
Board of Management, together with the relevant divisional
manager. Foreign activities in China, the Middle East, Switzerland, the UK and USA were also outlined and the further
procedure discussed and approved.
The Supervisory Board's telephone conference on 17 February 2012 concerned the adoption of a resolution on the
retirement of sales director Mr. Christoph Fughe, as well as
further resolutions on adoption of the new plan concerning
the distribution of responsibilities and accountability, as
well as on measures to improve liquidity.
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The Supervisory Board conferred by telephone on
20 March 2012 to discuss the presentation of an updated
reorganization assessment by PricewaterhouseCoopers
International Limited, as well as the liquidity preview, and
to adopt a resolution on financial measures.
The 2011 annual financial statements and the report of
the auditors Ernst & Young, Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft
Ravensburg on their audit of the financial statements were
discussed at the Supervisory Board meeting on 26 April
2012. The Board of Management informed us of developments in the first quarter of 2012. The Board of Management also presented a capitalization and financial concept
which was discussed in detail by the Supervisory Board
together with the auditors Ernst & Young. The Supervisory Board passed a resolution on the capitalization and
financial concept. Other topics which were discussed at
this meeting of the Supervisory Board included alternative
scenarios for the company's future structure, its foreign
sales, the factory masterplan, the final report on the plan of
action to improve profits in 2011, control of the measures
planned for 2012 to improve earnings and the remuneration
of the Board of Management.
When the Supervisory Board conferred by telephone on
22 May 2012, the Board of Management informed it of
measures to safeguard liquidity, as well as on progress
made with the capitalization and financial concept, and on
the date and status of the Annual Report to be published
for 2011.
On 12 June 2012, the Supervisory Board consulted by
telephone to adopt a resolution. The annual financial
statements of ALNO AG as at 31 December 2011 and the
consolidated financial statements of the ALNO Group as
at 31 December 2011 were discussed and considered in
detail by the Supervisory Board together with the auditors
from Ernst & Young GmbH, Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, Ravensburg. All the annual financial statements
were scrutinized to ensure their expediency and conformity
with statutory requirements. All questions were answered
satisfactorily and in detail by the Board of Management and
auditors. In addition, the Audit Committee reported on the
results of its audit and proposed that the financial statements prepared and presented for ALNO AG be approved,
together with the consolidated financial statements of the
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ALNO Group. Both the financial statements of ALNO AG
and the consolidated financial statements were subsequently approved by the Supervisory Board. The annual
financial statements 2011 were thus adopted. In addition,
the Supervisory Board finalized and approved its report for
the 2011 annual financial statements. The Declaration on
Corporate Governance and the report on Corporate Governance 2011 were also approved. At the recommendation
of the Audit Committee, the Supervisory Board decided to
propose to the Annual General Meeting that Ernst & Young
GmbH, Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, Ravensburg, be
re-elected as auditor for the financial year 2012, too. The
meeting also considered the date, venue, programme
and agenda of the Annual General Meeting, including the
proposed resolutions to be adopted.
On 5 July 2012, the Supervisory Board met for an ordinary
meeting to discuss the current status of the capitalization
and financial concept. A resolution on implementation
of the reorganization concept was adopted following a
detailed presentation and intensive discussion. It also
resolved to propose to the 2012 Annual General Meeting
that resolutions be adopted on agenda items 7 (capital
reduction) and 8 (capital increase). Further changes in
the agenda of the Annual General Meeting were also discussed and the agenda approved in all other respects for
the 2012 Annual General Meeting. The report on verification of the efficiency of Supervisory Board activities was
another major topic for discussion. Among other things,
this verification of efficiency considered the way in which
the Supervisory Board and its committees perceived
their duties, as well as the process and organization of
meetings, the activities of the chairman of the Supervisory Board and the exchange of information between
the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board. It
found that the Supervisory Board is efficiently organized
and that the collaboration between Board of Management
and Supervisory Board works smoothly. A sales concept
was presented and a corresponding resolution adopted in
the further course of the meeting. Resolutions were also
adopted with regard to acquisition of the logismo Group.
The Board of Management presented the mid-year financial statements to the meeting on 20 August 2012. The
Supervisory Board also deliberated over the target organization of the Board area and adopted a corresponding
resolution.
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The due process of the Annual General Meeting was
evaluated and assessed at the meeting immediately following the Annual General Meeting on 21 August 2012.
The Board of Management presented the development of
business in 2012. The requirements outlined by the Board
of Management for the ALNO Group's profitable long-term
orientation were discussed by the Supervisory Board.
On 2 October 2012, the Supervisory Board met for an ordinary meeting. This meeting focused, among other things,
on the Board of Management's report on the development of business in 2012. Provisional figures for the third
quarter 2012 and an extrapolation as at 31.12.2012 were
presented and discussed. Status reports on projects to
improve strategy and earnings were another focal topic.
The follow-up to the company exhibition 2012 was also
considered; a concept was presented for managing sales
and the IT strategy outlined.
The joint declaration by the Board of Management and
Supervisory Board concerning the recommendations of
the German Corporate Governance Code within the meaning of Section 161 Stock Companies Act (AktG) was also
discussed and adopted. Finally, the meeting discussed
the variable element in the remuneration of the Board of
Management.
The Supervisory Board's telephone conference on
18 October 2012 considered a brief report on the development of business in the third quarter and a presentation
by the Board of Management analysing the ALNO Group's
costs and orders received, which was then deliberated by
the Supervisory Board. A project to improve efficacy and
efficiency was also presented and discussed.
The Supervisory Board's telephone conference on
2 November 2012 adopted resolutions on the capital
increase 2012 and the joint venture in China. Mr. Werner
Devinck was granted approval to lay down his mandate
as member of the Supervisory Board.
The Supervisory Board meeting on 4 December 2012 was
attended by Dr. Marc Bitzer who had been appointed a
member of the Supervisory Board by decree of the courts
following Mr. Werner Devinck's retirement. Dr. Marc Bitzer
was elected to succeed Mr. Werner Devinck in the Strategy
and Presidial Committee.
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The meeting also discussed the acquisition of a holding in ALNO Middle East and adopted a corresponding
resolution. Further possibilities for participation were presented and discussed in detail. The Board of Management
reported on the new shareholder structure of ALNO AG
and on the development of business in 2012.

The Strategy and Presidial Committee held its first telephone
conference on 27 February 2012. Personnel matters were
discussed at this meeting, along with the development of
business.

WORK IN THE COMMIT TEES

During the telephone conference on 26 March 2012, the
Strategy and Presidial Committee discussed the information given with regard to progress made with the financial
concept and with regard to measures to safeguard liquidity. The chairman also informed the Strategy and Presidial
Committee that verification of the efficiency of Supervisory
Board activities had been ordered in accordance with
Section 12 of the rules of procedure.

The Supervisory Board has set up the Audit Committee
and the Strategy and Presidial Committee to ensure that
its responsibilities are discharged efficiently.

The Strategy and Presidial Committee's telephone conference on 29 May 2012 discussed the going concern status
and the status of talks with investors.

The Audit Committee met on 11 June 2012. This meeting considered and discussed the financial statements of
the company and the Group, including the single-entity
and group management report, as well as the auditor's
retainer. The further debate focussed on an assessment of
the company's continuation as a going concern, including
the expert appraisal drafted by PricewaterhouseCoopers
International Limited. The Supervisory Board also considered the recommendation presented for adoption concerning the auditor for 2012. In addition, the members of the
Audit Committee also consulted by email and by telephone
on individual aspects of the accounting process, preparation of the separate and consolidated financial statements,
preparation of the management report and mid-year financial report.

The reasons underlying the current development of share
prices were discussed at the Strategy and Presidial Committee's telephone conference on 25 June 2012.

At the telephone conference on 19 December 2012, the
Supervisory Board was informed of measures to safeguard
liquidity and adopted corresponding resolutions.

On 24 September 2102, the Strategy and Presidial Committee held a telephone conference to discuss measures
to boost sales and counter the market slowdown forecast
for 2013.
The Strategy and Presidial Committee's last telephone
conference on 20 December 2012 was devoted to an
intensive and detailed discussion of business developments
and the reasons for variance, the forecasts for the first
quarter of 2013 and measures to boost sales. Measures
to cover liquidity requirements in 2013 were presented and
considered.

The Strategy and Presidial Committee met six times in the
financial year 2012.
Business developments were outlined by the Board of
Management at each meeting of the Strategy and Presidial
Committee. The business developments presented covered the following aspects in each case: income statement,
cash flow statement, development of new orders received
and liquidity prognosis.
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REPORT ON CONTROLLED COMPANIES

THE GROUP

Ernst & Young GmbH, Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft,
Ravensburg, audited the 2012 annual financial statements
of ALNO AG according to the rules of the German Commercial Code (HGB), as well as the consolidated financial
statements of ALNO AG according to International Financial Reporting Standards, and the single-entity and group
management report; they consequently met with the full
approval of the auditors.
The auditors confirmed that the Board of Management
has established an efficient risk management system in
compliance with the statutory requirements, as well as an
internal control system.
The statements to be audited and the auditor's report
were received by all members of the Supervisory Board
in good time. The statements to be audited and the auditor's report were considered in detail at the meeting of the
Audit Committee on 12 April 2013. The Supervisory Board
received detailed information on the financial statements
of ALNO AG and on the consolidated financial statements
of the ALNO Group at a telephone conference on 15 April
2013. At both meetings, the auditors reported on the main
findings of their audit, answered the Board's questions
and provided any additional information required. After
detailed consideration and on the basis of its own checks,
the Supervisory Board concurred with the auditors' findings on the annual and consolidated financial statements.
Following the conclusive outcome of its own checks, the
Supervisory Board has no complaints against either the
separate annual financial statements or the consolidated
financial statements. The Supervisory Board approved
the annual financial statements prepared by the Board of
Management, as well as the single-entity and group management report for the financial year 2012 at its meeting on
15 April 2013. The Supervisory Board also approved the
consolidated financial statements and Group management
report prepared by the Board of Management according to
International Financial Reporting Standards for the financial
year 2012. The annual financial statements 2012 were thus
adopted.
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The Board of Management prepared its report on the company's relations with affiliated companies and presented it
to the Supervisory Board together with the auditor's report
on this subject.
The auditors issued the following unqualified certificate:
"After having duly performed our audit, we confirm that
1. the actual information included in the report is correct;
2. for the legal transactions indicated in the report the
company’s consideration was not inappropriately high."
The auditors attended the Supervisory Board's deliberations on the report concerning relations with affiliated companies and reported on the essential findings of their audit.
The Supervisory Board's checks of both the Board of Management's report and the auditor's report did not give rise
to any objections; the Supervisory Board concurs with the
auditor's findings. Following the definitive results of the
Supervisory Board's checks, the Supervisory Board has
no objections to the Board of Management's declaration at
the end of the report concerning relations between ALNO
AG and affiliated companies.
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CORPOR ATE GOVERNANCE

In the financial year just ended, the Supervisory Board also
considered the further development of corporate governance principles in the ALNO Group, with due regard for
the German Corporate Governance Code in the version
dated 15 May 2012.
The report of the Board of Management and Supervisory
Board on corporate governance by ALNO AG can be
found in conjunction with the Declaration on Corporate
Governance on page 60 onwards. On 2 October 2012, the
Board of Management and Supervisory Board published
a new declaration of compliance in respect of the recommendations of the "Government Commission on the German Corporate Governance Code" as required by Section
161 of the Stock Companies Act (AktG). This declaration
can be found on pages 60 onwards in this Annual Report
and is permanently accessible to shareholders via the
website www.alno.de.

The following changes to the Board of Management
took place after the end of the year under review: On 13
January 2013, the Supervisory Board appointed Mr. Ralph
Bestgen member of the Board of Management of ALNO
AG effective from 1 February 2013. Mr Ralph Bestgen
is responsible for sales, marketing and product development.
On 10 April 2013, the Supervisory Board appointed Mr.
Manfred Scholz member of the Board of Management
of ALNO AG effective from 29 April 2013. Mr. Manfred
Scholz will be responsible for production, purchasing and
logistics.
The Supervisory Board wishes to thank the Board of
Management and all employees of the ALNO Group companies for their efforts and great personal commitment in
the financial year 2012.

Pfullendorf, 15 April 2013

CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND

Supervisory Board

SUPERVISORY BOARD

Mr. Werner Devinck gave notice in a letter dated 31
October 2012 that he would resign his mandate in the
Supervisory Board of ALNO AG effective at midnight on
2 November 2012.

Henning Giesecke
Chairman of the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board thanks Mr. Werner Devinck for his
work and commitment.
Following Mr. Werner Devinck's retirement and at the
request of ALNO AG, Dr. Marc Bitzer was appointed member of the Supervisory Board of ALNO AG under a court
order dated 27 November 2012.
Mr. Christoph Fughe's retirement from the Board of
Management was resolved at the Supervisory Board's
telephone conference on 17 February 2012. Mr. Christoph Fughe continued to serve the company in an advisory
capacity until 31 May 2012.
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ALNO (FR ANKFURT ) 2.1.2012 – 28.12.2012, in EUR
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BASIC FIGURES | AS PER 31 DECEMBER 2012

German Securities
identification number

778 840

ISIN

DE 0007788408

Stock exchange code

ANO

Transparency level
(market segment)

General standard
(regulated market)

Stock exchanges

Regulated market: Frankfurt
(general standard), Stuttgart;
free trading: Berlin, Munich,
Düsseldorf

Type of shares

No-par-value ordinary
bearer shares

Initial listing

27 July 1995

Share capital at 31.12.2012

70,094,979

Number of shares at 31.12.2012

70,094,979
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Although the fi nancial markets' general uncertainty
remained tangible as the sovereign debt crisis and financial crisis in Europe continued, both the German stock
exchange index DAX and the second-tier SDAX index grew
strongly in the course of the year, with a total increase of
29.1% and 18.7%, respectively.
ALNO AG's market capitalization improved significantly in
2012, from EUR 38.7 million to EUR 73.6 million. This was
primarily attributable to the successful implementation of its
capitalization and financial concept 2012 which included,
among other things, complete placement of 44.0 million
shares at EUR 1.05 each in conjunction with a cash capital increase in November 2012 and repayment of all bank
debts. These effects essentially overlaid development of
the ALNO share in 2012. At the same time, the good operating performance over the year, which included breaking
even in the first quarter of 2012 (on the basis of EBITDA),
was offset by repercussions of the reorganization in 2011
with the publication of negative results. The value of the
ALNO share was fundamentally reassessed after fluctuating
between a maximum of EUR 1.90 (on 8 February 2012) and
minimum of EUR 0.80 (on 27 June 2012). The offering price
of EUR 1.05 for the cash capital increase was
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also the closing price quoted at the end of 2012 and laid
the basis for ensuring that future operating performance
would once again be reflected in the share price in future.
A correspondingly positive development was also observed
in the first weeks of 2013.
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings per share in 2012 equalled EUR –0.05 on the
basis of 30,904,179 issued shares on average. The previous
year's figure was EUR –1.04 (on the basis of 24,617,133
shares). ALNO AG's calculation of the earnings per share
is based on the average shares issued, as permitted by
IAS 33.

PERFORMANCE DATA OF THE SHARE

Closing price on 30.12.2011

EUR 1.42

Closing price on 28.12.2012

EUR 1.05

Percentage change

– 26.1%

Year high

EUR 1.90

Year low

EUR 0.80

CAPITALIZ ATION AND SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE

The shareholder structure of ALNO AG changed considerably in 2012. As per 30 January 2012, the two major
shareholders IRE Beteiligungs GmbH (Whirlpool/Bauknecht
Hausgeräte GmbH) and Küchen Holding GmbH ended their
voting commitment, under which Küchen Holding GmbH
had until then been the majority shareholder in ALNO AG.
ALNO no longer has a majority shareholder following this
change in voting rights. IRE Beteiligungs GmbH/Whirlpool
Germany GmbH confirmed the commitment to ALNO AG
as a long-term investment and expanded on it in the course
of the year.

to EUR 26.1 million. The number of shares remained
unchanged at 26.1 million. In conjunction with the capital
increase with cash subscription rights undertaken in a second stage and concluded on 22 November 2012, a total of
44.0 million new shares were issued at an issuing price of
EUR 1.05. As a result of this issue, the company received
gross issuing proceeds of EUR 46.2 million. Shareholders'
equity increased from EUR 26.1 million to EUR 70.1 million.
The former shareholders acquired around 17.1 million
new shares through their subscription rights. A further
14.2 million shares were subscribed by national and international investors within the framework of a private offering
of unsubscribed new shares. Whirlpool Germany GmbH
took over the remaining 12.7 million shares, strengthening
its position as a major anchor investor in ALNO AG with
a holding of 30.6% following this and the acquisition of
further shares.
The new shares were included in the existing listings of
ALNO AG on the Frankfurt stock exchange and on the
Baden-Württemberg stock exchange in Stuttgart before the
end of November. This increased the number of marketable shares by 168.6%, which will have a positive effect
on the future trading volume and hence make the ALNO
share more attractive, particularly to institutional investors.

SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE OF ALNO AG |
AS PER 31 DECEMBER 2012

58.73% Others
2.55% Küchenholding GmbH
8.14% Christoph Dietsche

In conjunction with the successful implementation of the
capitalization and financial concept, a number of measures were undertaken by the shareholders at the start of
year to bolster equity, particularly by waiving repayment.
By resolution of the Annual General Meeting, the
subscribed capital was reduced from EUR 67.8 million
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30.58% Whirlpool Germany GmbH
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100%
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The following notifiable share dealings by executives were
reported in the financial year 2011, as required by Section
15a of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG):

NOTIFYING
PERSON

NUMBER
OF
SHARES

TYPE OF
TRANSACTION

8.2.2013

Starlet
Investment AG/
Max Müller

65,000

Purchase

84,095

4.1.2013

Starlet
Investment AG/
Max Müller

45,000

Purchase

47,250

DATE

22.11.2012

22.11.2012

22.11.2012

22.11.2012

NOTIFYING
PERSON

Max Müller

Max Müller &
Partner AG/
Max Müller

Starlet
Investment AG/
Max Müller

Elmar Duffner

NUMBER
OF
SHARES

TYPE OF
TRANSACTION

1,430,284

Purchase/
allotment
from
capital
increase

70,000

Purchase/
allotment
from
capital
increase

73,500

977,975

Purchase/
allotment
from
capital
increase

1,026,874

376,000

Purchase/
allotment
from
capital
increase

394,800

157,500

VOLUME
IN EUR

1,501,798

22.11.2012

Ipek Demirtas

150,000

Purchase/
allotment
from
capital
increase

22.11.2012

Norbert Orth

181,500

Purchase

190,575

22.11.2012

Anton Walther

50,000

Purchase

52,500

15.11.2012

Max Müller

5,000

Purchase

5,338

13.11.2012

Max Müller

40,000

Purchase

41,976

12.11.2012

Max Müller

55,000

Purchase

57,150
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The following transactions took place after the end of
the reporting period:

DIRECTOR’S DEALINGS

DATE

THE ALNO SHARE

VOLUME
IN EUR

INVESTOR REL ATIONS

The primary objective of ALNO AG's investor relations
work is to ensure a continuous dialogue with all capital
market participants. In addition to the ad-hoc bulletins
prescribed by law, the company also published additional corporate news in the 2012 financial year, above
all to provide institutional and private investors, as well
as analysts, with timely and detailed information on all
current events and operational developments. The company management additionally spoke with representatives
of the press, particularly in conjunction with publication
of the detailed financial reports and interim statements
for the individual calendar quarters. All the main details
relating to the ALNO share and current company developments are available to investors on the company's
website www.alno.de in the section ALNO AG/Investor
Relations.
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SINGLE-ENTIT Y AND
GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT
OF ALNO AK TIENGESELLSCHAFT, PFULLENDORF,
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2012

Economic report

I. GROUP STRUCTURE AND BUSINESS

The ALNO Group develops, builds and sells kitchen
furniture and accessories for the German market and
for export worldwide. The parent company ALNO AG,
Pfullendorf, acts as holding company with central
administration functions and operates the production
facility in Pfullendorf, as well as the sales division. The
ALNO Group comprises 22 active individual companies altogether. The Group's headquarters is located in
Pfullendorf (Baden-Württemberg).
Since the ALNO Group unites four different brands under
a single umbrella, the Group can cover all price segments
from the entry level to the premium level. With its brands
ALNO, WELLMANN, IMPULS and PINO, the Group is one
of the biggest manufacturers of kitchen furniture worldwide.
The ALNO Group is the second largest manufacturer in
Germany and currently ranks fifth in Europe.
Each of the four German production facilities has its own
product portfolio. Kitchens for the ALNO brand are developed and built in Pfullendorf (Baden-Württemberg), while
the plant in Enger (North Rhine-Westphalia) produces the
WELLMANN range. The IMPULS and PINO brands are
produced in Brilon (North Rhine-Westphalia) and Coswig
(Sachsen-Anhalt), respectively.
Germany and Western Europe are the most important
sales markets for the ALNO Group. However, the company also has around 6,000 trade partners in 64 countries
who are served through a centrally managed export sales
department.
In the United Kingdom and Switzerland, the ALNO Group
operates own marketing companies through the subsidiary
ALNO International GmbH, Pfullendorf.

Through its subsidiary in the United Kingdom, ALNO AG
acquired 100% of shares in the premium dealer Built-In
Kitchens Ltd., Sevenoaks, United Kingdom, including the
shares in the latter's subsidiary Built-In Living Kitchens Ltd.,
Sevenoaks, United Kingdom, in April 2012.
In July 2012, ALNO AG acquired all shareholdings in
the three operating companies of its erstwhile provider
of logistics services logismo GmbH in Pfullendorf, Brilon
and Coswig.
When taking over the organization of commercial agents in
France, ALNO likewise completely acquired the company
A’Flair Habitat, Haguenau in France, also in July 2012.
Also in July 2012, ALNO AG acquired 50% of the shares
in mkc Mega Küchencenter Rothrist AG, Rothrist, Switzerland, through its subsidiary in Switzerland.
In November 2012, ALNO AG set up a joint venture for
the Chinese market together with ALNO China Holding
Limited, Hong Kong, China. ALNO AG has a 45% holding
in the joint venture.
Based in Pfullendorf, tielsa GmbH was similarly set up in
November 2012. The object of tielsa GmbH is to market
kitchens based on the innovative concept of a "moving
kitchen".
In December 2012, ALNO AG increased its former holding
in ALNO Middle East FZCO, Dubai, United Arab Emirates,
from 50% to 85%. The remaining 15% of shares in ALNO
Middle East are held by the former partner Al Khayyat
Investments LLC, Dubai, United Arab Emirates. Kitchen
furniture specially for project business in the Gulf region
is produced and marketed under the name AK-5 at the
Dubai location.

ALNO USA Corporation, New York, was set up in the USA
in January 2012.
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Structure of the ALNO Group
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

ALNO AG
Zweitmarkenholding
Impuls Pino GmbH, Pfullendorf

100%

94%

Impuls Küchen GmbH
Brilon

6%

94%

pino Küchen GmbH
Coswig (Anhalt)

6%

50%

ALNO International GmbH
Pfullendorf

100%

ALNO (Schweiz) AG
Nidau (CH)

100%

mkc Mega Küchencenter
Rothrist AG, Rothrist (CH)

ALNO UK Ltd.
Dewsbury (UK)
Casawell Service GmbH
Enger

0.07%

94.74%

100%

100%

Gustav Wellmann GmbH & Co. KG
Enger

100%

100%
100%

Built-In Kitchens Limited
Sevenoaks / Kent (UK)

100%

Built-In Living Limited
Sevenoaks / Kent (UK)

99.93%

GVG tielsa Küchen GmbH & Co. KG
5.26%
Enger

ALNO Trading GmbH
Enger

ALNO USA Corporation
New York / NY (USA)

Wellmann Bauteile GmbH
Enger

tielsa GmbH
Pfullendorf

logismo Möbellogistik Spedition
S.I.G. GmbH, Pfullendorf

100%

ALNO Manhattan LLC
New York / NY (USA)

A‘Flair Habitat
Haguenau (FR)

100%

ALNO Middle East FZCO
Dubai (UAE)

85%

ALNO China Holding Limited
Hong Kong (CN)

45%

100%

100%

logismo Möbellogistik Spedition
H.S.K GmbH, Brilon

100%

logismo Möbellogistik Spedition
A.Z.E. GmbH, Coswig

100%
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II. GROUP MANAGEMENT

Development of the mission statement completed

The Group's business activities are measured on the basis
of sales and value metrics. Within the year, the individual
Group entities are managed on a monthly basis, but also
on a weekly and daily basis, through continual variance
analyses to determine any divergence from budgeted figures and previous year's values in all key operational areas.
In addition to ratios measuring the efficiency of sales, production, quality and specific functions, the most important
individual indicators used at the segment level include
contribution accounting, unit performance accounting and
sales figures expressed in numbers of cabinet units. Cost
centres and cost categories are monitored and analysed
separately at a higher level of aggregation. The quality of
the product range and business processes is monitored
and assured by quality management based on DIN EN
ISO 9001. All production companies in the ALNO Group
are certified companies subject to continuous external
auditing by various institutes.

In the financial year 2011, the ALNO Group set out to
develop a new corporate mission statement actively incorporating our employees (m/f). The new mission statement
clearly demonstrates the importance of our employees
(m/f), for they are the third pillar on which the success
of the ALNO Group is based, along with the company's
tradition and experience.
The leadership guidelines and the new corporate mission statement for the ALNO Group were approved by
the Board of Management in 2012. The results were subsequently communicated throughout the Group and first
steps immediately taken to implement the new mission
statement for the entire company group.
The ALNO Group's new corporate mission statement
includes the following aspects:
•

Our employees (m/f) contribute to our success. Every
single person is important.

•

They are highly qualified, motivated and characterized by
a high level of personal initiative.

•

Specifically targeted further development prepares our
employees (m/f) for the future.

•

The skills and performance of our employees (m/f) are
promoted and challenged by providing an attractive
environment.

•

We give them a perspective and opportunities for development.

III. HUMAN RESOURCES

The total number of employees increased slightly. On
the closing date 31 December 2012, the ALNO Group
employed 1,926 men and women, as compared to 1,845
(m/f) in the previous year. At year-end, 1,251 worked in
production (previous year: 1,238 (m/f)), while 117 (previous
year: 116) were employed in administration. Marketing and
sales employed 416 (previous year: 391) men and women,
and 142 (previous year: 100) worked in the other areas.
At the end of the financial year, the respective production
facilities employed 669 (previous year: 675) in Pfullendorf,
607 (previous year: 670) in Enger, 247 (previous year:
253) in Brilon, 212 (previous year: 210) in Coswig and
169 (previous year: 37) in the foreign subsidiaries. The
logismo Group which was taken over in 2012 employed
22 men and women.
The ALNO Group needs highly qualified and motivated
employees (m/f) in order to realize its strategy and growth
targets. The organization of work is based on a spirit of
openness and mutual respect and fairness. Performance
is rewarded through profit-oriented remuneration systems
and opportunities for personal development.
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Training
In-house training is a fixed element of the ALNO Group's
forward-looking personnel policy. Since requirements
change constantly, the ALNO Group relies strongly on inhouse training in order to build up its own pool of young
job starters.
As in previous years, the training quota has remained
stable in the ALNO Group. In the financial year 2012, the
company had 93 trainees (m/f) (previous year: 98) at its
four locations in Germany. In the financial year 2012, 30
trainees passed their qualifying examinations and 39 new
trainees were taken on.
Training is essentially provided for industrial clerks (m/f) in
administration and for woodworking mechanics (m/f) in
production. In addition, the ALNO Group also offers jobs
to students of business administration, economic science
and mechanical engineering (production and management)
at the University of Cooperative Education within the framework of the dual system of vocational training. The range
of vocational training offered also includes the opportunity
to earn a degree in business administration at Academies
of Business Administration and Public Management (VWA).
The technical training is rounded off by projects and such
team-oriented measures as a joint, Group-wide kick-off for
trainees when commencing their training.

ECONOMIC REPORT

Learning a vocation is also the focal aspect of a social
education project undertaken by the ALNO Group together
with the Sechslinden School in Pfullendorf. Educational
partnerships are a model for success. The project seeks
to intensify the collaboration between schools and businesses. On the one hand, it prepares the students for the
transition to a working life. At the same time, however, the
company uses the project to attract young people from
the region to training at ALNO. The educational partnership was set up as a long-term project in early 2012. It
includes class programmes as well as multi-disciplinary
and extra-curricular measures, such as a two-week vocational practical, introduction to different vocations and job
application trainings.

Establishment of Group-wide personnel
development
In the light of demographic trends (shrinking population,
increasing age of the population as a whole) and the
foreseeable shortage of skilled personnel in Germany, the
ALNO Group launched a Group-wide campaign for sustainable personnel development in 2012. The campaign's
aims include demand and strategy-oriented qualification of
all employees (m/f), improving intercultural and international
competence, and identifying potential future executives.
Core processes for implementing this campaign include:
•

Employee qualification

Women are traditionally under-represented in technical
vocations. Our aim is to increase the proportion of women
in the medium term. Events have for several years been
organized in conjunction with "Girls' Day". ALNO hopes
to make technical vocations more attractive to women
and consequently to receive more job applications from
women.

•

Succession and talent management

•

Competence and performance management

•

Organisational development

•

Company healthcare management

•

Knowledge management

Since 1 September 2012, the ALNO Group's trainees can
additionally become involved in management processes in
a very real and practical manner. From a very early stage,
they should learn to make decisions in their own training
company and to think and act in entrepreneurial terms.
With the support of their vocational training officers, they
are thrown in "at the deep end" and run their company as
if it were real.

These measures will help to maintain the performance ability of the ALNO Group's employees (m/f) and allow the
ALNO Group to profit from its employees' (m/f) experience
and know-how in the long term.
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Equal oppor tunities
The Logib-D programme (Equal pay in companies) sponsored by the Federal Ministry for Family Affairs, Senior
Citizens, Women and Young People (BMFSFJ) allows
companies to establish whether potential differences in
pay for men and women in their firms are attributable
to reproducible factors, such as differences in training.
For ALNO AG, equal opportunities and the promotion of
women in executive positions are an important instrument
of personnel policy with which to recruit women for technical and executive positions and sustainably ensure their
loyalty to the company, also in the light of demographic
developments. In 2012, an Advisory Board selected ALNO
AG on the basis of defined selection criteria as one of 200
companies nationwide for this programme which is to be
concluded in 2013. In addition to analysing gender-related
pay structures in companies and company parts, additional
assessments will allow those responsible in the companies
to identify possible approaches in order to reduce differences in pay, implement a personnel policy based on equal
opportunities in the long term, and consequently exert a
positive influence on the employees' motivation, job satisfaction and performance.

Personnel activities
The difficult situation still facing the company, reorganization measures and periods of short-time working were
decisive events for the employees (m/f) in the financial year
just ended. Inadequate capacity utilization at the plants
in Enger and Pfullendorf was compensated by working
short-time. The management presumes that cyclical fluctuations in the world economy, particularly in the European
markets of importance to the kitchen furniture industry,
will influence demand for our products. Optimizing cost
structures throughout the Group and ensuring flexibility at
the production locations in Germany are therefore matters
of top priority for the ALNO Group.
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Under the terms of an agreement for the rehabilitation of
ALNO AG which was concluded with the Metalworkers
Union for North Rhine-Westphalia and Baden-Württemberg on 10 July 2012, the personnel costs negotiated
and implemented at company level are to be significantly
reduced from 2013 onwards in the companies ALNO
and Wellmann. Negotiations for the Pfullendorf location
were concluded in December 2012 and provide for the
elimination of 25 jobs, as well as a waiver of remuneration
at this location. In March 2013, negotiations with the
employees' representatives and Metalworkers Union for
North Rhine-Westphalia resulted in agreement on the
elimination of 85 jobs and a waiver of remuneration for
the Enger location.
Short-time working was additionally agreed with the Federal Employment Agency for the Enger and Pfullendorf
locations from October 2012 onwards, initially until March
2013. At these two locations, six and seven days' shorttime working were implemented in October and November
2012, respectively.
Employees of ALNO AG, Impuls Küchen GmbH and Gustav
Wellmann GmbH & Co. KG are governed by the respective
collective-bargaining agreements for the woodworking and
plastics processing industry in the Westphalia-Lippe region
and for the woodworking and plastics processing industry
in Baden-Württemberg, as well as various collective agreements on remuneration. pino Küchen GmbH is not tied by
any collective agreements.
The great commitment and tireless efforts of the ALNO
Group's employees (m/f) have made it possible to reverse
the business trend and break even again in a difficult
financial year. The entire management is extremely proud
of their loyalty and thanks them all for their exceptional
performance.
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IV. MARKET AND COMPETITION

Economic environment
Following moderate world economic growth of just 3.8%
in 2011, the rate slowed by 0.6% worldwide in 2012 and
averaged only 3.2% for the year. The reasons for this
downturn lay in the continuing sovereign debt crisis in the
eurozone, still turbulent financial markets and uncertainties
over future financial policy in the United States.1
These uncertainties were also tangible in the markets of relevance to the ALNO Group. Although the German economy
proved very robust in this troubled economic environment,
gross domestic product (GDP) increased by just 0.7% in
real terms in 2012, as compared to 3.0% in the previous
year; particularly in the second half of 2012, the German
economy cooled off markedly. The rise in German GDP was
essentially driven by exports (+4.1%), as well as by private
(+0.8%) and state consumption expenditure (+1.0%).2
With a value of –0.5%, the eurozone even entered a recession, after aggregate output grew by 1.4% in 2011. Particularly industry's reluctance to invest and the decline in
consumption by the state had a damping effect. Austria
and Switzerland, two markets of particular importance to
the ALNO Group, grew by 0.5% and 1.0%, respectively,
while the United Kingdom reported a slight downturn of
–0.2%.3
For 2013, the Economic Research Institute (IfW) at Kiel
University forecasts that the German economy will grow
marginally by 0.3%.4 Deutsche Bank even expects growth
of 0.8%, although it assumes that economic growth will
slow particularly in the winter half of 2013.5 Economic
output in 2013 is expected to decline by 0.2% in the
eurozone, while the world economy as a whole will grow
by 3.4%.6
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In the kitchen industry of relevance to the ALNO Group,
job market developments and investment activity in housing construction are important indicators of consumption and investment by consumers. The unemployment
rate improved by 0.3 percentage points to 6.8% in 2012
(2011: 7.1%), its lowest level since 1991.7 Private consumption expenditure rose correspondingly (in real terms),
with an increase of 0.8% over the same period in the previous year, from which the kitchen industry also profited.8
Because the furniture market is a so-called "postponable"
market, it is particularly affected by private consumer
spending. Depending on their personal financial situation,
consumers will either go ahead with or put off the acquisition of such consumer goods. According to the ifo-Institut,
housing construction in Germany profited from the considerably less favourable economic situation in some of the
other EU countries in 2012. The total number of housing
units completed in Germany was 17.9% higher than in
the previous year, as compared to a marginal increase
of around 0.25% for the whole of Europe in 2012.
The number in Germany is expected to rise by around
7.9% in 2013. Housing demand will continue to rise in
the coming years, according to the ifo-Institut, not only
as a result of renewed economic strength, but also
and above all as many private households invest in property due to low interest rates for housing construction and
increasing immigration.9 The Institute expects average
growth of 0.9% p.a. in the volume of housing construction
until 2021.10
Infl ation averaged 2.0% over the year in Germany in
2012 and thus remained slightly below the previous
year's value of 2.3%.11 Real wages increased for the
third successive year after 2010 and 2011, with an average rise of 0.6% in 2012 (2011: 1.0%).12 Furniture production also grew due to the resultant higher purchasing
power in Germany. According to the Federal Statistical
Office, furniture production in 2012 increased by 1.3% over

_
6 Economic Research Institute (IfW) at Kiel University,
"World economy in winter 2012", 17 December 2012

_
1 Economic Research Institute (IfW) at Kiel University, Press Release
"World economy remains weak", 18 December 2012
2 Federal Statistical Office, Press Release No. 17/13 "German economy
withstands European economic crisis 2012" 15 January 2013

7 Federal Employment Agency, Press Release No. 002,
"The labour market in 2012", 3 January 2013
8 Federal Statistical Office, Series 18 No. 1.2,
"Macroeconomic accounts" 22 February 2013
9 Ifo-Institut – Ludwig Dorffmeister, publication entitled "European
housing construction: hard times end this year", 14 February 203

3 Economic Research Institute (IfW) at Kiel University,
"World economy in winter 2012", 17 December 2012

10 Ifo-Institut, "ifo Construction forecast for Germany", 5/2012

4 Economic Research Institute (IfW) at Kiel University, Press Release
"German economy distinctly sluggish", 18 December 2012

11 Federal Statistical Office, Press Release No.18/13,
"Consumer prices 2012", 15 January 2013

5 Deutsche Bank Research, "German industry – Only moderate
recovery in 2013", 28 September 2012

12 Federal Statistical Office, Press Release No. 47/13, "Real income
rises in 2012 for the third year in succession", 7 February 2013
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the previous year, due above all to the rise in production of
wooden kitchen furniture (+5.0%).13
The GfK expects purchasing power in Germany to increase
by 2.9% in 2013. On average, each person in Germany
will nominally have EUR 554 more to spend on consumption, rent or other cost of living than in the previous year.
Taking into account the Bundesbank's estimated inflation
rate of 1.5%, the real increase in purchasing power will be
around 1.4% in 2013. Consumption is therefore expected
to increase slightly in 2013. Total purchasing power in
Germany is forecast by the GfK to be in the order of EUR
1,687.7 billion in 2013.14

Developments in the furniture trade
The German furniture trade continued to grow in 2012
with a rise of just over 2.0% according to the extrapolated
values of the BVDM (Federal Association of the German
Furniture, Kitchen and Furnishing Trade). Total turnover
is thus in the order of EUR 31.2 billion (including valueadded tax). It was fuelled above all by the upswing in
private housing construction and by consumers' anxiety
over the stability of the euro, as Germans invested above
all in houses, homes and gardens on account of the low
interest rate.
With a share of around 28% of sales, kitchen furniture was
once again the strongest segment in the German furniture
trade in 2012. For comparison: it was followed by upholstered furniture with a share of 18%, as well as bedroom
and living room furniture with a share of 12% each.
Expectations for the industry's development in 2013
remain optimistic, albeit slightly more subdued than in
previous years. The BVDM expects growth to continue at
the previous year's level in 2013.15

_

German furniture industr y sales
The Federal Statistical Offi ce reported total sales of
EUR 17.1 billion by the German furniture industry in
2012, a rise of 1.3% over the previous year. At EUR 4.8
billion, exports were 1.4% higher than in 2011, while the
volume of sales in Germany grew slightly to EUR 12.3
billion. With around 72%, Germany accounts for the lion's
share of total sales. Altogether, around 90,400 men and
women were employed by 532 firms (with a workforce of
more than 50 employees) in the furniture industry in 2012;
despite economic uncertainties, the number of jobs in the
industry was roughly 1.7% higher than in the previous
year.16
According to the German Furniture Industry Association
(VDM), the German furniture industry is characterized
by extremely fierce competition over prices. Due to their
significantly higher production costs, domestic manufacturers have come under considerable pressure from
the low price of imported goods, especially from Asian
countries.
The German kitchen industry in particular is gaining in
significance worldwide, with sales rising by 3.9% in 2012,
according to the VDM. For comparison: the mattress
industry only grew by about 1.1% and living room furniture
by 0.3%. Office furniture (–2.1%) and upholstered furniture
(–6.3%) failed to meet the previous year's values.17
Most of the German furniture industry's most important export markets reported setbacks in 2012. France
dropped 5.4%, Austria 4.9%, while the Netherlands even
reported a drop of 12.1% and Italy 10.4%. Both Switzerland and the United Kingdom were able to counter
this trend with a rise of 4.0% and 5.8%, respectively.18
For 2013, the German furniture industry expects sales to
remain at the previous year's level.19

_

13 Federal Statistical Office, Press Release No. 16/13,
"Furniture worth EUR 16.8 billion produced in 2012",
14 January 2013; HDH,"Monthly report according to sectors 2012"

16 HDH, "Monthly report according to sectors 2012"

14 GfK, Press Release "Purchasing power 2013", 12 December 2012

18 VDM, Statistical survey, "German furniture exports 2012"

15 BVDM, Press Release "Furniture and kitchen trade profits from euro
crisis", 9 January 2013

19 VDM, Press Release "German furniture industry grows 2% in 2012",
9 January 2013
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Developments in the kitchen furniture industr y

Market position

The German kitchen furniture industry boosted its sales by
3.9% altogether, to EUR 4.2 billion in 2012. Domestic sales
of EUR 2.7 billion were 5.9% higher than in the previous
year, while foreign sales remained at the previous year's
level of EUR 1.5 billion.20

In the financial year 2012, the ALNO Group's market share
in Germany equalled 13.7% in terms of value and 19.6%
in terms of the number of kitchens sold.25 Its market share
in Europe was 3.6% in 2011. This makes the ALNO Group
the second largest manufacturer of kitchen furniture in
Germany and one of the top five in Europe.26

According to the German Kitchen Furniture Industry Association (VdDK), the rise in sales was primarily attributable to
the very good first six months of 2012. In the second half of
the year, the sovereign debt crisis and resultant recession
in large parts of Europe had a negative impact on the German kitchen furniture industry and particularly on export
business. Economic activity cooled tangibly throughout
almost the whole of southern Europe.21
The German kitchen industry's main export markets in
2012 continued to be France with sales of EUR 346.9
million (+5.4%), the Netherlands despite a drop of 17.1%
in the same period with sales totalling EUR 198.2 million,
Switzerland with EUR 178.8 million (+11.4%), Belgium
(EUR 167.6 million), Austria (EUR 144.9 million), the United
Kingdom (EUR 85.1 million) and China (EUR 58.8 million).
Exports increased most strongly in the United Arab Emirates (+142.9%) and Norway (+115.7%) in 2012.22 The biggest foreign producers of kitchen furniture for Germany in
2012 were Italy (EUR 33.3 million), Lithuania (EUR 21.7
million) and France EUR 13.8 million).23
The Association initially expects both foreign business
and domestic business to slow down in 2013. Despite
this, however, the VdDK remains cautiously optimistic and
expects the industry to pick up again in the last quarter
of 2013; a far-reaching recession is not expected in the
long term.24

35

Brand communication
Clear and unambiguous positioning of the Group's individual brands is an integral element of the ALNO Group's
business strategy. Particularly the ALNO brand is exceedingly well known among consumers. Flanked by suitable
marketing measures, the ALNO Group will use and develop
this brand recognition more strongly than in the past.
Consumers, however, lack orientation in this cluttered
kitchen market with its unchanging communications centred predominantly on individual products. ALNO stands
apart from this interchangeable variety and sends a clear
message with the new brand and product campaign
launched in October 2012: "One thing's for sure: ALNO."
The new brand image addresses the consumer directly
and underscores the core statement, as well as the good
feeling of having made the right decision when buying a
kitchen (long before the first brick has been laid).
In the kitchen industry, this comprehensive launch
attracted a great deal of attention and caused a stir. The
campaign emphasizes ALNO's strengths in respect of
quality and innovation, while underscoring the traditional
ALNO brand's "lighthouse function" in the kitchen furniture
market.
The new brand image was initially launched with nationwide advertising in high-circulation living, lifestyle and news
magazines, such as AD, Schöner Wohnen, Stern, BUNTE,
GALA, SPIEGEL and FOCUS. At the heart of the campaign
we have two exceedingly distinctive advertising motifs and

_
20 HDH, "Monthly report according to sectors 2012"
21 VdDK, Press Release "Kitchen furniture industry: economic activity
slows", February 2013
22 Federal Statistical Office, "Kitchen furniture – Foreign trade (exports)
2012", provisional values
23 Federal Statistical Office, "Kitchen furniture – Foreign trade (imports)
2012", provisional values
24 VdDK, Press Release "Kitchen furniture industry: economic activity
slows", February 2013
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26 Csil, Centre for Industrial Studies, The European Market
for Kitchen Furniture, July 2012
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an image trailer which communicate the core values of
outstanding quality, award-winning design and practical
innovations. The kitchens are presented in unfinished building shells.
With these unusual advertisements, the brand has
departed from the customary conventions and attracted
a high level of attention. It is aided by the brand claim "Now
that's a kitchen", the revised company logo and various
campaigns and activities for our trading partners at the
point of sale. Further mono-brand stores have also been
established to enhance the uniform image and emotional
brand experience for our consumers. The brand and product campaign will be consistently continued in the first half
of 2013 with a new motif based on the same fundamental
concept.

Products
The ALNO Group once again presented both the public
and the trade with several new products, additions to the
range and technical highlights in the financial year 2012.
The ALNO Group's new kitchen collection encompasses 38
new front colours accounting for 15% of the entire range.
New colours include high-gloss ultra white, deep blue matt
and cashmere grey, for example, as well as new surface
finishes, such as shingle veneers of genuine wood. The mix
of materials with highly polished glass and genuine wood
veneers, as well as fresh colours and ceramic material is
characteristic of ALNO's new kitchen style.
The ALNO Group struck out in particular with its highquality ALNO brand in 2012. In September, the new design
concept VINTUCINA was presented for the first time at
the DESIGN-TOUR 2012 company exhibition at the
Enger location in North Rhine-Westphalia. It highlights the
interaction of exquisite and at the same time contrasting
materials, such as glass and wood. A shingle of genuine
oak wood is the dominant element creating interesting
highlights when contrasted with white kitchen fronts.
The VINTUCINA concept offers manifold design options.
Base units and wall units in shingle look are combined
with fronts and modular panels of glass, as well as plain
coloured fronts. VINTUCINA ALNOSPLIT/ALNOVETRINA is
one such model featuring a shingle look in vintage grey and
a glass front in high-gloss ultra white. Fronts are available
not only in glass, but also in white, cashmere and magnolia white. Such design elements as glass doors elegantly
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crossed by a shingle band or segment shelves of shingle
wood with recessed illuminated base panels let cooking
and living areas appear to blend into one.
Unusual designs and top-quality materials are also to be
found in the ceramic kitchens by ALNO. Ceramic worktops and fronts are considered an innovation in kitchen
design. Together with dark and white colours, a grey
concrete effect colour known as oxide grigio was added
to the ALNOSTAR CERA range in 2012. Fronts, worktops
and side panelling of the ALNO brand's ceramic kitchens
comprise a three millimetre thick lining of ceramic material.
Clear, fresh, linear: ALNO introduced additional deep
blue matt and ultra white colours for the ALNOFINE
range in 2012. This range is now available in eight
colours. ALNOFINE also offers stylishly aesthetic living
with the EDITION Fly models for base units and tall units.
EDITION Fly stands out distinctly from conventional kitchen
architecture. Elements, wall units and sideboards appear
to float and make the kitchen seem lighter. ALNO has now
realized the next step in this concept and added tall units
to complement the base units. Floating wall units leave a
space between the units and the floor, giving the kitchen
a design-oriented spatial effect. ALNOFINE is also used
for the advertising motif of the brand campaign continued
from 2012.
The WELLMANN brand added eight new front colours and
the modern country-house range 453 Vilas to its product
range in the financial year 2012. With the additional colour
versions blue metallic, vesuvian brown in stone structure,
blue-grey, high-gloss ultra white and barrique oak-effect,
the complete WELLMANN range now comprises fronts in
92 colours. Due to the immense range of front colours,
designing a kitchen with WELLMANN becomes a completely new experience.
The country-house kitchens 453 Vilas in vintage look have
a foil-wrapped grooved front. These fronts come in two
colours: anthracite grey super matt and magnolia white
super matt. A metal D-handle in black vintage look has
been included in the WELLMANN range specifically for
the country-house kitchens. With these new additions,
WELLMANN continues its product philosophy with flexible, freely planned, functional kitchens for a trend-oriented
target group.
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The new products presented by the IMPULS brand in 2012
represent a broad spectrum of new options for individually
designed kitchens particularly for a younger target group
looking for a fresh, minimalist design. Among other things,
they include ten new front colours, four new ranges and an
enhanced modern countryhouse style. New front colours
include red, magnolia white matt, vesuvian grey, polar pine
in vintage rough-sawn look and high-gloss ultra white, as
well as others. The new ranges include fronts with the
following design:
•

Foil-wrapped front with vertical grooves

•

Foil-wrapped frame front with smooth frame surface

•

Smooth high-gloss lacquered front

•

Handleless high-gloss lacquered front

Enlarging the range of high-gloss lacquered fronts was
the aspect of greatest importance for international sales
of IMPULS kitchens. Such kitchens as range IP 7500 in
high-gloss lacquer with handleless front are in particular
demand for contract business, which makes this version
more attractive for the international kitchen market.
IMPULS kitchens have for many years set new standards
as regards delivery and service quality. Germany's fastest
kitchen is ready for use within a few days. Not more than
ten working days pass between receipt of the customer's
order and installation of the kitchen.
The ALNO Group has retained its fresh, youthful design
for kitchens by the entry-level brand PINO. The new colours
introduced in 2012 for the fronts were therefore attractive
and daring: denim blue, mango yellow, fango and a stainless steel look. Sonoma oak-effect, a modern trend colour
for living room furniture, was also added to the range.
The PINO brand's range for a young target group now
encompasses 43 different front colours. For the worktops,
PINO extended its range of surface decors to include the
colours natural sandstone, polar pine-effect and Sonoma
oak-effect.
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Trade fairs and exhibitions
Presentation of the ALNO, WELLMANN, IMPULS and
PINO brands at national and international trade fairs and
exhibitions is an important marketing tool in order to
represent the product, brand and design claim of ALNO
AG. ALNO predominantly uses presentations at regional
events, such as the annual "Kitchen Mile A30" exhibition
in North Rhine-Westphalia, for communication with the
trade public. Following conversion of the ALNO showroom
in Enger over a period of more than three months, ALNO
presented several new products and the new design concept VINTUCINA to trade visitors at the "Kitchen Mile A30"
in September 2012. For the first time, the new marketing
campaign was likewise presented to the trade during the
ALNO DESIGN TOUR 2012. VINTUCINA is one of the two
main motifs used for the new brand image.
After "Kitchen Mile A30", the presentation of different
kitchen concepts in combination with uniform marketing
instruments, such as use of the same decorative elements
or POS articles, was applied in identical form at individual
association fairs, various exhibitions and promotional
appearances in order to ensure an independent and uniform brand image for ALNO. This consistent and uniform
presentation is constantly being enhanced and will be
anchored more strongly in the market in future. The large
number of visitors at exhibition booths and the considerable interest displayed in ALNO confirm the positive echo
aroused by the new brand strategy.

Awards and distinctions
In the financial year 2012, ALNO AG once again won several leading awards for its product innovations. ALNO's
top award-winning product line ALNOSTAR CERA won
several internationally renowned design awards in 2012.
Design experts and consumers selected the ceramic
kitchen as the innovation of the year 2012 and awarded it
the "Golden Award – Best of the Best". This was the second
consecutive year in which ALNO won this distinction by
the Initiative LifeCare. The consumer initiative LifeCare has
set itself the goal of promoting product quality, innovation and design in order to tangibly improve the quality of
people's lives. The award "Kitchen innovation of the year"
is a mark of quality for particularly consumer-friendly products. The high-end line presented by ALNO in September
2012 convinced the jury in the categories functionality,
innovation, product benefits, design and sustainability.
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The quality of ALNO AG's product design was further
confirmed by the distinction "Focus Open 2012 in Silver"
for ALNOSTAR CERA at the competition "International
Design Awards Baden-Württemberg". ALNO's internationally acknowledged design quality is also confirmed by
the ceramic kitchen's nomination for the "German Design
Award 2013".

During a large brand gala in Berlin's Hotel Adlon on
22 November 2012, ALNO AG also received the "German
Standards Brand Award" from Dr. Florian Langenscheidt,
publisher of "Brands of the century". The award, an exquisite sculpture from the Fürstenberg porcelain manufactory,
was exclusively designed for the ceremony by the internationally acclaimed designer Mike Meiré. With the conferment of this award, ALNO has joined the exclusive circle of
around 250 German brands with a USP representative of
their product category. ALNO was selected "Brand of the
century" in the "Kitchen" category by an Advisory Board of
distinguished and high-ranking brand experts. "Brands of
the century – Lighthouses in the sea of brands" is a compendium published by Deutsche Standards EDITIONEN
which tells the story of Germany's central brands in words
as well as pictures and transforms them into an impressive
overall demonstration of Germany's economic strength.
In 2012, the ALNO brand also won the Superbrand
Germany Award 2012/2013. For the second time after
2009/2010, ALNO is once again one of the outstanding German brands in the categories brand dominance,
brand acceptance, customer loyalty, confidence and durability. The prominent jury of independent marketing experts
from academia, industry and the media evaluated a total of
340 brands. Of these, 30 brands ultimately won the distinction "Best German Brand". This international hallmark
serves as a standard for assessing strong brands and
gives the consumer guidance. Established in the United
Kingdom more than 15 years ago by leading experts in
marketing and communication, the "Superbrands" competition has now become an international institution.
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V. PRODUCTION

Pfullendor f
Kitchens of the high-quality ALNO brand are produced
individually in a single-shift operation at the ALNO Group's
headquarters in Pfullendorf. The facility also produces
carcase elements for the Group's other plants in Enger,
Brilon and Coswig. Output averaged 1,800 units per day
in 2012, corresponding to capacity utilization of 78%.
Delivery periods for the kitchen ranges manufactured in
Pfullendorf for the ALNO brand equal four weeks. This
does not apply for ranges with high-gloss lacquered
fronts. These models have a delivery period of six weeks.
The ALNO Group's manufacturing competence improved
decisively with the establishment of a production line for
glass fronts. Fronts finished with a glass or ceramic surface
are now produced on this new line. The glass or ceramic
panels are cut to size from larger panels on a CNC cutting table, either individually or in series, and subsequently
ground and polished together with the substrate. This special know-how and flexibility in producing standard carcase
parts (special surface, cutting to size, flexible manufacture
of parts) allows ALNO to meet individual customers' wishes
more effectively; they are also essential for the competent
manufacture of brand-related products.
Improved management of the production process for carcase components has made it possible to boost output
from formerly 4 million components per year to 10 million
components per year today. The PINO and IMPULS factories account for 5.5 million of these 10 million components.
The Pfullendorf location has invested in a modern waterborne painting system. As a result, ALNO will in future be
able to supply single units in all non-high-gloss RAL colours. A new paintshop has also been set up in Pfullendorf.
High-gloss lacquered parts can now be finished directly in
the plant itself in future. This investment has reduced the
delivery time for parts and kitchens by a full week.
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Enger

Brilon

The Enger location produces kitchens for the WELLMANN
brand which are characterized by high flexibility in planning.
WELLMANN kitchens are located in the upper and middle
price segments. In the market, the brand stands out through
its excellent value for money.

At the Brilon plant in North Rhine-Westphalia, 247 men and
women build kitchens for the IMPULS brand in two shifts.
Impuls Küchen GmbH again invested in specific assembly
areas in 2012, optimizing the flow of materials and improving management of the storage and retrieval processes in
the all-automatic high-bay warehouse. Components from
the Pfullendorf and Enger facilities are also delivered to the
production plant in Brilon.

With a workforce of 607 men and women, the plant in
Enger in the eastern part of Westphalia is the ALNO
Group's second largest production location. Working in
two shifts, the facility has an effective production capacity of more than 800 thousand units per year. Capacity
utilization in 2012 equalled 89%.
The changeover from WELLMANN "old" to WELLMANN
"new" with its completely new product range based on the
new 13 centimetre grid size was completed successfully in
the financial year 2012. The new grid and gap size makes
it possible to plan modern, functional and ergonomic kitchens more closely geared to meeting customers' needs.
The number of carcase components produced has also
been reduced and the complete production time reduced
from seven to six working days as a result of the changeover in the range. Production sequences at the plant in
Bad Salzuflen, which also belongs to the Enger location
and is characterized by its painting competence, were also
brought into line with the requirements of the new product
range in 2012.
First signs of success became apparent soon after the
changeover: delivery quality improved significantly as the
number of missing parts declined considerably. Stock
levels were reduced by 18% when several external
stores were closed, cutting costs by more than EUR 250
thousand. Instead of numerous storage racks along the
assembly lines, the company has now set up a central
"supermarket" and organized management of the assembly process according to the KANBAN principle.
To round off the reorganization, WELLMANN started packing its carcase parts in cardboard instead of plastic sheeting and invested in several new packing lines in 2012. The
packaging on the various production lines in the Enger
factory is now of the same standard as that of the ALNO
Group's other brands.
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This plant is characterized above all by extremely short
throughput times. Not more than ten working days pass
between receipt of the customer's order, production and
delivery of the kitchen. The quick delivery service SLS10
introduced in 2010 has been successively improved since
then and extended to include SLS5, reducing the throughput time to five days. In this way, the plant in Brilon sets
standards as regards delivery and service quality. First
steps were also taken in mid-2012 to optimize the assembly line for customized units by installing a new machine
for drilling and setting hardware.
New requirements have been imposed on the product as
the ALNO Group has stepped up its export activities with
IMPULS kitchens for international contract business. Customers in countries with special climatic demands, such as
in the Gulf region, can now order IMPULS kitchens with a
rear panel coated on both sides, for example.

Coswig
Founded in 1994, the Coswig facility with a workforce of
212 is one of the biggest employers in Saxony-Anhalt. In
2012, 140 men and women worked in production. The
PINO brand produced by this wholly owned subsidiary of
the ALNO Group is intended primarily for a young public
and located in the entry-level price segment. These lowbudget kitchens in fresh, modern colours are sold through
self-service and RTA departments in discount markets, as
well as in large furniture stores. The PINO brand's streamlined range rounds off the ALNO Group's large product
range at the bottom end of the price scale.

19.06.13 13:44

40

SINGLE-ENTIT Y AND GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT |

ECONOMIC REPORT

The ultramodern lean assembly plant with low vertical
range of manufacture operates in two shifts. Components
from Pfullendorf and Enger are also used in the kitchens
produced in Coswig. The main series produced by the
PINO brand are kitchen fronts with direct coating and
rounded edges, fronts finished with glossy direct coating
and fronts finished with high-gloss foil coating.
Capacity utilization at the location exceeded 90% in 2012,
with almost 100,000 customer orders delivered. 80% of
the kitchens produced in Coswig are sold on the German
market. End-to-end organization of the supply chains
makes for extremely short delivery periods in nationwide
sales. As a result, the company can warrant extremely
short delivery periods of between five and ten working
days for its trading partners. To further optimize the production process and modernize the machinery and plant,
the company additionally invested EUR 350 thousand in
a saw for cutting worktops to size in 2012.
In cooperation with the health insurance institution "IKK
Gesund Plus", the management launched the companywide healthcare project "Pino Fit – Mach mit" for the
Coswig location in the financial year 2012. The purpose
of this initiative is to promote preventive healthcare and
increase employees' satisfaction.

VI. SALES

Domestic sales
In Germany, the kitchens produced by the ALNO Group
are marketed through kitchen and furniture studios, selfservice and RTA stores, furniture stores, as well as through
architects and building companies especially in the case of
real estate projects. Most of the German trading partners
are members of purchasing associations.
Kitchen and furniture stores are served by a trained team
of field service staff in Germany, while merchandisers specializing in this field of business look after the self-service
and RTA stores; the associations are specifically handled
by our key account managers.
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The company tielsa GmbH set up in November 2012
sells kitchens based on the "moving kitchen" concept.
The "moving kitchen" concept is characterized by unique
functionality based on ergonomics and technology, as well
as by modern design. The concept was introduced as a
product innovation at the international furniture fair imm
cologne in January 2013 where it attracted a very high level
of interest among trade visitors and the media.

Foreign sales
The ALNO Group has trading partners in 64 countries. Our
foreign sales activities last year focused above all on acquiring new business in other countries. The aim is to boost
the foreign share of sales to over 40% in the medium term.
Through the subsidiary ALNO USA Corporation, New York,
set up in January 2012, ALNO AG was able to further
enlarge its network of dealers in the United States. Direct
sales to consumers were also established in 2012 through
ALNO USA Corporation's own studio in New York. The
new kitchen studio with an exhibition area of more than
200 square metres is located in the Architects & Designers Building in Midtown New York, in the direct vicinity of
well known premium brands in the kitchen, bathroom and
furniture industry. Officially opened on 21 May 2012, the
New York showroom is used for product presentations,
events and dealer training. In addition, the studio is also
used as a consulting centre for customers and project
developers in the property sector. With a volume of over
US$ 10 billion, the USA are the world's largest individual
kitchen market. ALNO's large product portfolio and excellent value for money meets US customers' need for quality
at affordable prices.
Set up in 1995, the premium dealer Built-In Kitchens Ltd.,
Sevenoaks, United Kingdom, which was acquired in April
2012 through the subsidiary ALNO U.K. Ltd., Dewsbury,
United Kingdom, predominantly sells high-quality ALNO
brand kitchens and also operates successfully in the
property sector in this important European kitchen market.
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After taking over the organization of commercial agents in
France in July 2012, Ixina, one of the leading French franchise chains specializing in kitchens, was won as a new
customer in early 2013. Sales revenue amounting to tens
of millions are expected from this business relationship in
the medium term as a result of the associated expansion
of ALNO AG's presence in the French market.
The joint venture ALNO China Holding Ltd, Hong Kong,
China, set up in November 2012 will also allow ALNO to
gain a stronger foothold in the growth markets of Asia.
ALNO's partner in the joint venture is a leading Chinese
importer of German fitted appliances and brand name
kitchens. It is planned to underpin the expansion in China
by developing the network of dealers and open new flagship stores in the metropolitan centres of Beijing, Shanghai,
Shenyang, Hangzhou and Chengdu.
Through its subsidiary ALNO Middle East, Dubai, United
Arab Emirates, ALNO AG has won the contract for prestigious major projects in Dubai and Istanbul. ALNO Middle East specializes in project business in the Gulf region,
for which it builds and sells kitchen furniture to regional
specifications.
In addition, the ALNO Group also operates through competent local field staff managed by the export department
at Group headquarters. Our foreign sales activities in 2012
once again focused above all on acquiring new partners in
other countries. The collaboration launched in 2011 with
strong new partners in Russia, Ukraine and Turkey, as
well as other countries, was continued in 2012. In Russia
and Ukraine, the company positioned the ALNO brand in
exclusive ALNO stores in 2012. Collaboration with partners
in the markets of Singapore, Indonesia, Thailand and India
was also stepped up in 2012.
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VII. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Product development by the ALNO Group is centrally
located in Pfullendorf. Development focuses on product
innovations and new applications which are systematically developed across all product lines for specific target
groups. Characterized by its large breadth, advanced
technologies and the high quality of the equipment, functionality and design, the range of products and services is
enhanced continually. Year after year, the ALNO Group's
product design and brand management win distinctions
in international competitions.
Since the ALNO brand is to be positioned more clearly in
the upper brand segment in future, the company intends to
systematically develop corresponding product innovations
and new applications based on market requirements and
the consumers' needs. The aim of product development
is to permanently develop ALNO as the company's core
brand with product and design innovations and thus document its superior market position. To this end, the company
will further develop its competence in glass, wood and
ceramic materials with new fronts, handle options and
functional elements. Competence in painting technology
is another hallmark of the ALNO brand.
With handleless kitchens, modernized basic front ranges,
newly developed unit systems, opening systems and functional systems in the standard ranges of the PINO, IMPULS
and WELLMANN brands, the company meets customers' needs in these entry-level and mid-level segments.
Extremely short delivery periods are a special characteristic
of the IMPULS and PINO brands: the industry's customary
delivery period of three to five weeks is definitely undershot
by the "ten-day kitchen".
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VIII. OBJECTIVES AND STR ATEGY

Sustainable competitiveness, future-oriented processes,
financial stability and profitable growth – these are the fundamental objectives of the Group's strategic reorientation.
All the ALNO Group's activities are guided by the principle
of offering the best possible quality and the best possible
service for the customer over the full bandwidth of our
product and brand portfolio.

Market objectives
Different customer needs are addressed through selected
sales channels. The Group supplies retailers of every kind,
from kitchen specialists through furniture mass merchandisers to RTA and self-service furniture markets. In addition, project customers are supplied with individual service
as required, from initial measurement for project-specific
quotations to delivery and installation of all the kitchen
components for a project exactly as scheduled. Attention
focuses on the fair value of sales and on exploiting competitive advantages through a brand portfolio with unique
features for each product range. The brand portfolio covers
roughly 80% of the price segments in the German market.
With a company history going back over 80 years, the
premium brand ALNO is the best known kitchen brand
and also enjoys the highest brand sympathy. What's more,
the ALNO brand is characterized by outstanding quality,
design and service, as well as innovation and exclusiveness (e.g. glass, ceramic materials). On this basis, it was
possible to increase the ALNO brand products' share of
sales by kitchen specialists in 2012. Our aim is to enhance
the fair value of the sold products and hence the quality of
revenues for all the ALNO Group's brands.
The historical price cuts were reversed in 2012 by raising
prices in keeping with the market in January, followed by an
unscheduled rise of 7% for Wellmann and 8% for ALNO in
August 2012. This was in line with the change of direction
in our sales strategy, away from a volume basis towards a
value basis with the focus on contribution margins.

In this context, the following measures were implemented
in 2012:
•

Adjustment of the sales organization in line with sales
channels and brands

•

Clear positioning of the brands in terms of prices,
and increasing product prices to a level in line with the
market

•

Redistributing sales to channels with higher value

•

Introduction of a value-based authorization logic for
block models

•

Linking performance incentives for sales staff to the
contribution margin

Investment expenses were cut through a more selective
approach to setting up display kitchens.
Our aim for export business is to achieve considerable
growth by making use of international relations, through
quality products "made in Germany" and by improving
customer service. Since the margins achieved with export
business are higher than those in Germany, new initiatives
were and are being launched with the aim of generating
significantly higher EBITDA from export business.
The export market is served by subsidiaries in the United
Kingdom, Switzerland, the Middle East and United States,
as well as through local sales staff in Belgium, France,
Italy, the Netherlands, Austria and Spain. High-volume
markets, such as France and the United Kingdom, will
be developed further and project business stepped up
by winning major projects. Major projects were successfully won in the Middle East and Asia in 2012. The following current initiatives, among others, lead to major
opportunities for developing export business: In China,
a joint venture agreement for the People's Republic of
China, Hong Kong and Macau was signed with WONDER
TREASURE HOLDINGS LIMITED on 23 November 2012.
ALNO has a holding of 45% in this joint venture. ALNO AG
will contribute know-how, transfer the network of dealers and grant transfer prices. The partner will contribute
liquidity and a knowledge of the markets.
In the USA, the first kitchen studio focussing on dealers
and project business was opened in New York City in May
2012. A second kitchen studio is being opened in Miami
in 2013. The US regional manager formerly worked for
Allmilmö and Poggenpohl and can draw on 30 years of
experience in the US kitchen industry.
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In France, a major new order was won with Ixina in
early 2013. It has a potential sales volume of up to
EUR 15 million until 2015.
In the United Kingdom, Built-In Kitchens Ltd., the main
sales partner for contract business, was integrated into
the Group in 2012. Since 2012, franchising business has
concentrated on profitable franchised dealers. The planned
turnaround was successfully realized by the subsidiary
ALNO U.K. Ltd. in 2012. Next steps in the United Kingdom include the establishment of a store concept ("Design
Centre"), the local procurement of capital and the integration of worktop suppliers.
Objectives for production
A concept for all the production locations of ALNO AG was
completed in 2012 to cover the next three years, taking
into account the development of products and volumes.
Within the framework of this target concept, focal production aspects and competences were defined for the
individual locations, in keeping with the respective brands
and their positioning. Factory layouts were developed for
all production locations and the necessary investments
calculated on this basis.
For the Pfullendorf location, implementation of the concept includes centralizing the production of worktops for
the ALNO and WELLMANN product lines, expanding the
coating expertise and developing the location as a Group
supplier for A-carcase elements.
The Enger location is to be developed as a manufacturer
of A-fronts and the production of parts from Bad Salzuflen gradually integrated into the plant. Investments for
Wellmann will concentrate on the production of C-parts
(connecting elements).
The Brilon and Coswig locations will retain their present
structure as assembly plants. Supplier concepts with
local partners there are stable and will remain unchanged.
Implementation of this concept will serve the following
purposes:
•

Centralizing the production of certain parts in order to
fully utilize production capacities and assure advantages
from mass production

•

Increase the value added in-house in order to reduce
supply costs and improve flexibility

•

Exchange best practices between the four plants in
order to improve the flow of materials and competences
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Objectives for distribution
Distribution and logistic services were reorganized in July
2012 in conjunction with the ALNO Group's strategic reorientation of operating business. After taking over all shares
in three operating companies of logismo GmbH, the former
provider of logistics services, the entire logistics sector of
the four production locations Pfullendorf, Enger, Brilon and
Coswig is now managed by ALNO AG itself. This organizational restructuring has improved competitiveness by integrating logistics into the sales and order handling process.
For all four production locations, ALNO now meets with the
changed market requirements in kitchen business. After
insourcing the logistics services, the aim is now to further
develop and combine logistics competence in production,
route planning and distribution.

Objectives for the administrative sector
Optimization and standardization of processes will
be continued in all administrative areas of the ALNO
Group, such as accounting / controlling, IT and Human
Resources, as well as in the holding company's central
functions.
In conjunction with implementation of the IT strategy, the
introduction of SAP R/3 in Pfullendorf is to be completed
by the end of 2014 for the entire process chain from order
handling, through sales, process data management,
finance and controlling, production, materials management and quality. Annual savings in the amount of roughly
EUR 700 thousand are to be realized per year from 2015
onwards through a host shutdown and comprehensive
SAP-based implementation of IT customer services and
IT supply chain services. In addition, the IT strategy also
includes Group-wide consolidation of wide-area company
networks which was to a large extent completed in 2012.
From 2013 onwards, this will permit savings of around
EUR 100 thousand per year. Infrastructure services were
consolidated in 2012 and now concentrate on a small
number of service providers. This will lead to savings of
around EUR 200 thousand per year from 2013 onwards.
Elimination of a management level and a generally leaner
sales organization will permit annual savings in the amount
of roughly EUR 1 million in personnel costs from 2013
onwards.
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IX. RESULTS OF OPER ATIONS, NET ASSETS AND
LIQUIDIT Y

General development of business
The income statement for the ALNO Group (according to
International Financial Reporting Standards) is based on
the nature of expense method.
The ALNO Group's performance improved significantly in
the period under review. This is essentially attributable to
the restructuring agreement III signed in July 2012 and
the realization of a price rise for customers. Sales revenue
declined marginally in comparison to the previous year, as
sales with low margins were consciously avoided in order
to improve the quality of earnings.

Consolidated revenues totalled EUR 446.3 million in the
financial year 2012, a drop of 1.4% over the previous
year's total of EUR 452.8 million.
Domestic revenue fell 2.4% to EUR 318.5 million. In order
to improve the quality of earnings, sales with low margins
were consciously avoided, leading to a lower sales volume.
The price rise implemented in 2012, particularly for ALNO
and WELLMANN, caused net proceeds per unit to improve
within the year and consequently resulted in higher gross
profit.
Export business increased in 2012. Sales revenue rose
1.1% to EUR 127.8 million. The export quota as a whole
consequently rose from 27.9% to 28.6%.

Sales and earnings
The following table sets out the key figures for the years
2010 to 2012.

in '000 EUR

2012

2011

2010

446,258

452,810

467,297

396

882

– 1,993

Cost of materials

257,948

286,398

271,907

Gross profit

188,706

167,294

193,397

42.3%

36.9%

41.4%

9,798

6,270

7,062

Personnel expenses

97,204

98,529

97,900

Other operating expenses

84,376

94,169

92,611

2,965

– 24,338

8,962

EBITDA

13,959

5,204

986

Write-downs

15,850

15,902

12,104

2,768

0

0

877

– 10,698

– 11,118

Financial result

– 2,094

– 14,518

– 1,060

Profit/loss before income taxes (EBT)

– 1,217

– 25,216

– 12,178

Sales revenue
Changes in inventories and capitalized goods and services
for own account

Gross profit margin (in % of sales revenue)
Other operating income

Income (expense) due to reorganization (–/+)

Write-ups
Operating result (EBIT)

RZ_ALNO_13001_GB_2012_Inhalt_final_ENG.indd 44

19.06.13 13:44

SINGLE-ENTIT Y AND GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT |

ECONOMIC REPORT

45

Sales revenue in Germany and abroad developed
as follows:

Year

Germany
Change
'000 EUR in '000 EUR

Abroad
Change
'000 EUR in '000 EUR

in %

in %

132,677

Export ratio
in %

Total
'000 EUR

28.4

467,297

2010

334,620

2011

326,397

– 8,223

– 2.5

126,413

– 6,264

– 4.7

27.9

452,810

2012

318,458

– 7,939

– 2.4

127,800

1,387

1.1

28.7

446,258

Foreign sales as a whole developed as follows:

Change

thereof
ATG

Change

Other foreign
countries

Total exports

Total Europe

Year

'000 EUR

'000 EUR

2010

132,677

108,089

2011

126,413

105,456

– 2,633

– 2.4

25,098

– 2,583

– 9.3

2012

127,800

107,306

1,850

1.8

31,850

6,752

26.9

in '000
EUR

in %

in '000
EUR

in %

27,681

Changes in inventories and capitalized goods and services
for own account totalled EUR 0.4 million as compared to
EUR 0.9 million in the same period in the previous year.
Due to the lower sales volume and reductions in suppliers'
prices, the cost of materials declined from EUR 286.4 million to EUR 257.9 million. At 57.8%, the cost of materials
in relation to total sales was consequently well below the
previous year's level of 63.1%. On a Group basis, gross
profit increased from EUR 167.3 million to EUR 188.7 million, causing the gross profit margin to rise from 36.9%
to 42.3%. This development was due above all to the
higher prices imposed within the year for the ALNO and
WELLMANN brands.
Other operating income increased from EUR 6.3 million
to EUR 9.8 million due above all to the reversal of provisions, as well as to derecognition of liabilities. Personnel
expenses fell from EUR 98.5 million in the previous year
to EUR 97.2 million, due mainly to the large allocation
which was made to the provision for employee termination payments in the previous year. At 21.8%, the share
of personnel expenses in relation to total sales therefore
remained almost at the previous year's level of 21.7%.
Other operating expenses declined from EUR 94.2 million
to EUR 84.4 million due essentially to lower sales commissions as a result of the lower sales volume and lower
expenses for temporary staff and advertising costs.
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'000 EUR

Change
in '000
EUR

in %

20,957

– 3,631

– 14.8

20,494

– 463

– 2.2

'000 EUR
24,588

The negative result from reorganization in the amount of
EUR 3.0 million was primarily attributable to the formation
of a new provision for a social plan for the planned layoffs at the Wellmann plant in Enger. The previous year's
reorganization profit of EUR 24.3 million was essentially
attributable to the fact that Comco Holding AG, Nidau,
Switzerland, took over trade accounts payable by the
ALNO Group in the amount of EUR 25.0 million, for which
repayment was subsequently waived.
EBITDA rose from EUR 5.2 million in the previous year to
EUR 14.0 million. This made it possible to realize the forecast made in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements 2011 that Group EBITDA would improve over
the previous year.
Write-downs on intangible assets, property, plant and
equipment remained at the previous year's level of EUR
15.9 million. Amortization and depreciation rose from
EUR 11.6 million to EUR 12.5 million, while impairment
losses declined from EUR 4.3 million to EUR 3.4 million.
In addition, a property appraisal resulted in write-ups on
property and buildings in the amount of EUR 2.5 million for
the Pfullendorf location, as well as in the amount of EUR
0.3 million for a foreign subsidiary.
As a result, EBIT improved from EUR -10.7 million in the
previous year to EUR 0.9 million now.
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Financial performance improved considerably, from EUR
-14.5 million in the previous year to EUR -2.1 million.
Financial income increased significantly, from EUR 0.1 million to EUR 9.0 million, due to the "Loan waiver, banks"
in the amount of EUR 10.7 million which was recognized
as income in accordance with the restructuring agreement III of 11 July 2012. This was offset by measurement
of the associated earn-out certifi cate in the amount
of EUR –1.8 million. Financial expenses fell slightly from
EUR 11.2 million to EUR 10.8 million. The EUR 3.1
million reduction in expense from investments measured
at equity exclusively concerns the company ALNO Middle East FZCO, Dubai, UAE, which was operated as an
associate until 31 December 2012.

EBT consequently rose sharply from EUR -25.2 million in
the previous year to EUR -1.2 million now.
The consolidated net loss consequently improved from
EUR –25.6 million in the previous year to EUR –1.4 million. This resulted in earnings per share of EUR –0.05 as
compared to EUR –1.04 in the previous year.
The following comparison of the first and second sixmonth periods also provides an insight into the earnings
situation in 2012.

Total year
2012

1.7.2012
to 31.12.2012

1.1.2012
to 30.6.2012

Difference per
half-year

446,258

215,392

230,866

– 15,474

396

– 623

1,019

– 1,642

Cost of materials

257,948

118,554

139,394

– 20,840

Gross profit

188,706

96,215

92,491

3,724

42.3%

44.7%

40.1%

9,798

4,428

5,370

– 942

Personnel expenses

97,204

45,900

51,304

– 5,404

Other operating expenses

84,376

43,212

41,164

2,048

Result from reorganization

2,965

2,622

343

2,279

13,959

8,909

5,050

3,859

2,768

1,184

1,584

– 400

15,850

7,826

8,024

– 198

877

2,267

– 1,390

3,657

in '000 EUR
Sales revenue
Changes in inventories and capitalized goods and services
for own account

Gross profit margin
Other operating income

EBITDA
Write-ups
Write-downs
EBIT
Financial result

– 2,094

4,275

-6,369

10,644

EBT

– 1,217

6,542

– 7,759

14,301

Comparing the two halves of 2012 shows that sales revenue developed less strongly in the second half of the year.
Gross profit, on the other hand, was distinctly higher than
in the first half of the year. This is mainly due to special
bonuses in the amount of EUR 4.0 million for the supplier Bauknecht Hausgeräte GmbH, Stuttgart, permitted
under the restructuring agreement III. The banks' waiver
for repayment of EUR 10.7 million, which is reflected in the
financial result, was effected in the second half of the year.
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IMPULS SEGMENT

The earnings situation of the ALNO Group's individual
segments (before consolidation) is outlined below.

2012
million
EUR

ALNO SEGMENT

2012
million
EUR

ECONOMIC REPORT

Change
2011
over prev.
million EUR year, million
EUR

Change
over prev.
year in %

Change
2011
over prev.
million EUR year, million
EUR

Change
over prev.
year in %

Net revenue

111.3

116.1

– 4.8

– 4.1

Gross profit

42.6

40.6

2.0

4.9

Gross profit
in %

38.3

35.0

EBITDA

11.5

7.5

4.0

53.3

8.8

4.7

4.1

87.2

Net revenue

107.2

98.4

8.8

8.9

Gross profit

48.6

40.4

8.2

20.3

EBIT

Gross profit
in %

45.2

41.1

EBITDA

– 10.3

– 21.7

11.4

52.5

EBIT

– 11.8

– 26.8

15.0

56.0

The subsidiary Impuls Küchen GmbH in Brilon is positioned
in the lower middle price segment and reported lower sales
in the amount of EUR 111.3 million, a drop of EUR 4.8
million or 4.1 %. At the same time, gross profit was EUR
2.0 million or 4.9 % higher, thus increasing the gross profit
margin to 38.3% or 3.3 percentage points above the previous year's level. Due to the higher gross profit, EBITDA
rose by EUR 4.0 million or 53.3% to EUR 11.5 million.
Personnel expenses remained almost unchanged at the
previous year's level. Other operating expenses fell 7.2%
to EUR 21.7 million as a result of lower sales expenses.

The ALNO segment comprises ALNO AG in Pfullendorf
which produces brand name kitchens for the upper and
middle price range at the Pfullendorf location.
The volume of sales by ALNO AG was EUR 8.8 million
higher (+8.9%) than in the previous year. The rise in net
sales revenue is mainly due to the increase in prices during
the year and to the avoidance of low-margin sales, which
also had a positive impact on gross profit.
EBITDA rose from EUR –21.7 million to EUR –10.3 million,
mainly as a result of the price rise and the avoidance of
low-margin sales. Personnel expenses declined by EUR
2.2 million to EUR 39.0 million, above all as a result of
the previous year's high allocation to the provision for
employee termination payments. At EUR 54.1 million,
other operating expenses were EUR 23.6 million or 30.3%
lower than in the previous year. The previous year's value
includes write-downs on accounts receivable from affiliated companies in the amount of EUR 27.9 million, as well
as changes in the structure of intra-Group set-offs.

PINO SEGMENT

2012
million
EUR

Change
2011
over prev.
million EUR year, million
EUR

Change
over prev.
year in %

Net revenue

89.3

95.2

– 5.9

– 6.2

Gross profit

32.0

27.4

4.6

16.8

Gross profit
in %

35.8

28.8

EBITDA

7.7

2.9

4.8

165.5

EBIT

5.4

0.7

4.7

671.4

The PINO segment encompasses pino Küchen GmbH
in Coswig (Anhalt) which produces kitchens in the lower
price range. In the financial year 2012, PINO posted
sales revenue of EUR 89.3 million, a drop of EUR 5.9
million or 6.2%. Gross profit simultaneously rose 16.8%
to EUR 32.0 million, due essentially to the positive
effect of changes in range structure, as well as supplier
bonuses which had been granted additionally. EBITDA
was consequently EUR 4.8 million higher, rising from EUR
2.9 million to EUR 7.7 million.
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Net assets

WELLMANN SEGMENT

2012
million
EUR

Change
2011
over prev.
million EUR year, million
EUR

Change
over prev.
year in %

Net revenue

127.5

135.7

– 8.2

– 6.0

Gross profit

54.8

51.7

3.1

6.0

Gross profit
in %

43.0

38.1

EBITDA

35.0

– 12.6

47.6

377.8

EBIT

28.7

– 18.3

47.0

256.8

The WELLMANN segment, which essentially comprises
the company Gustav Wellmann GmbH & Co. KG in Enger,
produces kitchens for the middle to upper price range. The
company reported a drop of EUR 8.2 million or 6.0% in
sales revenue, to EUR 127.5 million. The gross profit margin
rose from 38.1% to 43.0% as a result of the increase in
prices during the year, causing the gross profit to rise by
6.0% to EUR 54.8 million. At EUR 28.3 million, personnel expenses were slightly lower than in the previous year.
Other operating expenses fell by EUR 7.5 million to EUR
34.4 million. EBITDA was EUR 47.6 million higher at EUR
35.0 million, due primarily to other operating income from
a waiver by ALNO AG for repayment of loans receivable in
the amount of EUR 36.0 million.
ATG SEGMENT

The ATG segment comprises the subsidiaries in the United
Kingdom, Switzerland, the USA and Dubai, UAE, as well
as the joint venture in China. Sales revenue increased from
EUR 25.1 million in the previous year to EUR 31.9 million,
due above all to higher sales by ALNO UK. EBITDA fell
from EUR 0.1 million in the previous year to EUR –5.1
million as a result of the changeover to double invoicing
and the associated intra-Group acquisitions of customer
bases.
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As at 31 December 2012, the ALNO Group's total assets
of EUR 168.3 million had barely changed in the relation to
the previous year's total of EUR 159.7 million.
Non-current assets worth EUR 89.2 million are EUR 2.8
million higher than in the previous year. Intangible assets
essentially increased by EUR 2.7 million to EUR 8.7 million
as a result of the goodwill generated by acquisition of the
Built-In company by ALNO UK. Property, plant and equipment increased by EUR 2.2 million or 3.0%, mainly due
to write-ups on property and buildings. Both investments
measured at equity and non-current financial receivables,
on the other hand, declined by EUR 1.1 million in total. The
company ALNO Middle East FZCO, Dubai, UAE, which
was formerly measured at equity, was fully consolidated
for the first time as at 31 December 2012.
Current assets rose by 8.0% from EUR 73.2 million to
EUR 79.0 million. Better stock management and the
lower number of units sold resulted in a 5.7% reduction in
inventories, to EUR 24.5 million. Current trade accounts
receivable rose by EUR 4.7 million to EUR 44.8 million,
due to first-time consolidation and lower utilization of
the factoring volume while gross receivables by Impuls,
pino and Wellmann remained largely unchanged. At EUR
4.4 million, current other assets remained almost at the
previous year's level of EUR 4.9 million.
On the liabilities side, Group equity totalled EUR -7.5 million as compared to EUR -73.3 million as at 31 December
2011. As a result of the simplified capital reduction to cover
losses and the subsequent capital increase, subscribed
capital rose from EUR 67.8 million to EUR 70.1 million
in the period under review; at the same time, the capital
reserve was reduced from EUR 45.9 million to EUR 3.3
million. The sum of EUR 0.5 million was transferred from
the balance sheet profit of ALNO AG to the legal reserve.
The accumulated net income was essentially determined
by the capital reduction, under which the existing loss
carryforwards were set off against capital reserves and
subscribed capital in the amount of EUR 86.6 million. The
waiver of repayment totalling EUR 25.0 million effected in
January 2012 by a major shareholder in accordance with
the restructuring agreement II of spring 2011 also had a
positive effect on the accumulated net income.
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Non-current liabilities at the end of 2012 totalled EUR 27.6
million as compared to EUR 32.8 million in the previous
year. This decline is essentially attributable to the reduction in non-current financial liabilities following the capital
increase associated with restructuring agreement III.
Current liabilities decreased from EUR 200.2 million to EUR
148.1 million. This essentially includes repayment of the
current financial liabilities following the capital increase,
resulting in a drop of EUR 84.2 million in current financial liabilities. On the other hand, trade accounts payable
increased by EUR 37.5 million, due above all to the new
terms of payment agreed with Bauknecht Hausgeräte
GmbH, Stuttgart, in accordance with restructuring agreement III.

Liquidity and financial position
The net cash flow for operating activities shows a cash
inflow of EUR 34.4 million in the year under review (previous
year: cash outflow of EUR –3.3 million). This major increase
is due above all to the considerably lower consolidated
loss and the considerable reduction in income without
impact on the cash flow, which had been characterized in
the previous year by a waiver of repayment of EUR 25.0
million. Investment activities resulted in a cash outflow of
EUR 14.7 million in the year under review, as compared
to EUR 17.1 million in the previous year. This decrease
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is essentially attributable to lower investments in booth
design and installation of display kitchens. The EUR 36.0
million reduction in cash flow from financing activities is
essentially due to the EUR 56.1 million higher repayment
of financial and current account liabilities, which was offset
by the EUR 20.1 million increase in funds resulting from
the capital increase in 2012. As regards the measures to
assure the company's continuation as a going concern
and to safeguard liquidity, we refer to the report on events
after the reporting period and to the information in the
Notes to the consolidated financial statements regarding
the going concern in the section B.1. "Basis for preparation of the financial statements".
DEVELOPMENT OF NET DEBT

The net amount of debt owed by the ALNO Group (other
financial liabilities and shareholder loans minus liquid
assets) was significantly lower as per 31 December 2012,
namely by EUR 93.8 million, than on the previous year's
closing date. It now totalled only EUR 13.9 million as
compared to EUR 107.7 as per 31 December 2011. This
successful development is basically due to the repayment
of debts including a waiver of repayment by the syndicate
banks in accordance with restructuring agreement III,
using funds from the capital increase, and a shareholder's
waiver of repayment of EUR 25.0 million in accordance
with restructuring agreement II.

31.12.2012
in '000 EUR

31.12.2011
in '000 EUR

Change
in '000 EUR

Change
in %

4,027

10,482

– 6,455

– 61.6

15,284

99,447

– 84,163

– 84.6

19,311

109,929

– 90,618

– 82.4

– 5,402

– 2,243

– 3,159

140.8

13,909

107,686

– 93,777

– 87.1

Shareholder loans and other financial liabilities
Non-current
Current

Minus liquid assets
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X. ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR ALNO AG
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE GERMAN COMMERCIAL
CODE (HGB)

Income statement for ALNO AG in accordance
with the annual financial statements pursuant to
the German Commercial Code (HGB) for 2012

in '000 EUR

2012

2011

107,172

98,373

571

370

32,019

32,781

139,762

131,524

Cost of materials

59,192

58,276

Personnel expenses

39,379

41,379

Other operating expenses and other taxes

53,641

79,689

– 12,450

– 47,820

11,783

5,711

Sales revenue
Changes in inventories and capitalized goods and services for own account
Other operating income
Total operating revenues

EBITDA
Write-downs
EBIT

– 24,233

– 53,531

Financial result

35,406

– 1,776

EBT

11,173

– 55,307

– 924

24,142

– 55

0

10,194

– 31,165

Extraordinary result
Taxes on income
Net profit (previous year: net loss)

ALNO AG boosted its sales revenue by 8.9% in the financial year 2012. Sales revenue in Germany rose by 12.4%,
with a smaller rise of 2.3% in foreign sales. Net proceeds
per unit increased from roughly EUR 209 to EUR 238.

the previous year. This is mainly due to the fact that the
previous year's value includes write-downs on accounts
receivable from affiliated companies in the amount of
EUR 27.9 million which were not incurred in 2012.

The gross profit quota in the annual financial statements
of ALNO AG in accordance with the German Commercial
Code (HGB) increased significantly in the financial year
2012, rising by 4.1 percentage points to 45.1% (previous year: 41.0%).This is mainly due to the 8% increase in
prices during the year and the avoidance of low-margin
sales. The lower rise in high-margin foreign business
resulted in a slightly poorer mixed ratio.

Financial performance was significantly higher than in the
previous year, with a rise of EUR 37.2 million. This is due
to a waiver of repayment effected by a major shareholder
in January 2012 for EUR 25.0 million in accordance with
the restructuring agreement II of spring 2011, as well as the
banks' waiver of repayment of EUR 9.1 million in accordance
with the restructuring agreement III dated 11 July 2012.

Other operating income was down 2.3% to EUR 32.0 million. Personnel expenses fell 4.8% to EUR 39.4 million.
This is due above all to the previous year's high allocation
to the provision for employee termination payments. At
EUR 53.6 million, other operating expenses and other
taxes were down EUR 26.0 million or 32.7% in relation to
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The extraordinary result deteriorated by EUR 25.1 million, from EUR 24.1 million in the previous year to
EUR –0.9 million. In the financial year 2011, the extraordinary result had included extraordinary income in the amount
of EUR 25.0 million from derecognizing liabilities following
a waiver of repayment by Comco Holding AG, Nidau,
Switzerland.
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Balance sheet of ALNO AG in accordance
with the annual financial statements pursuant
to the German Commercial Code (HGB) as at
31 December 2012

in '000 EUR

31.12.2012

31.12.2011

5,667

6,384

16,769

15,237

101,479

106,482

123,915

128,103

ASSETS
Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Financial assets

Current assets
8,821

9,282

Receivables and other assets

Inventories

28,959

31,126

Cash in hand, bank balances

1,723

83

39,503

40,491

Deferred items

627

416

Excess of plan assets over pension liabilities

197

217

164,242

169,227

70,095

67,847

3,258

45,916

462

0

8,787

– 87,554

LIABILITIES
Shareholders' equity
Subscribed capital
Capital reserve
Legal reserve
Net loss for the year

82,602

26,209

Provisions

24,556

29,093

Other liabilities

57,084

113,925

164,242

169,227

Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment remain at
the previous year's level.
The change in financial assets is essentially due to devaluation of the holding in ALNO Middle East FZCO, Dubai, UAE,
in the amount of EUR 5.9 million.
Inventories are down slightly due to improvements in stock
management and the reduction in number of units sold.
Accounts receivable and other assets have decreased
slightly in relation to the previous year.
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The equity ratio has increased from 15.5% in the previous
year to 50.3%. Shareholders' equity was EUR 56.4 million
higher at EUR 82.6 million. This rise is due not only to the
capital increase of EUR 46.2 million, but also to the net
profit of EUR 10.2 million.
Provisions declined by EUR 4.5 million to EUR 24.6 million,
due above all to the reversal of provisions totalling EUR 3.1
million. The major decrease in liabilities is essentially due
to the repayment of accounts payable to banks, including
the banks' waiver of repayment.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Events after the reporting period
Changes in the Board of Management
On 13 January 2013, Ralph Bestgen was appointed
member of the Board of Management effective 1 February 2013, with responsibility for sales. Mr. Bestgen was a
long-standing member of the management of Bauknecht
Hausgeräte GmbH, Stuttgart, most recently serving as
chairman of the management.
By resolution of 21 February and 10 April 2013, Manfred
Scholz was appointed member of the Board of Management effective 29 April 2013, with responsibility for production, purchasing and logistics. Mr. Scholz can look back on
many years of international management experience, as
well as extensive know-how in the field of lean company
management and improving supply chain processes. From
2000 onwards, he worked for the American Steelcase
Group in Rosenheim, most recently as Vice President
Operations EMEA.
The Board of Management of ALNO currently comprises
Max Müller (Chief Executive Officer), Ipek Demirtas (CFO),
Elmar Duffner (COO) and Ralph Bestgen (CSO), as well
as Manfred Scholz (COO) from 29 April 2013 onwards.

Agreement reached with Metalworkers Union
(IG Metall) at the Enger location
ALNO AG has reached a long-term agreement with the
Metalworkers Union (IG Metall) safeguarding jobs at the
Enger plant of Gustav Wellmann GmbH & Co. KG in Westphalia. These measures conclude the personnel measures
to be undertaken by the ALNO Group in conjunction with
the restructuring. The overall agreement reached includes a
collective agreement for the company, a settlement of conflicting interests and social plan, as well as the setting-up of
a transfer company. In July 2012, the district leadership of
the Metalworkers Union in Baden-Württemberg and North
Rhine-Westphalia agreed to a restructuring contribution as
part of the financial and capitalization concept to safeguard
jobs in the long term.

Expansion of the US presence
In the course of its expansion in the US market, ALNO AG
opened a new showroom in Miami, Florida, USA, in May
2013. Since early 2012, ALNO has been represented in
the USA through its own subsidiary and a company-owned
kitchen studio in New York.
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Distinctions
ALNOSTAR CERA won the German Design Council's
internationally acclaimed "Interior Innovation Award –
Selection 2013" for its special design quality. Innovative
ideas and outstanding design are rewarded by the German
Design Council with its "Interior Innovation Award". The
highly innovative nature of VINTUCINA ALNOSPLIT/ALNOVETRINA was distinguished in the category "Winner 2013".
Impuls Küchen GmbH, Brilon, was awarded the certificate "Family-friendly company" ("Familienfreundliches
Unternehmen") by the economic development company
"Wirtschaftsförderungsgesellschaft Hochsauerlandkreis".
The distinction rewards the kitchen manufacturer's manifold activities to reconcile private and working life at its
location in Brilon.
ALNO AG is one of Germany's 15 top employers in the
consumer goods sector. According to an independent
study "Best employers" undertaken by the news journal
FOCUS in collaboration with the career network XING,
ALNO is the undisputed No. 1 among manufacturers of
kitchen furniture. Around 13,000 employees in a total of
17 different sectors were interviewed for this study, which
was recently published. They were asked to assess such
categories as development opportunities, salary, job and
working hours. The survey included employees of all age
groups, sectors and hierarchy levels.

Capitalization and financial concept 2013
BOND ISSUE

To finance the company's further strategy, the Board of
Management of ALNO AG decided to issue a so-called
"SME bond" on the Entry Standard of the German Stock
Exchange in Frankfurt. The bond has a volume of up to
EUR 45 million and a term of five years. A cash inflow is
expected up to the end of May 2013.
Following initial talks with potential investors, the Board
of Management is confident that the issue can be placed
completely. The proceeds of the issue will be used, among
other things, to implement the planned growth strategy,
especially in other countries. Selective company acquisitions are planned in Germany and abroad, in addition to
organic growth. The proceeds of the issue will also be
used to finance planned investments in property, plant
and equipment, as well as current assets, and to reduce
overdue trade liabilities.
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MOR ATORIUM BY COMCO HOLDING AG

AGREEMENT ON THE RESCHEDULING OF

In an agreement dated 21 December 2012 and supplement dated 28 January 2013, the company Comco
Holding AG, Nidau/Switzerland, agreed to defer repayment by the ALNO Group of overdue accounts payable
in the amount of EUR 8.5 million as at the closing date
until 30 April 2013. In the first quarter of 2013, Comco
Holding AG granted ALNO AG four further loans totalling
EUR 4.8 million with a fixed term until 30 April 2013 and
an interest rate of 6.5% p.a. to enhance liquidity. As at 31
March 2013, the ALNO Group owed Comco Holding AG
a total of EUR 13.3 million in loans granted and deferred
accounts receivable.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The accounts payable to Comco Holding AG were
rescheduled under the agreement outlined below on the
rescheduling of accounts payable dated 11 April 2013.
MOR ATORIUM BY BAUKNECHT HAUSGER ÄTE GMBH

In an agreement dated 18 December 2012 and supplement dated 28 January 2013, the company Bauknecht
Hausgeräte GmbH, Stuttgart, promised to defer repayment by the ALNO Group of the overdue trade accounts
payable in force as at the closing date. The accounts
payable which were covered by this moratorium totalled
a maximum of EUR 40.8 million as at 28 February 2013,
and were successively reduced to EUR 37.8 million as at
1 March 2013 and EUR 32.8 million as at 1 April 2013.
Deferral of the total EUR 32.8 million outstanding and due
was subsequently agreed until 30 April 2013.
This moratorium was superseded by the following agreement on the rescheduling of accounts payable dated
11 April 2013.

53

Under this agreement, the following points were agreed
by and between Bauknecht Hausgeräte GmbH, Stuttgart,
Comco Holding AG, Nidau/Switzerland and the ALNO
Group:
(1) Bauknecht Hausgeräte GmbH grants ALNO AG a loan
in the amount of EUR 30.0 million. This loan is granted
in the form of rescheduling existing, overdue liabilities of
the ALNO Group for deliveries by Bauknecht Hausgeräte
GmbH. The loan has a fixed term until 30 June 2017 and
accrues interest at a rate of 6.5% p.a. Of this loan, EUR
10.0 million are due for repayment on 30 September 2014.
The right to ordinary termination of the loan agreement
has been excluded. However, Bauknecht Hausgeräte
GmbH can terminate the loan agreement prematurely if the
delivery agreement with the ALNO Group is terminated for
good cause or if ALNO AG is not able to realize gross proceeds of at least EUR 40.0 million from the bond issue by
30 May 2013.
In addition, Bauknecht Hausgeräte GmbH will grant ALNO
AG up to EUR 10.0 million to bolster liquidity until 30 April
2013, as well as up to EUR 5.0 million from 1 May to
1 July 2013. At the same time, Bauknecht Hausgeräte
GmbH and ALNO AG agreed to reduce the time allowed
for payment under the delivery agreement with Bauknecht
to the market's customary period of 60 days, backdated
to 15 March 2013.
(2) Comco Holding AG grants ALNO a loan in the amount
of EUR 3.7 million, as well as a loan of EUR 4.8 million for
Wellmann KG. These new loans consequently replace the
existing accounts payable to Comco Holding AG by ALNO
AG and Wellmann KG. The loans have been granted with a
term of one year until 11 April 2014 and accrue interest at
a rate of 6.5% p.a. Comco Holding AG's right to ordinary
termination of the loan agreements has been excluded.
In addition, the fixed terms of the loans granted to ALNO
AG by Comco Holding in the first quarter of 2013 and
totalling EUR 4.8 million have been extended. The loans
can be terminated with 4 weeks' notice effective at the
end of a month, but not earlier than 31 December 2013.
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RISKS / OPPORTUNITIES AND FUTURE PERSPECTIVES

FACTORING AGREEMENT, ALNO UK

Under an agreement dated 8 April 2013, the company
Centric SPV 1 Limited, Surrey/United Kingdom, granted
the subsidiary ALNO UK Ltd., Dewsbury/United Kingdom,
a factoring line of up to GBP 4.0 million for a term of
36 months.

Risks / opportunities and future
perspectives

I. OPPORTUNIT Y AND RISK REPORT
OTHER FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The capitalization and financial concept 2013 also provides for new credit lines. The Board of Management presumes that, following implementation of the bond issue
with a minimum volume of EUR 40.0 million as outlined
above, new credit lines in the amount of EUR 15.0 million
can be agreed by the end of May 2013 with banks previously not involved in the financing.
It is also planned to increase the ALNO Group's liquidity by
selling accounts receivable by ALNO AG in the amount of
roughly EUR 7.0 million which were previously not included
in the factoring.

Development of sales and new orders,
first quar ter of 2013
Sales revenue in the first quarter of 2013 remained below
the previous year's level. This trend is in line with the corporate planning, which provides for a focus on sales with
high margins. However, orders received fell short of the
planned level in the first quarter of 2013. The company still
expects to meet the planned sales targets for the financial
year 2013, with higher revenues than in the previous year.

Going concern
Continuation of the business activities of ALNO AG and
the ALNO Group presupposes that the capitalization and
financial concept outlined above for 2013, i.e. issuance
of a bond with a volume of at least EUR 40.0 million, taking out new credit lines in the amount of EUR 15.0 million and increasing the ALNO Group's factoring volume
with a liquidity effect of roughly EUR 7.0 million, can be
implemented in full and in good time, as planned, and
that strict liquidity management continues to apply. The
assumptions made in corporate planning, particularly
with regard to sales and profit targets, must also apply
as planned.
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Risk repor t
RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

To undertake and safeguard its business operations, the
ALNO Group has set up systems and procedures, as well
as committees allowing the Board of Management to recognize risks jeopardizing the company's existence at an
early stage. Risks are identified, evaluated, managed and
monitored in the ALNO Group on the basis of a Groupwide system ensuring timely detection and monitoring
of risks. Dealing with risks successfully is based on the
objective of achieving a fair balance between opportunities and risks.
The ALNO Group's risk management is based on controlling risks on an operational level, an internal monitoring
system for timely detection of risks jeopardizing its survival,
strategic controlling of the participating interests and controlling of all reorganization measures.
All risks are described in a well structured manner within
the framework of the ALNO Group's risk controlling, and
are evaluated according to their economic impact and probability of occurrence. For management of the risks, plans of
action are defined for all risks. The implementation of these
measures is monitored by an ongoing operational controlling process. Risks and measures are updated permanently.
This places all risk data throughout the Group on the same
quality level, making them transparent and reproducible for
the management and for the employees affected.
Operational risk controlling is accompanied by a comprehensive reporting system ensuring a continuous supply
of information for the Board of Management. If required
for timely detection of risks, the Board of Management
receives corresponding ad-hoc information through this
reporting system.
Strategic controlling of participating interests takes account
of risks and opportunities on the basis of the market analyses and benchmarking against competitors as the basis
for decisions by the management. In addition, controlling
of participating interests also monitors the achievement of
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business targets and manages the Group companies on
the basis of standard indicators. In this way, this system
establishes a basis permitting the timely detection and
initiation of measures to minimize risks.
All M&A and reorganization measures are planned with
regard to the activities for implementation, deadlines,
effort and benefits, and monitored by an ongoing controlling process.
Risks due to redundancies, inefficiencies or bottlenecks
in the flow of operations must be identifiable within the
ALNO Group. Measures must then be initiated with due
regard for their effect on our most important partner, i.e. the
customer. Particularly the ALNO Group's trade receivables
are protected through domestic credit insurance; adequate
liquidity management is assured within the framework of an
integrated Group receivables management system taking
into account customers' needs and security considerations.
Development of the cash flow is monitored by a Groupbased liquidity controlling process which simultaneously
provides relevant parameters for timely decisions by the
management. To protect commitments associated with
employees' pre-retirement part-time working against
insolvency, the ALNO Group has invested in securities of
corresponding value which are recognized at their market
value on the closing date.
FINANCIAL RISKS
Monitoring of liquidity reserves

In the ALNO Group, financial risks are hedged with the
aid of planning and management instruments permitting
timely detection of liquidity risks. ALNO AG essentially acts
as financial coordinator for all Group companies in order
to ensure that the financing required for the operational
business is always adequate and as cost-efficient as possible. The information potential required for this purpose
is updated on a monthly basis through roll-over financial
planning and subjected to variance analyses. This financial
planning with a horizon of one year is supplemented by
daily cash flow development planning which is constantly
compared to the actual payment flows. Available liquidity
reserves are monitored constantly by the ALNO Group.

RISKS / OPPORTUNITIES AND FUTURE PERSPECTIVES
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SAFEGUARDING LIQUIDIT Y IN 2013 AND 2014

At the moment, the ALNO Group operates almost
exclusively on the basis of credit balances with banking institutes. The ALNO Group's remaining master loan
agreements with the banks can also be terminated with
immediate effect if the financial situation of the ALNO
Group deteriorates significantly or threatens to do so, or if
the value of collateral is impaired or at risk, thus jeopardizing repayment of the loans. Should the remaining credit
lines be called in for repayment or be terminated for cause
and become due for repayment, the ALNO Group would
require additional capital in the form of third-party capital
or shareholders' equity.
Safeguarding the Group's short-term and medium-term
liquidity situation remains a focal issue for the Board of
Management of ALNO AG. In spring 2013, a new short
and medium-term capitalization and financial concept 2013
was prepared by the Board of Management of ALNO AG
to assure liquidity in the short and medium term. The concept's main cornerstones include the moratorium and loan
agreements signed with Bauknecht Hausgeräte GmbH,
Stuttgart, and Comco Holding AG, Nidau/Switzerland on
11 April 2013. In addition, the Board of Management of
ALNO AG decided to issue a so-called "SME bond" with
a volume of up to EUR 45 million on the Entry Standard
of the German Stock Exchange in Frankfurt. With regard
to the concept's essential content and the risks relating
to the company's continuation as a going concern, we
refer to our statements on events after the reporting period
(section "Capitalization and financial concept 2013" and
"Going concern").
The ALNO Group also makes extensive use of factoring
as a source of financing. The provision of finance by the
factoring company presupposes the existence of corresponding accounts receivable. If the ALNO Group has
to satisfy accounts receivable sooner than expected on
account of changes in the factoring agreements utilized
by the Group, this would put a considerable strain on the
ALNO Group's liquidity.

The intra-Group financial adjustment undertaken in Germany within the framework of the cash pooling process
reduces the volume of external financing required, thus
improving the financial performance. Through this internal
financial adjustment, the surplus liquidity of individual Group
companies can be used to internally finance other Group
companies. Intra-Group cash pooling has been restricted
since November 2009.
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RISKS / OPPORTUNITIES AND FUTURE PERSPECTIVES

DEFAULT / CREDIT RISKS

SUPPLIER RISKS

In conjunction with Group receivables management,
minimum requirements as regards creditworthiness and
maximum exposure limits have been defined for all business partners of the ALNO Group. These are based on
a system of specified limits for which compliance is constantly monitored.

The ALNO Group purchases the raw materials and supplies needed to manufacture its products from a variety
of suppliers. Established business relations with certain
suppliers give rise to interdependences which the ALNO
Group can only circumvent by accepting higher costs and/
or a higher risk as regards the quality of the material and
punctual delivery. The elimination of one or more these
major suppliers could therefore significantly impair the
ALNO Group's business activities. What's more, individual
manufacturers could increase their prices for certain parts
or enforce contractual terms with other disadvantages.
To a very large extent, the ALNO Group would be unable
to pass on higher costs to its customers, or only after a
delay, as the ALNO Group's essential contractual terms
with customers organized in purchasing associations are
agreed for a complete year, during which price rises can
only be imposed with a delay of three months. This could
have a negative impact on margins and earnings.

In addition, the ALNO Group safeguards its trade receivables through domestic credit insurance which, if an account
receivable is not paid, will indemnify the loss incurred in
the contractually agreed, prorated amount less a retention.
CURRENCY RISKS

All deliveries to countries outside the eurozone, especially Switzerland, the United Kingdom, the USA and the
United Arab Emirates are associated with currency risks.
The development of exchange rates is monitored constantly. There were no forward exchange deals effective
on the closing date. Should new currency risks arise in
conjunction with ALNO's further international expansion,
corresponding hedging options will be exercised as and
when required. Currency risks also exist on the purchasing
side, particularly for metal goods, as these raw materials
are primarily traded in US dollars.
PRICE RISKS

Wood, plastics, metal, glass and ceramics are the most
important raw materials for ALNO. Changes in the market
price of these materials can have a corresponding impact
on development of the Group's margins.

The risk of delivery squeezes by essential suppliers temporarily impairing the production process or even resulting
in temporary production stoppages similarly cannot be
excluded. Such a disruption in production could make it
more difficult for the ALNO Group to discharge its delivery obligations to customers; if delivery is incomplete or
delayed, this could give rise to claims by the customers
(especially claims for damages) and lead to deteriorating
relations with customers or even a permanent loss of customers. As a further consequence, the ALNO Group could
find itself compelled to accept less favourable terms from
alternative suppliers.

MATERIAL PRICES

For the metal goods used by ALNO, slightly lower prices
were once again quoted on the London Metal Exchange
in the first few months of 2013 after rising considerably
in early 2012. The price of plastics also fell slightly during
this period, as compared to the major rise in early 2012.
Material prices have consequently stabilized at a high level
in early 2013.
The project launched in late 2011 and continued in 2012 to
introduce in-house production of glass and ceramic fronts
has helped to counter the sharp rise in purchase prices
for glass and made it possible to manage the production
process more effectively.
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SERVICES

Risks exist in particular with regard to the development of
transport costs due to the sharp rise in fuel prices and the
foreseeable shortage of carriers' capacity. The distribution
and logistics services of the former provider of logistics
services, the logismo Group, were therefore taken over in
July 2012 in conjunction with ALNO AG's strategic reorientation of operating business. After insourcing the logistics services, the aim is now to further develop logistics
competence in order to counter the rise in transport costs.
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RISKS / OPPORTUNITIES AND FUTURE PERSPECTIVES

MARKET RISKS

IT RISKS

In the kitchen furniture sector, the ALNO Group operates
in a market characterized by fierce competition. The pressure on margins is increasing constantly due to fiercely
competitive prices, especially in the lower price segments,
and simultaneously squeezing less competitive manufacturers out of the market. The activities of competitors and
the trade could lead to distinctly lower sales revenue and
earnings for the ALNO Group.

A large part of the ALNO Group's production, warehouse
management and accounting is essentially based on
computers. Failure of the computer or production systems could bring production to a halt and thus lead to a
considerable financial loss for the company. ALNO AG has
outsourced its IT systems almost entirely. Any disruptions
in the contractual relationship governing services throughout the IT sector at ALNO AG could impair work processes
in the company's data processing.

The ALNO Group's customers are primarily retailers, the
vast majority of whom belong to purchasing associations.
If major purchasing associations were to reduce their order
volumes, terminate blanket agreements or be compelled
to file for insolvency, and if the ALNO Group were unable
to win new customers of comparable magnitude or were
unable to obtain a commensurate increase in the volumes
ordered by existing customers, this would lead to a tangible reduction in capacity utilization and sales revenue,
as well as to the loss of receivables for the ALNO Group.

STR ATEGIC RISKS

To stabilize the net assets, financial position and results of
operations of the ALNO Group, the company considers it
necessary to take steps to boost efficiency in administration and sales, to cut costs and ensure profitable growth.
These measures require investments and corresponding
funds. Delayed availability of these funds could delay realization of the corporate strategy.

Reversal of the historic price cuts by raising prices in
January and August 2012 by 7% for WELLMANN and
8% for ALNO gives rise to the risk that the resultant loss
of volume cannot be sustainably compensated through
higher earnings quality.

PRODUCTION AND QUALIT Y RISKS

In addition, the expansion of business launched by ALNO
AG in 2012, with enlargements and new companies set
up abroad and the extension of business to include new
fields of business, has still to become established. These
processes also entail risks.

A higher incidence of defects or serious individual defects
can additionally damage the reputation of the ALNO
Group's products, leading to considerable loss of sales.
In the case of faulty materials which were defective when
purchased by the ALNO Group, or in the case of faulty
transport or installation, it is by no means certain that the
ALNO Group can obtain recourse to the full extent from
the third party responsible.

Germany is the ALNO Group's main market, accounting for more than 70% of the total sales revenue. Other
major markets include the United Kingdom, France, Austria, Switzerland, Spain, Italy and the Benelux countries.
These markets have developed differently in the past.
ALNO AG presumes that the individual markets will continue to develop differently in the future too, depending
on the influence of economic factors. To minimize these
risks, the ALNO Group will therefore continue the efforts
launched in 2012 and intensify its sales activities in select
overseas markets, such as the US, China and the Middle
East, in 2013.
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The products manufactured by the ALNO Group may be
faulty or defective. This could impair sales of the products
and services by customers or give rise to corresponding
claims for replacement.

Accidents, other faults in the operating process (such as
technical failure), power failures, strikes, natural catastrophes, terrorist attacks, official orders and other factors can
likewise lead to production stoppages at one or more of
the ALNO Group's production locations. This can lead to
prolonged production bottlenecks which the ALNO Group
cannot normally compensate from the stocks available.
Insofar as the losses incurred are not covered by business
interruption insurance, prolonged production stoppages
can have a considerable impact on the net assets, financial
position and results of operations of the ALNO Group.
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RISKS / OPPORTUNITIES AND FUTURE PERSPECTIVES

Oppor tunities
SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE

Successful conclusion of the capital increase has assured
ALNO AG a stable shareholder structure. As as February 2013, SE Swiss Entrepreneur AG, Zug, Switzerland,
holds 8.1% of the shares, in addition to the strong anchor
investor Whirlpool (30.6%); Küchen Holding GmbH holds
a further 2.6% of the shares. All members of the Board
of Management of ALNO AG actively participated in the
capital increase in autumn 2012.

EARNINGS AND DEBT SITUATION

As at 31 December 2012, the ALNO Group had significantly reduced its accounts payable to banks, freeing a
major portion of the collateral provided. In addition, the
Group can report positive EBIT for the first time in six
years. This provides a sound basis when negotiating with
banks and investors to assure long-term liquidity using
bank and bond financing instruments.

VOLUME AND VALUE OF SALES

For the ALNO brand, the upward trend which began in
2012 in the volume of sales of "glass and ceramic kitchens", i.e. high-price ranges with glass or ceramic fronts,
continued in early 2013.
In the case of the WELLMANN brand, the quality delivered
to customers improved greatly in 2012 following the introduction of the new product range with significantly fewer
missing parts and the changeover to cardboard packaging
for carcase elements.
The measures introduced by the IMPULS and PINO
brands to shorten delivery periods were further optimized
in 2012. For many customers, very short delivery periods
are increasingly becoming an attractive additional service.
The ALNO Group's potential for boosting sales in the foreign markets is generally high. On the one hand, reorientation of the export sector will lead to an extension of sales
partnerships in the European markets, such as France. At
the same time, first steps were taken in 2012 to implement
separate sales concepts for the large existing markets, as
well as for such growth markets as China, Russia and the
United States so that ALNO can participate more strongly
in these markets' potential in future.
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MARKETING

Compared with its direct competitors, ALNO enjoys
outstanding brand recognition and sympathy among
consumers. This unique differentiator was used for the
new brand and product campaign "One thing's for sure:
ALNO" launched in October 2012 to address consumers
directly and give them the feeling of having made the right
purchasing decision. The comprehensive relaunch aroused
a considerable positive echo in the industry.

PURCHASING

Make-or-buy analyses are undertaken regularly and systematically. In addition to minimizing risks in conjunction
with suppliers' price increases, this also yields an opportunity to cut costs.

PRODUCTION

The production strategy first implemented in 2012 ensures
more effective utilization of production capacities by centralizing production, assures advantages through mass
production, cuts supply costs through insourcing and
promotes the exchange of best practices among the four
plants to improve competence.

QUALIT Y

Efforts to reduce nonconformance costs are continuing
in 2013, above and beyond the planned volume. Through
quality improvement projects with the trade and further
training courses for the field staff, this will give ALNO an
opportunity to reduce not only the number of complaints,
but also the corresponding costs. The same also applies
with regard to consistent quality audits among suppliers,
permitting more specific recourse action.

PRODUCT INNOVATIONS

The ALNO Group has regularly won distinctions for its
innovative product developments and designs in the past
and intends to do so in the future, too. Product development focuses on product innovations and new applications
which are systematically developed across all product lines
for specific target groups. The range of products and
services will continuously be revised in the future, too.
The ALNO brand's ALNOSTAR CERA and ALNOCERA
lines represent a new product generation with fronts and
side panels of ceramic material exemplifying the trend
towards individual, ecological and high-quality products.
A dynamic, flexible kitchen concept geared entirely to the
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individual needs and circumstances of its users, both ergonomically and technologically, was presented under the
tielsa brand in early 2013. The concept owes its convenience and flexibility to dynamic lifting elements. The aim of
product development is to supply ALNO as the company's
core brand with regular product and design innovations
and thus demonstrate its superior market position.

II. FUTURE PERSPECTIVES

RISKS / OPPORTUNITIES AND FUTURE PERSPECTIVES

GROUP STR ATEGY DEVELOPMENT

Corresponding concepts which will be developed in more
detail in 2013 were presented by the project groups set
up in 2012 to draft a new Group strategy, to draw up
an optimized production logic for the respective locations
and to identify potential cost savings. Implementation
commenced in some areas in 2012. Group synergies in
production and logistics were used for the first time in
2012 and will help to cut costs and improve performance
from 2013 onwards.

DEVELOPMENT OF THE MARKET

GROW TH

AND IN THE ALNO GROUP

From 2013 onwards, non-organic growth is expected to
profit considerably from the expansion of business by the
ALNO Group which started in 2012, with the setting-up of
new companies and expansion abroad, as well as extending business to include new fields. This contribution was
only partly included in the corporate planning for 2013.

Both the volume and the value of sales once again
developed favourably for the kitchen furniture industry in
the financial year 2012. Within the Group, the strategic
reorientation launched in 2012 with its focus on profitability
instead of volume sales led to better revenue quality with
acceptance of the limited development of sales volume
and value.
As a result, higher prices were enforced for all brands in
2012, thus helping to offset the negative impact of higher
prices for materials.
Sales by the kitchen furniture industry rose by +5.9% in
Germany and by +0.5% abroad in 2012. As a result of
concentrating on revenue quality, the ALNO Group's sales
in Germany developed less favourably – at –2.4% – than
those of the market in general. Foreign sales, however,
rose by +1.1% in 2012 due in particular to higher sales in
France and the United Kingdom, with their high-volume
markets, and also to establishment of the newly founded
subsidiary ALNO USA Corporation.
In order to boost domestic and foreign sales in 2013, a
number of short and medium-term measures were developed and introduced in early 2013, including optimized
activity planning, a new sales management system and
optimized concepts for distribution and for winning new
business. Foreign activities and new fields of business are
also expected to result in higher sales.
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INVESTMENTS

The investments to be made in the existing structure in
2013 focus on implementation of the production strategy
and IT strategy and on minimizing the risk of stoppages
in production. For the Pfullendorf location, these investments consequently focus on worktop manufacture, coating expertise, A-carcase elements and the introduction of
SAP R/3 for the entire process chain. Investments in the
Enger location concentrate on the production of A-fronts
and C-parts (connecting elements). Investments to minimize the risk of default have been planned at all locations
in 2013.
It is also planned to invest in development of the markets
in the USA, China and the Middle East, as well as in the
development of new fields of business.

DEVELOPMENT OF BUSINESS 2013 AND 2014

Following the significant improvement in EBITDA in the
financial year 2012 as a result of the strategic reorientation focusing on profitability, causing it to increase from
EUR 5.2 million in 2011 to EUR 14.0 million in 2012
while sales revenue declined by EUR –6.5 million, the
Board of Management confidently expects this positive
trend to continue in the financial year 2013. Contrary to
the prognosis by the German Kitchen Furniture Industry
Association (VdDK) (refer to the section "Developments
in the kitchen furniture industry"), it expects higher sales
revenue particularly from non-organic growth and a significant improvement in EBITDA for the ALNO Group in
comparison to 2012.
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Sales revenue in the first quarter of 2013 remained below
the previous year's level. This trend is in line with the corporate planning, which provides for a focus on sales with
high margins. However, orders received fell short of the
planned level in the first quarter of 2013. The company still
expects to meet the planned sales targets for the financial
year 2013, with higher revenues than in the previous year.
Higher sales and further improvements in EBITDA are
expected for 2014.
For the segments ALNO, IMPULS and PINO, a further
increase in sales and slightly improved EBITDA are expected
for 2013 in relation to the value reported for 2012. For the
WELLMANN segment, 2013 is expected to yield slightly
lower sales revenue than in 2012, as well as an improvement on the EBITDA value reported for 2012 after adjustment for extraordinary income from a waiver of repayment
in the amount of EUR 36.0 million. For 2014, the Board of
Management expects a further increase in sales revenue
and a further improvement in EBITDA for each of the segments ALNO, IMPULS, PINO and WELLMANN.

Other disclosures

The Code's annual review and amendment was undertaken by the "Government Commission on the German
Corporate Governance Code" in May 2012. The changes
concern the Supervisory Board in particular. Changes
have been made in the rules governing the independence
of members of the Supervisory Board and the disclosure
of conflicts of interest. The recommended system of remuneration for the Supervisory Board has also been revised.
With these changes, the "Government Commission on the
German Corporate Governance Code" aims to strengthen
the Supervisory Board as an independent body.
The Board of Management and Supervisory Board of ALNO
AG explicitly welcome the Code's recommendations and
their objectives. Both Boards have once again devoted
their attention to the Code's recommendations and their
implementation and complied with these recommendations
with only a few exceptions. The joint declaration of compliance by the Board of Management and Supervisory Board
is set out below and is also publicly accessible on the
Internet at www.alno.ag.

Declaration pursuant to Section 161 of the
Stock Companies Act (AktG) by the Board of
Management and Super visor y Board of ALNO AG
concerning the recommendations of the German
Corporate Governance Code:

I. DECL AR ATION ON CORPOR ATE GOVERNANCE /
REPORT ON CORPOR ATE GOVERNANCE

Declaration on Corporate Governance (Section
289a of the German Commercial Code (HGB)) and
Repor t on Corporate Governance
DECL AR ATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 161 OF THE
STOCK COMPANIES ACT (AK TG)

Corporate governance stands for responsible, transparent and orderly management and control of companies.
The purpose of the German Corporate Governance Code
(hereinafter referred to as "the Code") is to ensure that the
rules accepted in Germany for managing and controlling
companies are standardized for national and international
investors and systematically implemented to strengthen
confidence in the management of German companies.
Section 161 of the Stock Companies Act (AktG) obliges
listed companies to declare every year that the company
has been, and is, in compliance with the recommendations
or to advise of any recommendations that have not been,
or are not being, applied and the reasons for this.
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Board of Management and Supervisory Board issued the
last declaration of compliance on 30 September 2011. For
the period from publication of the last declaration of compliance until 15 June 2012, the following declaration refers
to the German Corporate Governance Code in the version
dated 26 May 2010 (published on 2 July 2010). For the
period from 16 June 2012 up to the date of this declaration,
the following declaration refers to the German Corporate
Governance Code in the version dated 15 May 2012, which
was published in the Federal Gazette on 15 June 2012.
Board of Management and Supervisory Board of ALNO
AG declare that the company has been, and is, in compliance with the recommendations of the German Corporate
Governance Code, with the following exceptions:
•

The German Corporate Governance Code recommends
D&O insurance with deductible for members of the
Supervisory Board. ALNO AG believes that a deductible
is not required in view of the Supervisory Board members'
responsibility and motivation in discharging their duties.
Contrary to the requirements in Section 3.8 of the Code,
the D&O insurance in force for members of the Supervisory Board of ALNO AG therefore does not include a
deductible.
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•

•

•

According to the Code as it applied until 15 June 2012,
the company did not comply with Section 4.2.5 of the
Code, which recommended that each Board member's
total remuneration be disclosed in a remuneration report
presenting the remuneration system as part of the
report on Corporate Governance. ALNO AG prepares
a remuneration report. This report is published in the
Notes to the Annual Report, as these details constitute
mandatory information which must be disclosed in the
Notes in accordance with Section 314 (1) No. 6 of the
German Commercial Code (HGB). The remuneration
report therefore did not form part of the report on corporate governance. However, the report on corporate
governance contained a reference to the remuneration
report in the Notes to the annual financial statements.
Since 16 June 2012, this discrepancy no longer exists,
following amendment of the Code.
Section 5.3.3 of the Code requires the establishment
of a nomination committee by the Supervisory Board
to propose suitable candidates whom the Supervisory
Board can then recommend for election by the Annual
General Meeting. The company's Supervisory Board has
not set up such a committee, as experience to date has
not made it appear necessary in order to identify suitable
candidates.
According to Section 5.4.1 (2) and (3) of the Code, the
Supervisory Board is required to define specific objectives
with regard to its membership which, with due regard
for the company's specific situation, take account of its
international activities, potential conflicts of interest, an
age limit to be defined for the members of the Supervisory
Board and diversity. In the version dated 15 May 2012,
the Code also stipulates that the number of independent Supervisory Board members as defined by Section
5.4.2 of the Code should also be defined as a further
specific objective of the Supervisory Board. In particular,
these specific objectives should provide for a reasonable
number of women. These objectives should be taken
into account in the Supervisory Board's nominations to
the relevant election committees. Establishment of the
objectives and their implementation are to be published
in the report on corporate governance. The Supervisory
Board of ALNO AG has already issued a specific target
in the past as regards the maximum age of its members.
At the time of issuing this declaration of compliance, the
Supervisory Board is still internally considering which of
the other specific objectives mentioned in Section 5.4.1
(2) of the Code might, with due regard for the specific
situation of ALNO AG, be of relevance for the Supervisory Board's membership. When this internal analysis is
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complete, the Supervisory Board will, if necessary, draw
up further specific objectives as regards its membership,
in particular with regard to a suitable number of women
members. A departure from Section 5.4.1 (2) of the Code
in both the versions dated 26 May 2010 and 15 May 2012
is therefore declared for the time being. Corresponding
notification in the report on corporate governance has
likewise not been given to date. A departure from Section
5.4.1 (3) of the Code in both the versions dated 26 May
2010 and 15 May 2012 is therefore also declared for the
time being.
•

According to the version of the Code in force until 15 June
2012, the company did not comply with Section 5.4.6 (2),
first sentence, which required that the members of the
Supervisory Board should also receive a performancerelated remuneration. ALNO AG did not see any need to
change this in view of the Supervisory Board's controlling and monitoring function. Since 16 June 2012, this
discrepancy no longer exists, following amendment of
the Code.

•

The consolidated financial statements are not yet published within 90 days of the end of the financial year and
the interim report is not yet published within 45 days of
the end of the reporting period (Section 7.1.2 of the Code,
third sentence). It is planned to bring both the consolidated financial statements and the interim report more
into line with the required deadlines.

Pfullendorf, 2 October 2012

For the
Board of Management

For the
Supervisory Board

Max Müller

Henning Giesecke
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Relevant disclosures concerning management
duties and activities which go beyond the
statutor y requirements

Duties and activities of the Board of Management
and Super visor y Board; membership, duties and
activities of their committees

MISSION STATEMENT OF ALNO AG

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

It is the declared aim of ALNO AG to undertake all business
dealings in an ethically and legally irreproachable manner.
On the basis of its "one company" concept, ALNO AG has
developed a mission statement which sets out the basis
of its corporate culture for employees and partners, represents the company's corporate identity and describes the
principles for sustainable and socially responsible action.

On 31 December 2012, the Board of Management of ALNO
AG was made up of three members. The Board of Management runs the company on its own responsibility. It is bound
by the company's interests and committed to sustainably
increasing the company's enterprise value. The members
of the Board of Management are appointed by the Supervisory Board. The precise number of members making up the
Board of Management and, if necessary, its chairman and
his deputy are likewise designated by the Supervisory Board.

GROUP GUIDELINES ON CONDUCT IN BUSINESS LIFE

ALNO AG has adopted internal Group guidelines defining its conduct in business life. For all employees of the
ALNO Group (including the executive management level
and Board of Management), these guidelines not only
specify basic behavioural requirements, but also define
relations with business partners and third parties, the use
of company facilities and the use of data. In addition, the
Group guidelines also address such issues as the environment, occupational safety and health, and the right to
make complaints and receive information. Compliance with
the Group guidelines on conduct in business life is regularly
checked in all the Group's companies. This is undertaken
in compliance with the respective national procedures and
statutory requirements.
TR ANSPARENCY AND ACCOUNTING

ALNO AG prepares regular annual and interim reports,
ad-hoc bulletins and press releases for its shareholders
and the interested public, informing them of the company's
position and essential changes in its business operations.
The corporate information published by the company is
also posted on the company's website and is publicly
accessible on www.alno.ag.
Accounting in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) was introduced for the financial year 2005.

According to the Articles of Incorporation of ALNO AG, the
Board of Management must draw up rules of procedure
in consultation with the Supervisory Board. These rules of
procedure define management of the business as a whole
and of individual business areas, the allocation of duties,
the duties of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board's duties
as regards informing the Supervisory Board and the manner in which it deals with conflicts of interest. The Board of
Management meets regularly at short intervals to discuss
the development of business and adopt its resolutions.
In addition, the Board of Management regularly reports
to the Supervisory Board, with timely and comprehensive
information on all aspects of relevance to the company and
its planning, business development, ongoing projects, risk
position and risk management, and coordinates the company's strategic orientation with the Supervisory Board.
SUPERVISORY BOARD

The Supervisory Board of ALNO AG monitors and advises
the Board of Management in its running of the company
and participates in decisions of fundamental importance
for the company. As required by the German One-third
Employee Representation Act (DrittelbG), the Supervisory
Board of ALNO AG comprises six shareholder representatives and three employee representatives.
The Supervisory Board is also required by the Articles of
Incorporation to draw up its own rules of procedure. These
govern, in particular, the convocation of meetings, the formation and duties of the committees and the requirements
to be met by the members of the Supervisory Board. The
Supervisory Board meets at least twice per half-year. The
chairman of the Supervisory Board decides whether the
members of the Board of Management are to attend its
meetings. Meetings are convened with at least 14 days'
notice. The agenda topics and proposed resolutions are
communicated together with the invitation. In individual
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cases, the Supervisory Board also adopts resolutions in a
written circulating procedure or through telephone conferences. The Supervisory Board does not include any former
members of the company's Board of Management.
Each member of the Supervisory Board is obliged to disclose any conflicts of interest immediately. Members of the
Supervisory Board are required to resign their position in
the event of significant and not merely temporary personal
conflicting interests.
The chairman of the Supervisory Board remains in regular
contact with the Board of Management and particularly
with the Chief Executive Officer, with whom he consults
on the company's strategy, business development and
risk management.
In the report of the Supervisory Board and at the Annual
General Meeting, the chairman of the Supervisory Board
gives a detailed annual report on the activities of the
Supervisory Board and its committees.
The Supervisory Board has set up the following two
committees: Strategy and Presidial Committee and Audit
Committee.
The Strategy and Presidial Committee prepares the meetings of the Supervisory Board, monitors the resolutions
adopted, is responsible for the employment contracts
signed with members of the Board of Management and
their remuneration, and represents the company in dealings with former members of the Board of Management,
insofar as this is not the responsibility of the Board of Management itself. In addition, the Strategy and Presidial Committee analyses the company's ongoing business, advises
the Board of Management with regard to the strategic orientation of the ALNO Group and Group companies, verifies
its implementation and prepares papers on the strategic
orientation to be adopted by the Supervisory Board, insofar as the activity concerned requires the consent of the
Supervisory Board.
The Strategy and Presidial Committee comprises the following members:
•

Mr. Henning Giesecke (chairman)

•

Mr. Werner Devinck
(until midnight on 2 November 2012)

•

Dr. Jürgen Diegruber

•

Dr. Marc Bitzer (as from 5 December 2012)
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The Audit Committee is mainly concerned with the preparation of negotiations and resolutions by the Supervisory
Board on matters relating to the company's accounting,
risk management and compliance, the necessary independence of the auditors, retaining the auditors, defining
the focal points of the audit and reaching agreement with
the auditors on their fee for the audit.
The Audit Committee has three members:
•

Mr. Anton Walther (chariman)

•

Dr. Jürgen Diegruber

•

Mr. Jörg Kespohl

Further information on the members of the Board of Management and Supervisory Board and on the remuneration
paid to the Board of Management can be found in Section
J. "Supervisory Board and Board of Management" of the
Notes to the annual financial statements in this Annual
Report.
For their activities, the members of the Supervisory
Board received total remuneration in the amount of EUR
228,125.00 in the financial year 2012. This is made up
as follows:

2012 in '000 EUR
Henning Giesecke
(chairman)

45,000

Rudolf Wisser
(vice-chairman)

30,000

Werner Devinck (until 2 November 2012)

18,750

Dr. Jürgen Diegruber

25,000

Anton Walther

25,000

Jörg Kespohl

22,500

Gerhard Meyer

20,000

Ruth Falise-Grauer

20,000

Nobert Orth

20,000

Dr. Marc Bitzer
(as from 27 November 2012)

1,875
228,125

The fees paid to members of the Supervisory Board for
their advisory activities are set out in Section J. "Supervisory Board and Board of Management" of the Notes to the
annual financial statements in this Annual Report.
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As at 31 December 2012, the Chief Executive Officer Max
Müller and his family directly and indirectly held 3,200,000
shares in the company, corresponding to 4.565% of the
share capital of ALNO AG. All other members of the Board
of Management held fewer than 1% of the shares in ALNO
AG both at the end of 2012 and at the end of 2011. In total,
the members of the Board of Management held 3,730,050
shares on 31 December 2012. The members of the Supervisory Board held 325,333 shares on 31 December 2012.
Further information on the company's management can be
found in the Articles of Incorporation of ALNO AG, which
are also publicly accessible on the company's website at
www.alno.ag.

II. REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 289 (4) AND
315 (4) OF THE GERMAN COMMERCIAL CODE (HGB)

As the ALNO Group's parent, ALNO AG uses an organized
market within the meaning of Section 2 (7) of the German
Securities Acquisition and Takeover Act (WpÜG) for its
issued voting shares and therefore reports in accordance
with Sections 289 (4) and 315 (4) of the German Commercial Code (HGB).

Restrictions on voting rights or the
transfer of shares
Restrictions on voting rights or the transfer of shares
exclusively concerned a voting commitment, even when
associated with agreements between shareholders. In conjunction with a Standstill and Shareholder Agreement, IRE
Beteiligungs GmbH had granted Küchen Holding GmbH an
irrevocable power of attorney to exercise the voting rights
associated with the shares held by IRE Beteiligungs GmbH
at the discretion of Küchen Holding GmbH. This voting
agreement was terminated on 30 January 2012. Further
restrictions are not known to the Board of Management.
Each share grants one vote in accordance with Article 22
of the Articles of Incorporation.
Direct or indirect equity interests
For holdings of more than 10% of the capital in ALNO AG,
the equity interests applicable as at 31 December 2012 are
summarized below on the basis of the last figures reported
to ALNO AG in accordance with the German Securities
Trading Act (WpHG):

Affiliated company

Share of voting
rights

Notification/
publication date

Composition of the subscribed capital

Whirlpool Germany GmbH,
Stuttgart 1)

30.58%

6.12.2012

The subscribed capital totals EUR 70,094,979.00 as
at 31 December 2012 and is divided into 70,094,979
no-par-value shares. The shares are issued as bearer
shares and fully paid up.

Whirlpool Corporation,
Wilmington, DE/USA 1)

30.58%

6.12.2012

1 Pursuant to Section 22 (1), first sentence, No. 1, para. 3, of the German
Securities Trading Act (WpHG), the 30.58% held by Whirlpool Germany GmbH
are ascribed to Whirlpool Corporation.

Holders of shares with special rights
There are no shares with special rights authorizing control.

Type of voting control in the case of employee
holdings
The Board of Management does not know of any voting
control in the event that employees hold a share of the
capital and do not exercise their right of control directly.
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Statutory regulations and provisions in the Articles
of Incorporation concerning the appointment and
dismissal of members of the Board of Management
and amendments to the Articles of Incorporation
Members of the Board of Management are appointed and
dismissed in accordance with Section 84 of the Stock
Companies Act (AktG). Amendments to the Articles of
Incorporation are decided by the Annual General Meeting
in accordance with Sections 133 and 179 of the Stock
Companies Act (AktG). In Section 12 (2) in combination
with Section 12 (1) of the Articles of Incorporation, the
Annual General Meeting has exercised the option pursuant
to Section 179 (1), second sentence, of the Stock Companies Act (AktG) and authorized the Supervisory Board
to undertake changes which merely concern the version
of the Articles of Incorporation.

Power of the Board of Management to issue and
buy back shares
By resolution of the Annual General Meeting of ALNO AG
on 14 July 2011, the Board of Management was authorized
to increase the company's share capital with the consent
of the Supervisory Board on one or more occasions by
up to EUR 33,923,471.40 by issuing up to 13,047,489
no-par-value ordinary shares in return for cash and/or noncash contributions until 13 July 2016 (authorized capital
2011). The authorized capital was entered in the Register
of Companies on 17 August 2011.
The Board of Management is authorized to undertake the
following actions with the consent of the Supervisory Board:
•

to exclude shareholders' subscription rights for fractional
amounts.

•

to exclude the shareholders' subscription rights as a
whole in order to offer the company's new shares to third
parties in return for non-cash contributions in conjunction
with business combinations or the acquisition of companies or parts thereof, as well as with the acquisition of
other assets, including loans and other liabilities.

•

•

to exclude the shareholders' subscription rights if the cash
capital increase does not exceed 10% of the share capital
and the issuing price is not significantly lower than the
market price of correspondingly endowed shares which
are already listed on the stock market.
to exclude the shareholders' subscription rights if necessary in order to grant the holders of warrants or the
creditors of convertible bonds issued by the company or
its subordinate Group companies a subscription right to
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the new shares commensurate with that accruing after
exercising their option or conversion rights or following
the discharge of conversion obligations.
As at 31 December 2012, the authorized capital had not
been drawn on and consequently still amounted to EUR
33,923,471.40.
The Annual General Meeting on 14 July 2011 decided on
a contingent capital increase. The Board of Management
was authorized to issue, on one or more occasions until 13
July 2016, cum-warrant and/or convertible bonds in a total
nominal amount of up to EUR 100,000,000.00 with a term
of up to 20 years either through the company or through
companies in which the company has a direct or indirect
majority holding ("subordinate Group companies") and to
guarantee such cum-warrant and/or convertible bonds
issued by the company's subordinate Group companies.
The holders of cum-warrant and/or convertible bonds
must be granted option and/or conversion rights for up to
13,047,489 no-par-value ordinary shares in the company
with a prorated share of up to EUR 33,923,471.40 in the
company's share capital in accordance with the respective
terms and conditions of the cum-warrant and/or convertible
bonds ("conditions").
This contingent capital increase may only be realized if
option and/or conversion rights are issued and only insofar
as the holders of the warrants or convertible bonds exercise
their option or conversion rights, or insofar as the holders
with conversion or option obligation also discharge their
conversion / option obligation, and the contingent capital is
needed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
cum-warrant or convertible bond. The new shares issued
on the basis of the option or conversion right exercised or
through discharge of the conversion or option obligation
share in profits as from the beginning of the financial year
in which they are created.
The Board of Management was authorized to specify further details, with the consent of the Supervisory Board,
concerning the realization of this contingent capital increase
(contingent capital 2011). As at 31 December 2012 the
contingent capital had not been drawn on.
By resolution of the Annual General Meeting on 23 June
2010 and effective 24 June 2010, the Board of Management was authorized to acquire own shares in accordance
with Section 71 (1), No. 8, of the Stock Companies Act
(AktG). The authority to acquire shares up to 10% of the
share capital on the balance sheet at the time of the Annual
General Meeting remains valid until 22 June 2015.
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Major changes subject to a change of control
following a takeover bid
There were no such agreements as at the closing date.

Compensation agreements
Compensation agreements which would apply in the
event of a takeover agreement have not been concluded
between the company and members of the Board of
Management or employees.

Presentation and explanation of the main features
of the internal system of controls and of the risk
management system in conjunction with the
accounting process
The main features of the internal system of controls and
risk management system used by ALNO AG can be described as follows in conjunction with the (Group) accounting process:
•

The ALNO Group is characterized by a clear organizational, corporate, controlling and monitoring structure;

•

Coordinated planning, reporting, controlling and early
warning systems and processes are in place throughout
the Group to ensure all-embracing analysis and management of risk factors affecting earnings, as well as of risks
jeopardizing the company's survival;

•

Functions are clearly assigned in all areas of the accounting process (e.g. financial accounting and controlling);

•

The computer systems used in accounting are protected
against unauthorized access;

•

Standard software is predominantly used in conjunction
with the financial systems used;

•

An adequate internal system of guidelines (including
Group-wide risk management guidelines) is in place and
is adjusted when necessary;

•

The departments involved in the accounting process
meet with the quantitative and qualitative requirements;

•

The complete and correct nature of data in the accounting system is regularly verified with the aid of spot checks
and plausibility checks, using both manual controls and
the installed software. On the segment level, a risk controller is established to accompany the risk management
process on the segment level and to verify the plausibility
of the data;

III. ESSENTIAL FEATURES OF THE ACCOUNTINGREL ATED INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM PURSUANT TO SECTIONS
289 (5) AND 315 (2), NO. 5, OF THE GERMAN
COMMERCIAL CODE (HGB)

According to the reasoning of the German Act to Modernise Accounting Law (BilMoG) which came into force on 29
May 2009, the internal system of controls encompasses
principles, methods and measures to assure the effectiveness and cost-efficiency of accounting, to assure the due
and proper nature of the accounting and to ensure compliance with the relevant legal regulations. This also includes
Group controlling insofar as it relates to the accounting. As
part of the internal system of controls and like the latter, the
risk management system in conjunction with the accounting process refers to processes controlling and monitoring
the accounting, especially in the case of items in the commercial account which serve to hedge the company's risks.
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•

For the consolidation, ALNO AG has set up processes to
reconcile intra-Group receivables and liabilities, as well
as income and expenses;

•

External services (e.g. actuaries, experts, etc.) are consulted in the case of essential, complex and discretionary
accounting issues;

•

Essential processes relating to the accounting are subjected to regular analytical checks;

•

The double-checking principle is consistently applied in
all accounting-related processes;

•

Accounting-related processes are checked by Group
controlling;

•

Among other things, the Supervisory Board also
addresses essential issues concerning the accounting, risk management, the audit mandate and its main
aspects.
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V. REPORT ON CONTROLLED COMPANIES

The Board of Management has drawn up the report on
relations with companies affiliated with ALNO (report on
controlled companies) for the period from 1 to 30 January 2012 and presented it to the auditors. The Board of
Management declares that for all the legal transactions
listed in the report on relations with affiliated companies,
the company received a reasonable consideration for each
transaction in accordance with the circumstances known
to the Board at the time of undertaking the transaction.
Pfullendorf, 15 April 2013
ALNO Aktiengesellschaft

Board of Management

In conjunction with the accounting process, the internal
system of controls and risk management assists the Board
of Management and Supervisory Board in ensuring compliance with the statutory regulations.
MAX MÜLLER
Chief Executive Officer of ALNO AG

IV. BASIC PRINCIPLES OF THE REMUNER ATION
SYSTEM PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 289 (2) NO. 5
AND 315 (2) NO. 4 OF THE GERMAN COMMERCIAL
CODE (HGB)

IPEK DEMIRTAS
Chief Financial Officer

Total remuneration for the members of the Board of Management is in compliance with the statutory requirements
of the Stock Companies Act (AktG). The members of the
Board of Management receive a fixed remuneration which
also includes non-cash elements, especially the provision
of a company car. The fixed elements assure a basic level
of remuneration allowing each member of the Board of
Management to perform his or her duties in accordance
with the company's well-understood interests and the
obligations of a prudent business person, without becoming dependent on the achievement of merely short-term
targets. In addition, their service contracts also include a
variable premium element which depends on the company's economic performance.

ELMAR DUFFNER
Chief Operations Officer

RALPH BESTGEN
Chief Sales Officer

Further details including the personal emoluments are set
out in the report on remuneration, which can be found
in the Notes to the annual financial statements prepared
according to the German Commercial Code (HGB) and in
the Notes according to IFRS. The report on remuneration
is part of the management report.
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Consolidated income statement
OF ALNO AK TIENGESELLSCHAFT, PFULLENDORF, FOR THE PERIOD FROM 1 JANUARY TO 31 DECEMBER 2012

2012

2011

C. 1

446,258

452,810

Changes in inventories and capitalized goods and services for own account

C. 2

396

882

Other operating income

C. 3

9,798

6,270

456,452

459,962

in '000 EUR

Notes

Sales revenue

Total operating revenues
Cost of materials

C. 4

257,948

286,398

Personnel expenses

C. 5

97,204

98,529

Other operating expenses

C. 6

84,376

94,169

Result from reorganization (+ = expense / – = income)

C. 7

2,965

– 24,338

13,959

5,204

EBITDA
Write-ups on property, plant and equipment

C. 8

2,768

0

Write-downs on intangible assets, property, plant and equipment

C. 9

15,850

15,902

877

– 10,698

Operating result
Income from investments measured at equity

D. 4

– 276

– 3,351

Financial income

C. 10

9,004

72

Financial expenses

C. 10

10,822

11,239

Financial result

– 2,094

– 14,518

Profit/loss before income taxes

– 1,217

– 25,216

203

345

– 1,420

– 25,561

Taxes on income (+ = expense / – = income)

C. 11

Group income for the period
thereof minority shares
thereof ALNO AG shareholders' share
Earnings in EUR per share (diluted and undiluted)
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– 1,420
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
OF ALNO AK TIENGESELLSCHAFT, PFULLENDORF, FOR THE PERIOD FROM 1 JANUARY TO 31 DECEMBER 2012

in '000 EUR

Notes

Group income for the period
Currency differences due to currency translation

2012

2011

– 1,420

– 25,561

– 121

– 19

Actuarial gains and losses from pension provisions

D. 11

– 2,634

– 1,299

Deferred taxes on actuarial gains and losses from pension provisions

C. 11

566

204

– 32

– 16

0

0

Other Group income for the period

– 2,221

– 1,130

Consolidated comprehensive income

– 3,641

– 26,691

0

0

– 3,641

– 26,691

Changes in the value of securities recognized outside profit or loss
Deferred taxes on the change in value of securities recognized outside profit or
loss

thereof minority shares
thereof ALNO AG shareholders' share
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Consolidated balance sheet
OF ALNO AK TIENGESELLSCHAFT, PFULLENDORF, AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

in '000 EUR

Notes

2012

2011

ASSETS
Intangible assets

D. 1

8,685

5,989

Property, plant and equipment

D. 2

75,668

73,490

Financial assets

D. 3

2,595

3,168

At-equity investments

D. 4

0

871

Financial accounts receivable

D. 5

1,057

1,319

Deferred tax assets

C. 11

408

0

Trade accounts receivable

D. 6

563

1,283

Other assets

D. 8

237

335

A. Non-current assets

89,213

86,455

Inventories

D. 7

24,452

25,915

Trade accounts receivable

D. 6

44,773

40,056

Other assets

D. 8

4,395

4,953

Claims for income tax refunds

C. 11

17

48

Liquid assets

D. 9

B. Current assets
Total ASSETS

5,402

2,243

79,039

73,215

168,252

159,670

LIABILITIES
Subscribed capital

D. 10. a

70,095

67,847

Capital reserve

D. 10. b

3,258

45,916

Legal reserve

D. 10. c

462

0

Accumulated net income

D. 10. d

– 81,507

– 187,107

– 7,692

– 73,344

230

0

– 7,462

– 73,344

ALNO AG shareholders' share in equity
Minority shares' share in equity
A. Shareholders' equity
Provisions for pensions

D. 11

20,284

17,999

Deferred tax liabilities

C. 11

201

350

Other provisions

D. 12

2,298

3,192

Other financial liabilities

D. 14

4,027

10,482

Deferred grants and subsidies from public authorities

D. 15

730

756

Trade accounts payable and other financial liabilities

D. 16

34

60

B. Non-current liabilities

27,574

32,839

Other provisions

D. 12

5,505

5,627

Shareholder loans

D. 13

365

365

Other financial liabilities

D. 14

14,919

99,082

Trade accounts payable and other financial liabilities

D. 16

118,190

86,824

Other liabilities

D. 17

8,770

8,269

Income tax liabilities

C. 11

391

8

C. Current liabilities

148,140

200,175

Total LIABILITIES

168,252

159,670

RZ_ALNO_13001_GB_2012_Inhalt_final_ENG.indd 72

19.06.13 13:45

C O N S O L I D AT E D F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

| C O N S O L I D AT E D C A S H F LO W S TAT E M E N T

73

Consolidated cash flow statement
OF ALNO AK TIENGESELLSCHAFT, PFULLENDORF, FOR THE PERIOD FROM 1 JANUARY TO 31 DECEMBER 2012

in '000 EUR

Notes

2012

2011

– 1,420

– 25,561

Cash flow from operating activities
Group income for the period
Income taxes

203

345

2,094

14,518

Write-downs on intangible assets, property, plant and equipment

15,850

15,902

Write-ups on property, plant and equipment

– 2,768

0

Financial result

Income taxes received
Income taxes paid
Loss from the disposal of tangible and intangible assets
Interest received
Interest paid

48

7

– 159

– 282

523

472

68

55

– 7,072

– 10,403

Elimination of items without impact on cash flow
Change in other provisions, provisions for pensions
and deferred grants and subsidies from public authorities

2,430

1,207

Other income / expenditure without impact on cash flow

– 558

– 24,056

– 4,804

– 5,224

4,435

– 33,020

Change in inventories

1,982

2,266

Change in trade accounts receivable
and other assets

3,775

– 9,156

24,186

36,649

34,378

– 3,261

Change in other provisions with impact on cash flow
Cash flow from operating activities
before change in working capital
Change in working capital

Change in trade accounts payable
and other debts
Net cash provided for (previous year: used in)
operating activities
Cash flow from investment activities
Cash outflows for investment in
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Financial assets
Cash outflows for company acquisitions

– 1,212

– 1,937

– 12,997

– 16,660

– 459

– 66

– 1,190

0

Cash inflows from the disposal of
Property, plant and equipment
Financial assets
Net cash used for investment activities

121

1,214

1,000

311

– 14,737

– 17,138

Cash flow from financing activities
2,400

0

Retirement of financial liabilities

Issuance of financial liabilities

– 41,876

– 3,508

Change in current account liabilities

– 20,776

– 613

Cash inflows from capital increases

46,200

26,095

Cash outflows for financing costs

– 1,907

– 1,923

– 15,959

20,051

3,682

– 348

634

981

Net cash used in (previous year: provided for)
financing activities
Change in cash and cash equivalents due to business activities
Cash fund (cash and cash equivalents) at the beginning of the financial year
Change in cash and cash equivalents due to exchange rate movements
Cash fund (cash and cash equivalents) at the end of the financial year
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
OF ALNO AK TIENGESELLSCHAFT, PFULLENDORF, FOR THE PERIOD FROM 1 JANUARY TO 31 DECEMBER 2012

Subscribed
capital

Capital
reserve

Legal
reserve

Equity
attributable to
shareholders of
ALNO AG

Accumulated net income
Other transactions outside
profit or loss

in '000 EUR
Notes

D.10. a

D.10. b

1 January 2011

45,231

42,437

D.10. c

Group income
for the period

Generated
Group equity

Currency
translation
reserve

Change in
provisions for
pensions

Change in value
of securities

D.10. d

D.10. d

D.10. d

D.10. d

– 156,154

– 615

– 632

11

– 25,561

Other Group
income for the
period
Consolidated comprehensive income
Capital increase

– 25,561
22,616

31 December 2011

45,916

– 184,741

Group income
for the period

Consolidated comprehensive income
Capital increase

Capital reduction

– 41,752

Waiver of repayment
by shareholders

– 44,858

– 1,130

– 19

– 1,095

– 16

– 26,691

– 26,691

26,095

26,095

– 3,026

– 3,026

– 73,344

– 73,344

– 1,420

– 1,420

– 634

– 1,727

–5

– 2,068

– 32

– 2,221

– 2,221

– 121

– 2,068

– 32

– 3,641

– 3,641

46,200

46,200

– 1,907

– 1,907

– 1,907

86,610

0

0

25,000

25,000

25,000

0

0

– 462

0

0

25,000

Withdrawal from
capital reserve to
offset loss

– 25,000

Allocation to legal
reserve

462

Change in scope of
consolidation
31 December 2012

70,095
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3,258

462

– 25,561

– 1,130

2,200

Transaction costs

– 25,561

– 121
– 1,420
44,000

– 69,722

– 16

– 1,420

Other Group
income for the
period

– 69,722

– 1,095

– 3,026
67,847

Group
equity

– 19

3,479

Transaction costs

Minority
shares

– 76,920

– 755

– 3,795

– 37

0

230

230

– 7,692

230

– 7,462
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF ALNO AK TIENGESELLSCHAFT, PFULLENDORF,
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2012

A. Object of the company
ALNO Aktiengesellschaft, Pfullendorf (hereinafter referred
to as "ALNO AG"), a listed joint stock corporation under
German law, and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to
as the "ALNO Group"), manufacture and market fitted
kitchens for the world market, predominantly under the
brand names ALNO, IMPULS, PINO and WELLMANN.
We refer to the information in the single-entity and group
management report with regard to the Group structure
and main activities of the ALNO Group. The Group, with
ALNO AG as its ultimate parent, is based at Heiligenberger
Strasse 47 in 88630 Pfullendorf, Germany.

B. Accounting policies
1. BASIS FOR PREPAR ATION OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The 2012 consolidated financial statements of ALNO AG
have been prepared in compliance with the standards and
interpretations of the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB), London, to be applied in the EU and in effect
on the closing date. The applicable further requirements of
Section 315a of the German Commercial Code have also
been taken into account.
The Group currency is the euro. All figures are stated in
thousands of euros ('000 EUR), unless stated otherwise.
The consolidated financial statements and Group management report, which has been combined with the management report of ALNO AG, were approved by the Board
of Management on 11 April 2013 to be forwarded to the
Supervisory Board.
The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the
basis of a going concern and are based on the principle of
the historical amortized cost of acquisition, construction
or production, except for financial assets which are recognized at fair value. The balance sheet is presented using
the classification according to current (short-term) and noncurrent (long-term) assets and liabilities. All items which do
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not mature within one year are classified as non-current
assets or liabilities. Deferred taxes are likewise posted as
non-current assets and liabilities.
The Board of Management and all corporate entities continue to pursue the objective of ensuring that the company
is financially sound, competitive and profitable in the long
term.
On 11 July 2012, the Board of Management concluded a
skeleton agreement (restructuring agreement III) implementing a long-term capitalization and financial concept
with the company's main stakeholders (Küchen Holding GmbH, Munich, IRE Beteiligungs GmbH, Stuttgart,
Bauknecht Hausgeräte GmbH, Stuttgart, Comco Holding AG, Nidau/Switzerland, Starlet Investment AG, Nidau/
Switzerland, and the four syndicate banks). Among other
things it included a capital reduction with subsequent
cash capital increase guaranteed by an existing shareholder, as well as significant restructuring contributions
by the syndicate banks and existing shareholders. As
agreed, the ALNO Group's main financial liabilities owing
to the former syndicate banks were settled and repaid on
27 November 2012 – insofar as they had not been waived
by the banks – from funds provided through ALNO AG's
capital increase. Security totalling hundreds of millions was
returned to ALNO AG when these liabilities were repaid
in full. The follow-on financing with new banks which had
been planned in accordance with the restructuring agreement III has not yet been realized.
A new capitalization and financial concept 2013 was drawn
up by the Board of Management of ALNO AG in spring
2013 (see section N. "Events after the closing date").
The concept's main cornerstones include the moratorium and loan agreements signed with Bauknecht Hausgeräte GmbH, Stuttgart, and Comco Holding AG, Nidau/
Switzerland on 11 April 2013. In addition, the Board of
Management of ALNO AG decided to issue a so-called
"SME bond" with a volume of up to EUR 45 million on
the Entry Standard of the German Stock Exchange in
Frankfurt. Further elements of the concept include taking
out new credit lines in the amount of EUR 15.0 million
and increasing the ALNO Group's factoring volume with a
liquidity effect of around EUR 7 million.
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Due to the legal and financial complexity of the individual
financial contributions, as well as restrictions with regard
to time-limits, implementation of the capitalization and
financial concept entails risks which are not inconsiderable.
In addition, it is assumed that domestic credit insurers
and suppliers will not change their terms of payment to
the disadvantage of the company in relation to the present
or planned level. The existing factoring line and credit lines
must also be maintained as planned, in addition to the
increases in factoring volume and credit lines described
above.
The Board of Management is confident that the ALNO
Group's planned growth, particularly in attractive international operations, can be realized when this capitalization
and financial concept is implemented.
Sales revenue in the first quarter of 2013 remained below
the previous year's level. This trend is in line with the corporate planning, which provides for a focus on sales with
high margins. However, orders received fell short of the
planned level in the first quarter of 2013. The company still
expects to meet the planned sales targets for the financial
year 2013, with higher revenues than in the previous year.
Continuation of the business activities of ALNO AG and
the ALNO Group presupposes that the aforementioned
capitalization and financial concept for 2013, i.e. issuance
of a bond with a volume of at least EUR 40.0 million, taking
out new credit lines in the amount of EUR 15.0 million
and increasing the ALNO Group's factoring volume with
a liquidity effect of roughly EUR 7.0 million, can be implemented in full and in good time, as planned, and that strict
liquidity management continues to apply. The assumptions made in corporate planning, particularly with regard
to sales and profit targets, must also apply as planned.
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2. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

New standards to be applied
The amended IASB standards which became mandatory
in 2012 have been taken into account by the ALNO Group,
insofar as they have been endorsed by the European Union.
The following changes have been introduced:
•

Amendment to IFRS 7 – Disclosures relating to the transfer of financial assets

The amendment to IFRS 7 provides for additional disclosures on transactions concerning the transfer of financial
assets. Attention focuses particularly on the risks remaining with the transferring party. Further disclosure requirements apply for reporting periods towards the end of
which a disproportionately large number of transfers are
undertaken. First-time compliance with these amendments has affected the disclosures in the Notes to the consolidated financial statements insofar as financial assets
are transferred and the Group retains at least some of the
risks and rewards associated with ownership of the assets
(factoring of accounts receivable).

Published accounting standards that are not yet
applied
The following standards and interpretations have additionally been adopted or amended by the IASB and endorsed
by the European Union, but their application is not yet
mandatory and they have not been applied prematurely.
They must be applied for reporting periods beginning on
or after the amendment concerned comes into force.
•

IFRS 10 – Consolidated Financial Statements (effective
date: 1 January 2014; retrospective)

•

IFRS 11 – Joint Arrangements (effective date: 1 January
2014; retrospective)

•

IFRS 12 – Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (effective
date: 1 January 2014; retrospective)

•

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 – Transition
guidance (effective date: 1 January 2013; retrospective)
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•

IFRS 13 – Fair Value Measurement (effective date:
1 January 2013; prospective)

•

Amendment to IAS 1 – Presentation of elements making
up the other operating result (effective date: 1 July 2012;
retrospective)

•

Amendment to IAS 12 – Deferred Taxes: Realization
of underlying assets (effective date: 1 January 2013;
retrospective)

•

Amendment to IAS 19 – Employee Benefits (effective
date: 1 January 2013; retrospective)

•

Revised version of IAS 27 – Single-entity Financial Statements (effective date: 1 January 2014; retrospective)

•

Revised version of IAS 28 – Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures (effective date: 1 January 2014;
retrospective)

•

Amendment to IFRS 7 and IAS 32 – Financial Instruments: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (effective date: 1 January 2013 and 1 January 2014;
retrospective)

•

IFRIC 20 – Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine (effective date: 1 January 2013;
retrospective)

•

Improvements to IFRS 2009 – 2011 (effective date:
1 January 2013; retrospective)

•

IFRS 10, 11 and 12 – New rules on consolidation:

With IFRS 10, 11 and 12, the IASB has published three
new standards, as well as two revised standards – IAS 27
and 28 – for reporting business combinations.
IFRS 10 is the result of the "Consolidation" project and will
replace the consolidation guidelines in IAS 27 and SIC-12.
The standards to be applied to IFRS single-entity financial
statements remain unchanged in IAS 27. IFRS 10 focuses
on the introduction of a uniform consolidation model for all
entities, based on control of the subsidiary by the parent.
The concept of control must consequently be applied
not only to parent-subsidiary relations based on voting
rights, but also to parent-subsidiary relations based on
other contractual agreements. The concept of control must
therefore be applied in future to special purpose entities
which are currently consolidated according to the concept
of risks and rewards.
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IFRS 11 was developed from the "Joint Ventures" project
and will replace IAS 31. Quota consolidation will be abolished when IAS 31 becomes ineffective. Parallel changes in
terminology and classification must be taken into account,
with the result that not all joint ventures which are currently included in the scope of quota consolidation need be
reported at equity in future. The equity method is applied in
accordance with the requirements of IAS 28 incorporating
subsequent amendments.
IFRS 12 combines the revised disclosure requirements
of IAS 27, IFRS 10, IAS 31, IFRS 11 and IAS 28 in a
single standard. It also introduces new requirements, such
as disclosures relating to major subsidiaries which are
included in the consolidated financial statements.
We do not expect any substantial effects on the consolidated financial statements, as the ALNO Group has neither
special purpose entities nor joint ventures.
•

IFRS 13 – Fair Value Measurement:

The new standard rounds off the project to establish a
uniform, all-embracing standard for measurement. IFRS
13 defines the procedure to be applied for measurement
at fair value insofar as fair value measurement (or fair value
disclosure) is stipulated by another IFRS. According to the
new definition of fair value, fair value is characterized as
being the selling price of an actual or hypothetical transaction between any two independent market-players under
standard market conditions. The standard is almost allembracing, only IAS 17 and IFRS 2 are excluded. While the
scope of these requirements remains almost unchanged for
financial instruments, it is now defined more comprehensively and more precisely for other assets (e.g. investment
property, intangible assets, property, plant and equipment).
Where financial instruments are concerned, the effect of
market and credit risks can now be included in the fair
value of a portfolio on balance, insofar as a relationship
between such effects can be proved. The 3-stage fair value
hierarchy familiar from IFRS 7 must be applied throughout. Two checks must now be performed for "declining
market activities" (previously "inactive markets"), namely
(a) whether trade activities have declined and (b) whether
subsequent transactions actually undertaken were not in
conformity with the market: a price deviating from the market price is only permitted if both are affirmed.
Due to the small scope of financial assets recognized at
fair value, we do not expect any material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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Amendment to IAS 1 – Presentation of elements making
up the other operating result:

This amended standard introduces new requirements as
regards the presentation and development of other operating results. The individual elements making up the other
operating result must consequently be classified according to whether or not they are subsequently reclassified
in the income statement (so-called recycling process).
Compliance with this requirement will result in changed
presentation of the statement of comprehensive income
in future. The amendment solely affects presentation of
the statement of comprehensive income and has no effect
on the ALNO Group's net assets, financial position and
results of operations.
•

Amendment to IAS 12 – Deferred Taxes: Realization of
underlying assets

The amendment to IAS 12 basically concerns the calculation of deferred taxes for real estate held as financial
investments, which must be valued at fair value as required
by IAS 40. Since no such assets are recognized in the consolidated financial statements, first-time compliance with
these amendments will have no effect on the calculation of
deferred taxes in the ALNO Group.
•

Amendment to IAS 19 – Employee Benefits

IAS 19 has been comprehensively revised by the IASB.
The adjustments made range from fundamental changes,
such as calculation of expected gains from plan assets and
cancellation of the corridor method, to mere clarifications
and changes in the wording. Since actuarial gains and
losses are already recognized in equity, the new accounting requirements will not have any material impact on the
net assets, financial position and results of operations of
the ALNO Group.

•

The revised standard IAS 28 was published in May 2011
and must be applied for the first time in the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2014. Through the adoption of IFRS 11 and IFRS 12, the scope of IAS 28 has
been extended to application of the equity method for
investments in joint ventures, as well as associates. With
regard to the effects, the reader is referred to our explanatory notes on IFRS 10, 11 and 12.
•
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Amendment to IFRS 7 and IAS 32 – Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

The IASB has additionally published supplements to IAS
32 and IFRS 7. With these, the IASB has clarified a number of details concerning the offsetting of financial assets
and liabilities, and calls for supplementary disclosures
relating to these. It does not, however, change the existing
principle of offsetting pursuant to IAS 32. Clarification of
the criteria "simultaneous settlement" and "currently has
a legally enforceable right to set-off" will only lead to a
change in accounting conventions if IAS 32 was formerly
interpreted differently. In future, gross and net sums resulting on balance and sums for existing set-off rights which,
however, do not meet with the criteria for setting off in the
balance sheet, must also be reported in tabular form as
a supplementary, mandatory disclosure. This clarification
will not lead to any change in accounting practice by the
ALNO Group.
First-time compliance with the other standards and interpretations had no effect on presentation of the ALNO
Group's net assets, financial position and results of operations, as such circumstances did not apply in the financial
year.
•

The effects due to changes in reporting plan assets are
immaterial, due to the low value of the plan assets. The
changed accounting requirements for employee termination payments will primarily affect the recognition and
measurement of additional sums to top up pre-retirement
part-time working arrangements. However, the changes
will not lead to any substantial change in the ALNO Group's
net assets, financial position and results of operations.

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
(revised 2011)

Improvements to IFRS 2009 – 2011:

This is a collective standard which was published in May
2012 and relates to changes in the various standards.
Except for the rulings specifically mentioned below, these
changes are without effect for the consolidated financial
statements of ALNO AG:
IAS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements: Comparative information: The proposed amendment establishes
that, above and beyond the comparative period for which
disclosure is mandatory, only individual items of comparative information need be disclosed voluntarily without at
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the same time creating an obligation to disclose a complete comparative financial statement. In addition, it also
establishes that, when accounting policies are changed
retroactively or when balance sheet items are adjusted
or reclassified retroactively, the third balance sheet for
which disclosure is mandatory must always be prepared
at the start of the comparative period for which disclosure
is mandatory. Notes to this balance sheet are no longer
mandatory.
IAS 16 – Property, plant and equipment: Classification of
maintenance equipment: The amendment clarifies that the
application rules for inventories do not apply to essential
spare parts and maintenance equipment qualifying as
property, plant and equipment.
IAS 32 – Financial Instruments: Presentation: The proposed amendment eliminates the conflict between IAS 32
and IAS 12 "Income Taxes" with regard to recognition of
the tax consequences of dividend payments and transaction costs resulting from the issue and retirement of equity
instruments. These must be reported in compliance with
IAS 12.
IAS 34 – Interim Financial Reporting: Segment assets and
segment liabilities need only be disclosed in the interim
report if the disclosure forms the subject of regular reporting to the main decision-making body of the entity. This
proposed amendment brings the disclosure requirements
of IAS 34 into line with those of IFRS 8 "Operating Segments".
The following new standards issued by the IASB have not
yet been endorsed by the European Union. Their application is not yet mandatory and they are not applied prematurely on a voluntary basis.
•

IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments: Classification and measurement (effective date: 1 January 2015; retrospective)

•

Amendment to IFRS 7 and IFRS 9 – Disclosures:
Time-frame for application and transition rules (effective
date: 1 January 2015; retrospective)

•

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 –
Investment companies (effective date: 1 January 2014;
retrospective)

The amendments apply for financial years beginning on or
after the amendments come into force. The standards of
relevance to the ALNO Group and their consequences for
the consolidated financial statements are outlined below.
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IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments: Classifi cation and
Measurement:

This standard was issued by the IASB as the first part
of a project fundamentally revising the accounting treatment of financial instruments and contains new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities. It will supersede the former IAS 39.
Financial assets must now be reported either at amortized
cost of acquisition or recognized through profit and loss
at fair value, depending on their respective characteristics
and with due regard for the business model or models.
Equity instruments must always be measured at fair value,
in contrast to the requirements currently in force. Fluctuations in the value of equity instruments may, however,
also be recognized directly in equity. For equity instruments, only certain income from shareholdings will be
recognized as income in this case. At present, changes
in the value of securities recognized at fair value (debt
instruments) are recognized in equity outside profit or loss
in the consolidated financial statements. As a result of the
changes introduced by IFRS 9, these changes in value will
be posted in the income statement when IFRS 9 comes
into effect. Due to the small scope of changes in value
recognized outside profit or loss to date, application of
the new standard will not have any material effect on the
consolidated financial statements of ALNO AG.
On 28 October 2010, the IASB published the revised
standard IFRS 9 which has been extended to include
financial liabilities. The former requirements of IAS 39
were to a large extent retained. One change concerns
the recognition of financial liabilities, which are measured
at fair value and treated as income through application
of the fair value option. In future, the change in fair value
resulting from the change in own credit risk must be
recognized under other operating results and not in the
consolidated income statement. A second change relates
to liabilities from derivative financial instruments which are
linked to unlisted equity instruments. These liabilities must
in future always be reported at fair value, while the currently applicable requirements permit measurement at the
amortized cost of acquisition. Since the fair value option
is not exercised by the ALNO Group, application of the
new standard is not expected to have any impact on the
consolidated financial statements of ALNO AG.
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3. CONSOLIDATION PRINCIPLES

Scope of consolidation
Group parent is the company ALNO AG which is entered
in the Register of Companies of Ulm Local Court
(HRB 727041). In accordance with the principles of full
consolidation, the consolidated financial statements as at
31 December 2012 include not only ALNO AG, but also
twelve (previous year: nine) German and six (previous year:
three) foreign companies in which ALNO AG directly or
indirectly holds a majority of the share capital.
The Group's composition (excluding ALNO AG) is set out
below:

1.1.2012
Fully consolidated subsidiaries

First-time
consolidation

Legal
changes

Deconsolidation

12

31.12.2012
18

thereof in Germany

9

3

0

0

12

thereof abroad

3

3

1

–1

6

Companies valued
at equity

1

0

–1

0

0

Special purpose entities

2

0

–2

0

0

The scope of consolidation in Germany was enlarged
with effect from 1 July 2012 following the acquisition of
shares in the companies logismo Möbellogistik Spedition
S.I.G. GmbH, Pfullendorf, logismo Möbellogistik Spedition
H.S.K. GmbH, Brilon, and logismo Möbellogistik Spedition
A.Z.E. GmbH, Coswig (Anhalt).
Changes in the scope of consolidation abroad concerned
ALNO USA Corporation, New York/USA, which was set up
in 2012, as well as the companies Built-In Kitchens Ltd.,
Sevenoaks/United Kingdom, and Built-In Living Ltd., Sevenoaks/United Kingdom, which were acquired with effect
from 1 April 2012. ALNO France S.à.r.l., Cagnes-sur-Mèr/
France, was liquidated as per 31 December 2012.
After increasing the percentage interest held from 50% in
the previous year to 85% in 2012, ALNO Middle East has
now been included in the consolidated financial statements
for the first time, in accordance with the principles of full
consolidation. In the previous year, it was included according to the equity method. The requirements for control pursuant to IAS 27.13 were irrefutably given on 30 December
2012, as ALNO AG held the majority of voting shares on
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that date and can consequently dictate the essential operational financial and business policy of ALNO Middle East.
31 December 2012 was selected as the date for first-time
consolidation. The differences resulting from the discrepancy between the date of acquiring control (30 December)
and the date of first-time consolidation (31 December) can
be disregarded as immaterial. In the outcome, this means
that ALNO Middle East must be fully consolidated for the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2012 (with
corresponding recognition of the minority shares in equity),
while the shares continue to be measured according to
the equity method for the consolidated income statement,
and the result from at-equity measurement of the shares
is reported in the financial result.
In the previous year, two special purpose entities in which
ALNO exercised financial control over the companies were
fully consolidated as permitted by IAS 27 in combination with SIC 12. ALNO held 100% of the shares in both
companies, but did not have any voting rights under the
partnership agreements. The two companies accrued to
ALNO AG in the 2012 financial year.
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Company acquisitions
LOGISMO MÖBELLOGISTIK SPEDITION S.I.G. GMBH,
LOGISMO MÖBELLOGISTIK SPEDITION H.S.K. GMBH
AND LOGISMO MÖBELLOGISTIK SPEDITION A .Z.E.
GMBH (JOINTLY REFERRED TO AS THE "LOGISMO
GROUP")

Effective 1 July 2012, the Group acquired 100% of the
capital and voting shares of its former logistic serviceprovider's three operating companies logismo GmbH
internationale Spedition, Pfullendorf, logismo Möbellogistik
Spedition S.I.G. GmbH, Pfullendorf, logismo Möbellogistik
Spedition H.S.K. GmbH, Brilon, and logismo Möbellogistik
Spedition A.Z.E. GmbH, Coswig (Anhalt). Competitiveness will be enhanced as a result of this organizational
restructuring, by integrating logistics into the sales and
order handling process.
The provisional purchase price for the logismo Group
totalled EUR 420 thousand altogether. In order to calculate
the final purchase price, the respective companies' current assets at the time of acquisition were added to their
purchase price, and the sum of their respective provisions
and liabilities deducted. On the basis of interim accounts
prepared at the time of acquisition, the purchase price was
adjusted by EUR +47 thousand in the current financial year.
The purchase price was paid in cash.
The fair value of the logismo Group's identifiable assets
and liabilities at the time of acquisition is listed below:

Balance sheet item

'000 EUR

Intangible assets

93

Property, plant and equipment

75

Trade accounts receivable

1,440

Other assets

116

Liquid assets

816

Provisions

– 74

Trade accounts payable

–2,024

Other accounts payable

– 216

Acquired net assets

226

Purchase price

467

Goodwill

241
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The contractually agreed gross value of the acquired trade
receivables matches their fair value.
The goodwill generated in conjunction with the takeover
was ascribed to the cash generating unit logismo. The
additional price was paid for existing know-how in the
logistics sector. It is presumed that the reported goodwill
cannot be deducted against tax.
Since being taken over, the logismo Group has reported
sales before consolidation entries in the amount of
EUR 10,036 thousand and a result after taxes on income
in the amount of EUR 177 thousand. Sales revenue
before consolidation entries in 2012 totalled EUR 22,379
thousand and the result after taxes on income EUR 383
thousand.
Had the logismo Group been fully consolidated for the first
time as per 1 January 2012, this would have resulted in an
increase of EUR 0 thousand in consolidated sales revenue
and an increase of EUR 207 thousand in the consolidated
result after taxes on income.
Transaction costs in the amount of EUR 83 thousand have
been expensed and are reported under other operating
expenses.
BUILT-IN KITCHENS LTD., BUILT-IN LIVING LTD.
(BUILT-IN GROUP)

ALNO UK, a wholly owned subsidiary of ALNO AG,
acquired 100% of Built-In Kitchens Ltd., Sevenoaks,
United Kingdom, and its wholly owned subsidiary Built-In
Living Ltd., Sevenoaks, United Kingdom, with effect from
1 April 2012. In the past, Built-In Living Ltd. worked for
ALNO UK on a commission basis. It wins new customers
for project business in Southeast England and London.
The company undertakes the entire work process, from
designing the kitchens to installing them.
The purpose underlying this takeover was to prevent
other competitors entering the market and to secure cost
benefits from the sales commissions saved in the future.
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The provisional purchase price totalled EUR 4,247 thousand. A variable purchase price was additionally agreed.
The amount of the variable purchase price depends on the
amount of sales revenue in the period 2012 to 2014. This
is a contingent counter-performance obliging ALNO AG
to transfer additional assets to the former proprietors of
the acquired company as part of the exchange of control
over the acquired company if certain future events occur
or conditions are met. ALNO AG must recognize the fair
value of the contingent counter-performance at the time
of acquisition as part of the counter-performance transferred for the acquired company. Since it was assumed
at the time of acquisition that the set conditions would
not be met, the contingent counter-performance has been
reported with a provisional value of EUR 0 thousand.
As at 31 December 2012, the contingent counter-performance was retroactively corrected with effect from the
time of acquisition following new information concerning
the sales prognosis for 2012 which, had it been known
at the time, would already have applied at the time of
acquisition and would have influenced measurement of
the sums applied on the closing date. All relevant factors
were taken into account by ALNO AG when determining
whether information received after the acquisition date
should result in correction of the provisional sums reported
or whether such information related to events occurring
after the acquisition date. This new information resulted
in a fair value of EUR 209 thousand for the contingent
counter-performance, which consequently increased
to EUR 209 thousand. Goodwill increases by the same
amount in keeping with IFRS 3.48. The contingent counterperformance which is now recognized is at the upper end
of the range.
The sum of EUR 2,799 thousand has already been paid
as at 31 December 2012. A loan in the amount of the
remaining sum has been issued in favour of the seller with
a term of two years and two months.
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The acquired assets and liabilities are reported at the following fair value as at the time of acquisition:

Balance sheet item

'000 EUR

Intangible assets

224

Property, plant and equipment

132

Inventories
Trade accounts receivable

3
1,201

Other assets

22

Liquid assets

1,501

Trade accounts payable

– 39

Other liabilities

–159

Income tax liabilities

– 430

Acquired net assets

2,455

Purchase price

4,456

Goodwill

2,001

Subsequent value adjustments in the provisional first-time
consolidation have reduced the acquired net assets by
EUR 127 thousand. Goodwill increased accordingly.
The contractually agreed gross value of the acquired trade
receivables matches their fair value.
The goodwill generated in conjunction with the takeover
has been ascribed to the cash generating unit ALNO UK,
which also includes the two newly acquired companies.
The additional price was paid for existing know-how in the
field of kitchen design in project business, as well as for the
business model's possible extension to other regions. It is
presumed that the reported goodwill cannot be deducted
against tax.
Since being taken over, Built-In Kitchens Ltd. and its subsidiary have reported sales before consolidation entries
in the amount of EUR 2,353 thousand and a result after
taxes on income in the amount of EUR 239 thousand.
Sales revenue before consolidation entries in 2012 totalled
EUR 3,018 thousand and the result after taxes on income
EUR 176 thousand.
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Had Built-In Kitchens Ltd. and its subsidiary been fully
consolidated for the first time as per 1 January 2012, this
would have resulted in an increase of EUR 100 thousand
in consolidated sales revenue and a decrease of EUR 64
thousand in the consolidated result after taxes on income.

Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Inventories

ALNO MIDDLE EAST FZCO, DUBAI/UAE

As per 30 December 2012, ALNO AG acquired a further
35% of the shares and voting rights in ALNO Middle East,
thus increasing its total voting share to 85%. The company produces kitchen furniture in Dubai and sells this in
growth markets in the Gulf region, as well as in Jordan,
Oman, Pakistan and India.
The Group has decided to measure the shares without a
controlling influence in the company in accordance with
the prorated identifiable net assets. At the time of acquisition, these shares were worth EUR 230 thousand.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Trade accounts receivable

'000 EUR
6
1,611
516
3,098

Other assets

245

Liquid assets

59

Trade accounts payable

-1,106

Other accounts payable

– 2,896

Fair value of the net assets (100%)

1,533

thereof accruing to ALNO (85%)

1,303

Purchase price

406

Fair value of shares held to date

580

Purchase price below market value

317

The purchase price amounts to EUR 406 thousand in
total. Of this, EUR 300 thousand were paid in 2012. The
remaining EUR 106 thousand are reported under other
financial liabilities and have a remaining term of less than
one year.

The contractually agreed gross value of the acquired
trade receivables amounts to EUR 4,228 thousand.
The contractual and presumably irrecoverable cash
flows existing at the time of acquisition total EUR 1,130
thousand.

Together with the takeover, ALNO AG acquired accounts
payable by ALNO Middle East in the amount of EUR 2,294
thousand from the seller. The liabilities resulting from the
purchase are reported under other non-current financial
liabilities in the amount of EUR 900 thousand and under
other current financial liabilities in the amount of EUR
1,394,000.

The shares in ALNO Middle East were acquired on
account of the advantageous purchase price, which
was below their market value. The resultant gain totalled
EUR 317 thousand and has been reported under other
operating income. The advantageous purchase price is
attributable to the fact that ALNO AG acquired the seller's
accounts receivable from ALNO Middle East, with the
result that the seller agreed to a lower selling price. Had
this not been the case, special circumstances might have
made it possible to liquidate ALNO Middle East, with the
result that the seller's accounts receivable from ALNO Middle East would have been worthless.

The fair value of the shares already held at the time of
acquiring the company totalled EUR 580 thousand. Impairment losses recognized in the mid-year financial statements
as at 30 June 2012 were consequently reversed in the
amount of the fair value of EUR 580 thousand and are
reported in the financial result (result from shares measured
at equity).
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On the basis of a provisional purchase price allocation,
the acquired assets and liabilities were recognized at the
following fair values at the time of acquisition:

Balance sheet item

Transaction costs in the amount of EUR 121 thousand
have been expensed and are reported under other operating expenses.

|

Since being taken over, ALNO Middle East has reported
sales before consolidation entries in the amount of EUR 0
thousand and a result after taxes on income in the amount
of EUR 0 thousand. Sales revenue before consolidation
entries in 2012 totalled EUR 2,493 thousand and the result
after taxes on income EUR –179 thousand.
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Had ALNO Middle East been fully consolidated for the
first time as per 1 January 2012, this would have resulted
in an increase of EUR 2,493 thousand in consolidated
sales revenue and an increase of EUR 20 thousand in the
consolidated result after taxes on income.
Transaction costs in the amount of EUR 61 thousand have
been expensed and are reported under other operating
expenses.

Consolidation policies
All companies included in the consolidated financial statements prepare their annual financial statements as per the
closing date of the single-entity financial statements of
ALNO AG, i.e. as per the closing date of the consolidated
financial statements. The consolidated financial statements
are prepared on the basis of uniform recognition and measurement policies in compliance with the IFRS requirements
to be applied in the EU.
Capital consolidation is effected in accordance with IFRS
3 using the acquisition method. At the time of acquiring
control, the subsidiary's new measured assets and liabilities, as well as contingent liabilities insofar as they are not
contingent on a future event, are offset at the fair value of
the consideration paid for the asset or liability. Contingent
purchase price payments are included in the fair value of
the consideration to be paid in the expected amount and
carried as liabilities. Subsequent adjustments in contingent
purchase price payments are recognized as profit or loss.
Incidental costs associated with the acquisition are carried
as expenses at the time incurred.
A remaining asset-side balancing item is recognized as
goodwill. The unimpaired status of capitalized goodwill is
checked within the framework of an impairment test as
at the closing date. Negative differences resulting from
capital consolidation are recognized as income in the
consolidated income statement.
Income and expenses and accounts receivable and payable between consolidated companies are eliminated,
as are provisions. Interim results in the fixed assets and
inventories from intra-Group deliveries are eliminated.
Deferred taxes are recognized on consolidation measures
with impact on profit or loss. Intra-Group guarantees are
eliminated.

Currency translation
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
euros, the functional currency of ALNO AG.
The annual financial statements of foreign subsidiaries
are translated into euros according to the functional currency concept pursuant to IAS 21. Since all consolidated
companies pursue their business independently, the
functional currency is always the currency of the country
concerned. Assets and liabilities are therefore translated
at the exchange rate on the closing date; items in the
consolidated income statement are translated at the average exchange rate of the year; equity is recognized at
historical rates. Differences resulting from application of
the different foreign exchange rates are recognized outside
profit or loss.
Differences due to currency translation of intra-Group
accounts receivable and payable in foreign currency, which
are neither scheduled nor expected to be settled within
a foreseeable period of time, are recognized in the consolidated financial statements outside profit or loss under
the provision from currency translation in accordance with
IAS 21.32.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are
posted in the single-entity financial statements at the
exchange rate on the transaction date and translated at
the closing rate on each closing date. Currency differences
are recognized as income and reported under other operating income and expenses. Non-monetary foreign currency
items are translated at the exchange rate on the transaction
date.
Exchange losses are set off against exchange gains for
presentation in the consolidated income statement.
The following exchange rates were applied for translating
foreign currencies to euros:

per
EUR

31.12.2012

31.12.2011

Average
rate 2012

Average rate
2011

GBP

0.81787

0.8379

0.81149

0.8682

CHF

1.20754

1.2169

1.20548

1.2336

AED

4.85432

4.72488

USD

1.32164

1.28608

Entities are no longer included in the consolidated financial
statements when the parent's control ends.
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Consideration of earnings

ally recognized on tax loss carryforwards if it is sufficiently
probable that the resultant tax reliefs will actually occur in
the future.

Sales are posted at the date on which risk is transferred
following delivery on the basis of the terms of sale, minus
returns, volume and price discounts and value-added tax.
Only the product sales resulting from ordinary business
activities and the associated accessory services are recognized as sales.

The soundness of deferred tax assets on tax loss carryforwards is assessed on the basis of the tax planning for the
next four years. Recognition of deferred tax assets also
takes account of the existence of temporary differences to
be taxed in conjunction with the same tax authorities and
the same tax subject.

Earnings from services rendered are recognized in
accordance with the degree of completion, if the amount
of income can be reliably determined and receipt of the
economic benefit can be expected.

Deferred taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates
in force in the various countries at the time of realization
or to be expected with reasonable probability according
to the present legal situation.

Other earnings are realized in accordance with the contractual agreements and on completion of the service.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is checked on
each closing date and reduced to the extent that adequate
taxable income which can at least partly be set off against
the deferred tax entitlement no longer appears probable.
Unrecognized deferred tax entitlements are checked
on each closing date and recognized to the extent that
future taxable income makes realization of the deferred tax
entitlement probable.

4. SUMMARY OF MAIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial result
The financial result essentially comprises interest income
from cash investments and interest expenses for loans.
Interest received and paid is recognized as income at the
time of creation.
Cost of financing is capitalized as part of the cost of
acquisition or production, insofar as it can be assigned
to a qualified asset. In all other cases, it is immediately
recognized as an expense.
Income taxes
As required by IAS 12, income tax refunds and liabilities for
the current and prior periods are measured in the expected
amount of the refund from, or payment to, the tax authorities. Amounts are calculated on the basis of the tax rates
and tax laws in force on the balance sheet date.

85

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are netted when the
conditions have been met for setting off taxes receivable
against taxes payable.
In addition, deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized when they result from first-time recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability associated with a transaction
not relating to a business combination, and when such
first-time recognition impacts neither the reported profit/
loss before income taxes nor the taxable income.
Deferred taxes relating to items which are directly recognized in equity are reported in equity and not in the
consolidated income statement.

In addition, the deferred income tax reliefs or burdens to
be calculated in compliance with IAS 12 from temporary
differences between the carrying values recognized in the
consolidated financial statements prepared according to
IFRS and their local tax bases, as well as from consolidation
measures, are recognized as either deferred tax assets or
deferred tax liabilities. Deferred tax assets are addition-
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Turnover tax

Proper ty, plant and equipment

Income, expenses, intangible assets and property, plant
and equipment are recognized after deduction of turnover tax, insofar as the turnover tax can be collected or
is refunded by a tax authority. Accounts receivable and
payable are recognized inclusive of turnover tax. Provisions
are carried as liabilities without considering turnover tax.

Property, plant and equipment is measured at acquisition or production cost in compliance with IAS 16, minus
amortization, depreciation and impairment losses.
They are written down on a straight-line basis and pro
rata temporis in accordance with the following estimated
useful economic life:

The amount of turnover tax refunded by, or payable to,
a tax authority is reported under other assets and other
liabilities.

Years
Buildings

Intangible assets
Purchased and self-generated intangible assets are
capitalized in compliance with IAS 38 at their acquisition
or production cost if use of the asset is probably associated
with future economic benefit and the costs of the asset can
be reliably determined.
The cost of production of intangible assets exclusively
comprises directly attributable costs.
With regard to the reporting and measurement of goodwill, we refer to the information provided on consolidation
policies, as well as to the information in the Section
"Impairment test for goodwill".
Other intangible assets – predominantly software and other
industrial property rights – are recognized at acquisition
cost and amortized in accordance with their useful life of
two to ten years.
Carrying amounts, useful life and amortization methods are
reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted
if required.

Machinery, factory and office equipment
Computer systems

25 – 60

2 – 25
3–7

Property, plant or equipment is derecognized either on
disposal or when further use or sale of the asset is not
expected to yield any further economic benefit. Gains or
losses resulting from the disposal of assets are calculated
as the difference between net proceeds from sale and carrying amount of the asset and recognized as income in the
income statement in the period in which the asset is
derecognized.
Carrying amounts, useful life and amortization methods are
reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted
if required.
Government grants and subsidies do not lead to a reduction in the cost of acquisition of the relevant assets, but
are instead carried as deferred liabilities in compliance with
IAS 20.24 and reversed as income over the useful life of
the subsidized assets.

Research costs and development costs which cannot be
capitalized are recognized as expense items at the time
incurred.
An intangible asset is derecognized either on disposal or
when further use or sale of the asset is not expected to
yield any further economic benefit. Gains or losses resulting from the disposal of assets are calculated as the difference between net proceeds from sale and carrying amount
of the asset and recognized as income in the income statement in the period in which the asset is derecognized.
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Finance leases
ALNO AG is lessee of factory and office equipment. In
compliance with IAS 17, economic ownership of the
leased assets must be attributed to the lessee if the latter
acquires all the main risks and rewards associated with
the asset (finance lease). All leased assets which are classified as belonging to a finance lease are capitalized in the
consolidated financial statements at the lower of the fair
value and present value of the lease payments. Leased
assets are depreciated by the straight-line method over
the shorter of their useful life or the lease term.

Impairment tests
IMPAIRMENT TEST FOR GOODWILL

Goodwill from business combinations is attributed to the
cash generating units benefiting from the combinations.
The goodwill ascribed to ALNO AG in previous years in
the amount of EUR 2,535 thousand was fully adjusted following the impairment test performed in the financial year
2009. The goodwill remaining to date in the amount of EUR
1,483 thousand is completely attributed to the CASAWELL
Group. The CASAWELL Group comprises Gustav Wellmann GmbH & Co. KG and its subsidiaries. First-time
inclusion of the logismo Group and Built-In Group in 2012
resulted in further goodwill totalling EUR 241 thousand and
EUR 2,001 thousand, respectively.
The goodwill created in conjunction with acquisition of
the logismo Group is ascribed to the cash generating unit
logismo which comprises the three companies taken over.
The cash generating unit ALNO UK, to which the Built-In
Group's goodwill has been ascribed, comprises ALNO UK
and its subsidiaries.
The unimpaired status of goodwill is determined on the
basis of impairment tests at year-end and also during the
year if there are any signs of an impairment.
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When performing impairments tests to IAS 36, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit
concerned.
The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value of
the cash generating unit minus costs to sell or value in use.
The value in use is equal to the present value of future
cash flows expected from continued use of the cash generating unit and its disposal at the end of its useful life.
The value in use is determined in compliance with IAS 36
using the discounted cash flow method based on data
from the authorized corporate planning after correction for
investment in expansion and planned reorganization. The
planning horizon always covers four years. In the case of
the cash generating unit ALNO AG, the planning horizon
was extended by an additional period to five years, as
the first four years only displayed negative targets. Cash
flows are discounted using the weighted average capital
cost (WACC) for a group of comparable entities, taking
into account the risk-free base rate, premium for market
risks (multiplied by the beta-factor), growth discount in the
perpetual annuity, cost of borrowing and capital structure.
Forecasting of the cash flows is based on the results calculated for the individual Group companies within the context
of a detailed planning process using internal empirical values and external economic figures.
The fair values after deduction of the costs to sell are
calculated on the basis of expert appraisals or on the basis
of best-possible internal estimates of the selling price that
can realistically be expected.
An impairment is recognized when the recoverable amount
is lower than the carrying amount of the cash generating
unit. A reversal of goodwill impairment is not undertaken,
in compliance with IAS 36.
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Corporate planning is essentially based on the following
assumptions:
A change in sales between 3.4% and 10.0% p.a. was
assumed for ALNO AG. This assumption is based on a
change in the volume of sales of between –3.3% and
1.5% p.a. in Germany and between 3.5% and 20.4% p.a.
abroad, as well as on adjustments in prices between 0.5%
and 12.1% p.a. in Germany and between –5.2% and 1.8%
p.a. abroad. In the case of purchasing prices, material
costs are expected to rise by 7.3% per unit in 2013 and
by between –0.4 % and 1.2% p.a. per unit from 2014
onwards. An annual increase of between –2.6% p.a. and
2.4% p.a. with a constant number of employees was
assumed when planning personnel costs.
A change in sales between –5.3% and 24.6% p.a. was
assumed for the CASAWELL Group. This assumption is
based on a change in the volume of sales of between
-16.6% and 25.7% p.a. in Germany and between 2.8%
and 18.2% p.a. abroad, as well as on adjustments in prices
between 0.3% and 8.7% p.a. in Germany and between
–0.4% and 5.4% p.a. abroad. In the case of purchasing
prices, material costs are expected to rise by 2.7% per
unit in 2013 and by between –0.7% and 0.2% p.a. per
unit from 2014 onwards. The annual change when planning personnel costs is assumed to be between –15.5%
p.a. and 5.3% p.a. with a declining number of employees
in 2013 and a constant number of employees from 2014
onwards.

2012

In the case of ALNO UK, sales revenue is expected to
increase by 30.9% in 2013 and to change by between
4.0% and 4.9% p.a. from 2014 onwards. The cost of purchased material is expected to rise by 28.2% in 2013 and
to increase by between 3.7% and 4.1% p.a. from 2014
onwards. An increase of 44.5% with a growing number
of employees has been assumed for 2013 when planning personnel costs. From 2014 onwards, an annual rise
of between 1.7% and 2.0% p.a. with a constant number
of employees is assumed in conjunction with personnel
costs.
A change in other operating income of between 0.2%
and 6.8% p.a. has been assumed in the case of logismo.
An annual increase of between 2.6% and 7.2% p.a. was
assumed when planning forwarding expenses. Personnel
costs are assumed to decline by 20.7% with a decreasing
number of employees in 2013 and to increase by between
0% and 2.0% p.a. with a constant number of employees
from 2014 onwards.
Safety margins in the amount of 10% to 20% were
deducted from the free cash flows calculated during the
planning process.
On the basis of these cash flow prognoses, the value in
use was determined for the cash generating units with the
aid of the following valuation parameters:

ALNO AG

CASAWELL

logismo

ALNO UK

Capital cost before income taxes

1.98%

9.28%

11.05%

13.05%

Capital cost after income taxes

8.54%

8.54%

8.54%

9.80%

Risk-free interest rate

2.25%

2.25%

2.25%

3.08%

Market risk premium

6.00%

6.00%

6.00%

6.33%

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.2

ALNO AG

CASAWELL

10.02%

10.55%

Risk-free interest rate

2.75%

2.75%

Market risk premium

5.50%

5.50%

1.42

1.42

Beta factor

2011
Capital cost before income taxes

Beta factor
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Based on the average for comparable companies, the cost
of borrowed capital before taxes on income equalled 4.03%
(previous year: 4.01%). At 84% to 16% (previous year: 77%
to 23%), the ratio of equity to borrowed capital is in keeping
with the average capital structure of comparable companies.
An effective tax rate of 28.0% (previous year: 28.0%) was
assumed in the applied consideration of input tax.

Carrying amount
Value in use

logismo ALNO UK

49,465

13,063

648

8,543

– 43,357

134,822

4,885

22,993

The recoverable amount for the CASAWELL Group, the
logismo Group and ALNO UK was based on the value in
use. Due to the negative value in use, the fair value minus
costs to sell was applied to determine the financial position of ALNO AG. Based on the impairment test performed
when preparing the annual financial statements as at 31
December 2012, impairment losses in the total amount of
EUR 3,379 thousand (previous year: EUR 896 thousand)
were recognized on intangible assets, property, plant and
equipment for the year 2012 (see C.9. "Write-downs on
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment").
As outlined above, the forward-looking assumptions underlying the calculations are based on various uncertain
estimates. These uncertainties can have a significant
effect on the result of the calculations. The effect of different planning scenarios on the value in use of the cash
generating units ALNO AG, CASAWELL, logismo and
ALNO UK is outlined below (referred only to the change
in value of the perpetual annuity as value-driving factor).

in '000 EUR

WACC

Free Cash Flow

– 2%

– 1%

0%

1%

2%

– 20% – 69,699 – 59,960 – 52,759 – 47,206 – 42,782
– 10% – 63,581 – 54,656 – 48,058 – 42,971 – 38,920
0% – 57,462 – 49,352 – 43,357 – 38,735 – 35,026
10% – 51,344 – 44,048 – 38,656 – 34,500 – 31,192
20% – 45,226 – 38,745 – 33,955 – 30,264 – 27,327

in '000 EUR

WACC

Free Cash Flow

– 2%

– 1%

0%

1%

2%

– 20% 151,861 125,300 105,875

91,077

79,448

– 10% 172,130 142,224 120,349 103,678

90,574

0% 192,399 159,149 134,822 116,280 101,700
10% 212,667 176,074 149,295 128,881 112,825
20% 232,936 192,998 163,769 141,482 123,951

logismo:

in '000 EUR

WACC

Free Cash Flow

– 2%

– 1%

0%

1%

2%

– 20%

5,281

4,489

3,908

3,462

3,110

– 10%

5,941

5,051

4,396

3,895

3,499

0%

6,602

5,612

4,885

4,328

3,888

10%

7,262

6,173

5,373

4,760

4,276

20%

7,922

6,734

5,861

5,193

4,665

ALNO UK:

in '000 EUR

WACC

Free Cash Flow
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CASAWELL:

Summary of cash generating units

ALNO AG CASAWELL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ALNO AG:

A growth rate of 1% is assumed for the following cash
flows after the end of the four or five-year planning horizon.
This growth rate matches the long-term average growth
rate in the kitchen furniture industry.

in '000 EUR

|

– 2%

– 1%

0%

1%

2%

– 20%

23,926

20,806

18,395

16,474

14,909

– 10%

26,916

23,407

20,694

18,534

16,773

0%

29,907

26,008

22,993

20,593

18,636

10%

32,898

28,609

25,293

22,652

20,500

20%

35,888

31,209

27,592

24,712

22,363
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IMPAIRMENT TEST FOR OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS,

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

PROPERT Y, PL ANT AND EQUIPMENT

Other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment
were scrutinized at the closing date to determine whether
there were any indications of a possible impairment. An
impairment test in accordance with IAS 36 is performed if
such indications are found.
Impairment testing involves determining the recoverable
amount for each individual asset or, if cash inflows cannot
be allocated to the individual asset, for a cash generating
unit. Cash generating units are defined as being the smallest units capable of generating cash flows. In the ALNO
Group, these are the individual companies.
The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value of
the asset or cash generating unit minus costs to sell or
value in use.
An impairment is recognized when the recoverable amount
is lower than the carrying amount of the asset or cash
generating unit. If the reasons for a previously recognized
impairment loss no longer apply, the impairment loss is
reversed provided that the reversal does not cause the
carrying amount to exceed the amortized cost of acquisition or production.
REPORTING OF INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Interests in joint ventures are included in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method in compliance
with IAS 31.38.

Associated companies are always included in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method in
compliance with IAS 28.13.
Acquisition costs are increased or decreased by the prorated profit/loss for the year. Disbursements reduce, and
capital increases increase, the carrying amount of the interest. Changes in equity outside profit or loss are likewise
recognized in Group equity on a prorata basis. If there
is any indication of an impairment, an impairment test is
performed in compliance with IAS 36.

Inventories
Raw materials and supplies, as well as goods purchased
for resale, are always measured at the lower of average cost of acquisition including incidental acquisition
expenses or net proceeds from sale, as required by IAS 2.
In compliance with IAS 2, work in process and finished
goods/services are measured at the cost of production,
provided that this does not exceed the expected net proceeds from sale. Production costs include all direct costs
attributable to the production process, as well as a reasonable portion of production-related overheads.
The net revenue value is equal to the estimated proceeds
from sale that can be realized in the ordinary course of
business, minus the estimated costs up to completion and
the estimated costs required for distribution.

Acquisition costs are increased or decreased by the
prorated profit/loss for the year. Disbursements reduce,
and capital increases increase, the carrying amount of the
interest. Changes in equity outside profit or loss are likewise
recognized in Group equity on a prorata basis. If there
is any indication of an impairment, an impairment test is
performed in compliance with IAS 36.
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Financial and other assets
Financial assets essentially comprise liquid assets, securities and trade accounts receivable.
The option of classifying financial assets as financial assets
to be measured at fair value through profit or loss when
recognized for the first time is not exercised.
In compliance with IAS 39, trade accounts receivable are
classified as "loans and receivables issued by the company" and recognized at the amortized cost of acquisition
using the effective interest rate method. Reasonable specific valuation allowances equal to the difference between
the carrying amount of the asset and the present value of
expected future cash flows are made for doubtful accounts
receivable. The specific valuation allowances are recognized in a value adjustment account. If the impairment
decreases in subsequent periods, the valuation allowance
is reversed, provided that the carrying amount does not
exceed the amortized cost of acquisition following reversal.
Impairment losses and their reversals are recognized as
income in the consolidated income statement. Accounts
receivable are derecognized when their irrecoverability is
established.
Securities and interests held in associated companies are
classified as "available-for-sale financial assets". After firsttime recognition, they are always measured at fair value.
In the case of securities, this is equal to the current price.
Gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognized
outside profit or loss in equity until the financial asset is
disposed of or until an impairment loss is established. In
the event of an impairment loss, the accumulated net loss
is removed from equity and expensed.
Interests held in associated companies are measured at
acquisition cost, as there is no active market and the fair
values cannot be reliably determined due to the absence
of corporate planning. Indicated impairment losses are
recognized through profit or loss.

|
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A financial asset is derecognized when the contractual
right to cash inflows from the asset is satisfied, expires
or all risks and rewards have essentially been transferred.
Derecognition is also posted on the settlement date.
Financial assets are also derecognized if the essential risks
and rewards associated with ownership are neither transferred to the acquirer nor retained as a result of transferring
financial assets, and the power to dispose of the financial
assets passes to the acquirer. The rights and duties arising
or remaining after such transfer are recognized separately
as an asset or liability. However, if the power to dispose
of the transferred financial assets remains with the ALNO
Group, the sold assets are still recognized in the amount
of the continuing commitment.
An associated liability is simultaneously posted under other
liabilities. Differences between the assets and liabilities
posted are recognized in the financial result.
Other assets are recognized at acquisition cost, liquid
assets at their nominal value.

Provisions for pensions
The ALNO Group operates a defined benefit plan for former members of the Board of Management and executive
employees in Germany and abroad.
ALNO's benefit plan is a defined benefit plan in compliance with IAS 19.27 directly obligating the company to pay
agreed benefits to past and present employees; actuarial
risks and investment risks are basically borne by the company. The provision is calculated using the method of regular lump-sum premiums (Projected Unit Credit Method)
defined by IAS 19 insofar as it is not covered by existing
plan assets. The interest expense from adding interest is
recognized as a financial expense.
The Group has exercised the option of netting all actuarial
gains and losses accruing in the financial year with equity
outside profit or loss.

First-time recognition of financial assets is always posted
on the settlement date.
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Other provisions

Trade accounts payable and other liabilities

Other provisions are set up in compliance with IAS 37 if a
current – legal and constructive – obligation towards third
parties is probable and can lead to a reliably estimated
outflow of resources. Provision for expenditure is generally
not formed.

Trade accounts payable are recognized in the amount
invoiced by the supplier.

Measurement is performed in the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation on
the balance sheet date. Non-current provisions are recognized at their settlement value discounted to the balance
sheet date in accordance with IAS 37, insofar as the effect
is substantial. In the event of discounting, the provision's
increase due to the passage of time is recognized as a
financial expense.

Financial liabilities
The option of classifying financial liabilities as financial
liabilities to be measured at fair value through profit or
loss when recognized for the first time is not exercised.
Financial liabilities essentially comprise shareholder loans,
accounts payable to banks and other financial liabilities.
In compliance with IAS 39, all financial liabilities are basically accounted for at their amortized cost of acquisition
(financial liabilities measured at cost), which corresponds
to the fair value of the consideration received, including
transaction costs. Current financial liabilities regularly also
include those non-current loans which have a remaining
term of not more than one year. The accounts payable to
banks which were derecognized in 2012 following a waiver
of repayment are derecognized through profit or loss in the
financial result. The financial liabilities derecognized in 2012
following a waiver of repayment by the shareholders were
recognized outside profit or loss under the accumulated
other consolidated net profit/loss.
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The deferred liabilities are carried as liabilities in the amount
owed, sometimes in the amount estimated, and recognized under other liabilities.
Liabilities under finance leases are likewise recognized
under other liabilities and carried at the present value of
the future leasing instalments. Liabilities are broken down
into current and non-current liabilities in accordance with
the term of the lease. Lease payments are divided into
interest and principal in such a way as to yield a constant
rate of interest on the remaining lease payment owed over
the period. The interest portion is expensed under financial expenses.
Lease payments under operating leases are recognized in
the consolidated income statement as an expense by the
straight-line method over the term of the lease.
The other liabilities are shown at their repayment amounts.
A trade account payable or other liability is derecognized
when the obligation underlying the liability is discharged,
terminated or extinguished. The accounts payable to banks
which were derecognized in 2012 following waivers of
repayment are derecognized through profit or loss in the
financial result. The trade accounts payable which were
derecognized in 2011 following a waiver of repayment
are derecognized through profit or loss in the result from
reorganization.
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5. ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES

When preparing the consolidated financial statements,
assumptions and estimates have been made with impact
on recognition and the amount of the assets, liabilities,
income, expenses and contingent liabilities reported.
When assuming a going concern, the assumptions and
estimates essentially concern the corporate planning,
as well as the occurrence and implementation of various
conditions (see B.1. "Basis for preparation of the financial
statements").
The assumptions and estimates made in conjunction
with impairment testing of the goodwill and fixed assets
essentially concern the forecast cash flows and discounting factors (see B.4. "Impairment test for goodwill" and
C.8. "Write-downs on intangible assets, property, plant
and equipment").
Further uncertainties exist in conjunction with the capitalization of future tax reliefs, due to the assumptions made
with regard to the expected date of occurrence and amount
of future taxable income in the next four years. Future tax
reliefs have also been calculated on the assumption that
there will be no harmful change of ownership in the future
eliminating the tax loss carryforwards in accordance with
Sections 8 (4) and 8c of the Corporation Tax Act (KStG)
(see C.10. "Income taxes").
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The discount factors for determining the present values
of defined-benefit pension obligations are based on the
returns achieved for high-quality, fixed-interest corporate
bonds on the respective markets at the balance sheet
date. For long terms to maturity, a major reduction in the
number of high-quality corporate bonds was observed in
2012. As at 31 December 2012, the criteria for selecting the high-quality, fixed-interest corporate bonds with
AA-rating were therefore adjusted in order to increase the
number of bonds included and permit reliable estimation
of the discount factors in the future, too. There are no
high-quality, fixed-interest corporate bonds available as a
standard for comparison in the case of very long terms to
maturity. The corresponding discount factors are determined by extrapolating the observed market value added
along the term structure of interest rates. This did not have
any impact on the income statement. The effect in future
periods is expected to be slight.
All these assumptions and estimates are based on the
knowledge currently available at the time of preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Although these assumptions and estimates are to the best of the management's
knowledge, the actual results may deviate from these.

Assumptions and estimates are also made when determining the economic useful life of the fixed assets (see
B.4. "Intangible assets" and "Property, plant and equipment"), as well as when determining the parameters for
calculating the provisions for pensions (see D.11. "Provisions for pensions") and pre-retirement part-time working
arrangements (see D.12. "Other provisions"). The provision for warranty claims has been calculated on the basis
of assumptions and estimates concerning the period of
time between delivery date and warranty period, as well
as on the future warranty encumbrances (see D.12. "Other
provisions"). Valuation allowances on trade accounts receivable are likewise based on estimates concerning, in
particular, the cash inflow expected in the future (see D.6.
"Trade accounts receivable").
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C. Notes to the
consolidated
income statement
The consolidated income statement has been prepared
according to the nature of expense method.
1. Sales revenue

in '000 EUR
Revenue from the sale of goods
Other revenue
Total

2012

2011

439,293

444,747

6,965

8,063

446,258

452,810

Other revenue is essentially the result of product-related
incidental sales to the Group's usual customers or to other
third parties, such as the sale of materials that are no
longer required.

Income relating to other periods mainly comprises income
from the reversal of provisions, as well as from derecognition of liabilities. The other income comprises income
from social services, refunds from the Federal Employment
Agency, income from payments received on derecognized
accounts receivable and grants or subsidies on advertising
costs.
Rental income primarily comprises the income received
from letting office and business premises to various tenants
at the Bad Salzuflen location. As a rule, the leases can be
terminated with three months' notice effective at the end
of a calendar quarter.
Currency gains are netted against currency losses in the
amount of EUR 949 thousand (previous year: EUR 371
thousand).
4. Cost of materials

in '000 EUR

2012

2011

253,414

281,197

4,534

5,201

257,948

286,398

2012

2011

Wages and salaries

80,660

81,861

Social security costs

16,448

16,295

Cost of raw materials and supplies

2. Changes in inventories and capitalized goods
and ser vices for own account

Purchased services
Total

in '000 EUR

2012

2011

Changes in inventories

– 693

31

Other capitalized goods and
services for own account

1,089

851

396

882

Total

5. Personnel expenses

3. Other operating income

in '000 EUR

Retirement benefits

Other operating income is made up as follows:

in '000 EUR

Total

2012

2011

108

31

Income relating to other periods

4,360

2,089

Income from the reversal of specific valuation allowances

1,325

158

Insurance benefits received

303

112

Rental income

511

580

Currency gains

141

312

Other income

3,050

2,988

Total

9,798

6,270

Income from the disposal of assets
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373

97,204

98,529

1,856 men and women were employed on average over
the year (previous year: 1,806).

Number of employees

2012

2011

Industrial employees

1,098

1,078

Office employees
Total
Germany
Abroad

758

728

1,856

1,806

1,786

1,762

70

44
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Social security costs include the employer's contributions
to state pension funds for employees in the amount of EUR
7,275 thousand (previous year: EUR 7,415 thousand). In
addition, wages and salaries include additional sums to
top up pre-retirement part-time payments in the amount
of EUR 0 thousand (previous year: EUR 0 thousand) and
employee termination payments in the amount of EUR 634
thousand (previous year: EUR 2,643 thousand) which are
not associated with the reorganization.
EUR 45 thousand (previous year: EUR 339 thousand)
are recognized in the financial year as retirement benefit
expenses on the basis of defined-contribution benefit obligations assumed by the employer for the company pension
scheme.

6. Other operating expenses

in '000 EUR

|
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2008. A comprehensive reorganization concept was approved by the Supervisory Board of ALNO AG on 15 January 2010. The primary aim of this concept is to sustainably
improve the Group's earnings and competitiveness. The
associated all-embracing structural changes focus above
all on introducing efficient administrative processes and
manufacturing structures throughout the Group.
In 2012, reorganization yielded a profit of EUR 2,965
thousand (previous year: EUR –24,338 thousand). Other
operating expenses in the amount of EUR 526 thousand
(previous year: EUR 2,730 thousand) comprise consulting expenses. Personnel expenses in the amount of EUR
2,439 thousand (previous year: EUR 9 thousand) concern
employee termination payments for the reduction in personnel planned at the Enger location. In the previous year,
other operating income essentially comprised the derecognition of trade liabilities following a waiver of repayment in
the amount of EUR 25,000 thousand.

2012

2011

Cost of sales

44,814

50,453

Administration costs

24,256

25,245

Rent and leasing

5,031

7,665

Maintenance

6,255

6,882

Expenses relating to other periods

834

284

Allocation to specific valuation
allowances for trade accounts
receivable

734

1,007

Bad debts

498

411

in '000 EUR

Other taxes

613

513

Losses from the disposal
of assets
Other expenses
Total

631

503

710

1,206

84,376

94,169

95

2012

Reorganization

2012 acc.
to income
statement

Personnel expenses

99,643

– 2,439

97,204

Other operating
expenses

84,902

– 526

84,376

2011

Reorganization

2011 acc.
to income
statement

Other operating
income

33,347

– 27,077

6,270

Personnel expenses

98,536

–9

98,529

Other operating
expenses

96,899

– 2,730

94,169

in '000 EUR

8. Write-ups on proper ty, plant and equipment
Other expenses mainly comprise expenses from the
allocation to provisions and deferred liabilities.
Development costs which cannot be capitalized have
been recognized through profit or loss in the amount of
EUR 1,272 thousand (previous year: EUR 1,212 thousand).

7. Result from reorganization
(+ = expense / – = income)
Due to the unsatisfactory earnings situation of the ALNO
Group, reorganization of the German companies commenced in 2007, followed by the foreign subsidiaries in late
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Following an expert appraisal of real estate, properties
and buildings at the Pfullendorf location were devalued to
their fair value less costs to sell in 2009. It was assumed
that some of the buildings would no longer be used for
production. Due to the change in corporate strategy
and following a further expert appraisal of real estate in
2012, a partial write-up for properties and buildings was
undertaken in the amount of EUR 2,488 thousand for the
ALNO segment. A further write-up on factory and office
equipment was made in the amount of EUR 280 thousand
following an impairment test for a foreign subsidiary.
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9. Write-downs on intangible assets, proper ty,
plant and equipment
These write-downs result from the development of fixed
assets.

in '000 EUR

2012

2011

860

967

Property, plant and equipment

11,611

10,632

Amortization and depreciation

12,471

11,599

3,379

4,303

15,850

15,902

Intangible assets

Impairment losses
Total

All in all, the following asset groups are affected by impairment losses:

in '000 EUR

2012

20110

221

76

0

8

260

265

Factory and office equipment

2,898

3,954

Total

3,379

4,303

Intangible assets
Land and buildings
Technical equipment and machinery

With regard to the assets of the cash generating unit ALNO
AG (including leasing companies), the fair value minus
costs to sell was applied to the additions in 2011, as new
targets were not available during the year and the negative value in use as at 31 December 2010 consequently
remained valid (see B.4. "Impairment test for goodwill").
In the previous year, this resulted in impairment losses
and write-downs on property, plant and equipment in the
amount of EUR 3,399 thousand. In 2012, intra-year impairment losses were also required for the cash generating
unit ALNO AG. The impairment test performed as at 31
December 2012 on the basis of the new targets did not
yield any further impairment of the remaining goodwill of
the CASAWELL Group (previous year: EUR 0 thousand). In
the case of the cash generating unit ALNO AG, impairment
losses totalling EUR 221 thousand (previous year: EUR
76 thousand) were required on other intangible assets,
as well as EUR 3,158 thousand (previous year: EUR 820
thousand) on property, plant and equipment.
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The impairment tests performed did not yield any further need
for devaluation of the German and foreign subsidiaries. Due to
poor earnings prospects in the United Kingdom, write-downs
in the amount of EUR 8 thousand had to be undertaken on
property, plant and equipment in the previous year.
The ALNO segment accounted for EUR 3,379 thousand (previous year: EUR 4,295 thousand) of these impairment losses.
Impairment losses for the foreign subsidiaries in the amount
of EUR 0 thousand (previous year: EUR 8 thousand) were
recognized at Group level.
There were no further events or circumstances leading to the
recognition of income or expenses from impairment losses
on the balance sheet date.

10. Financial result
Interest expenses from drawing on credit lines and shareholder loans in the amount of EUR 9,803 thousand (previous year: EUR 10,184 thousand) are posted under financial
expenses. This item also includes interest expenses from the
interest added to pension provisions and other non-current
provisions.
In addition to the positive effect on results from the declared
waiver of repayment in the amount of EUR 8,907 thousand
(previous year: EUR 0 thousand), the financial income also
includes income from investment in securities in the amount
of EUR 61 thousand (previous year: EUR 46 thousand); the
remaining financial income comprises other interest income
from financial assets.

11. Income taxes
Breakdown of income taxes:

in '000 EUR

2012

2011

144

49

55

0

– 417

– 135

Creation and reversal of temporary
differences

421

335

Income taxes expensed in the consolidated income statement

203

345

Consolidated income statement
Actual income tax expense:
Deferred income tax expense:
Adjustment of income tax actually incurred in the previous year
Deferred taxes:
Tax loss carryforwards
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in '000 EUR

2012

2011

566

204

566

204
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Deferred taxes directly recognized in equity
Actuarial losses from pension provisions
Income taxes recognized in equity

Deferred taxes comprise the following items:
Consolidated statement
of financial position
in '000 EUR

Consolidated income statement

2012

2011

2012

2011

4,802

3,978

824

– 19

Inventories

266

151

115

– 65

Accounts receivable and other assets

125

144

– 19

– 276

30

99

– 69

–4

Other liabilities

0

9

–9

9

Differences from currency translation

0

0

–2

–1

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment

Other provisions

Subtotal

5,223

4,381

840

– 356

Balance

– 5,022

– 4,031

—

—

201

350

840

– 356

757

1,481

– 724

– 858

Property, plant and equipment

2,463

4,602

– 2,139

181

Provisions for pensions

1,744

1,107

– 46

– 73

Other provisions

586

614

– 28

182

Other financial liabilities

510

0

510

0

Other accounts payable

106

81

25

67

Loss carryforwards

837

420

417

135

–3

0

0

0

7,000

8,305

– 1,985

– 366

– 1,570

– 4,274

2,821

– 286

Subtotal

5,430

4,031

836

– 652

Balance

5,022

– 4,031

—

—

408

0

836

– 652

4

296

Deferred tax assets
Intangible assets

Differences from currency translation
Subtotal
Valuation allowance

Deferred tax liabilities

The valuation allowance on deferred tax assets exclusively
comprises temporary differences in both the year under
review and the previous year.
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Expected and actual taxes on income are reconciled as
follows:

in '000 EUR

2012

2011

– 1,217

– 25,216

Expected income taxes

– 341

– 7,060

Effect of different assessment bases / tax rates

2,878

– 411

Unrecognized losses in the financial year

1,554

7,188

257

241

– 417

– 135

Profit/loss before income taxes

Write-down or non-recognition of deferred
tax assets on temporary differences
Change in deferred tax assets on
loss carryforwards
Non-tax-deductible operating expenses
Other non-tax-deductible operating
expenses

2,080

721

– 5,831

– 111

23

– 88

Actual taxes on income

203

345

Income taxes recognized in the consolidated
income statement

203

345

Tax effects due to circumstances in
prior periods
Other differences

The effective income tax rate – defined as 28% (previous
year: 28%) in the ALNO Group – is obtained by applying
a corporation tax rate of 15% (previous year: 15%) plus
the solidarity surcharge of 5.5% of corporation tax and
a weighted trade earnings tax to the profit/loss before
income taxes.
For this reason, the deferred taxes of the German companies are calculated with the future income tax rate of 28%.
Foreign currency translation yields a change of EUR 2
thousand (previous year: EUR 1 thousand) in deferred tax
liabilities.
The corporation tax loss carryforwards in Germany for
which deferred tax assets were not formed amount to EUR
142,775 thousand (previous year: EUR 147,939 thousand).
Unrecognized German trade tax loss carryforwards total
EUR 181,078 thousand as at the balance sheet date (previous year: EUR 191,680 thousand). Deferred taxes have
not been capitalized for foreign loss carryforwards in the
amount of EUR 1,299 thousand (previous year: EUR 3,578
thousand). Of these, EUR 905 thousand (previous year:
EUR 587 thousand) can be used for a limited period of
time.
The interest carried forward on the basis of interest restrictions in Germany for which deferred tax assets were not
formed amounts to EUR 9,483 thousand as at the balance
sheet date (previous year: EUR 17,429 thousand).
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The income tax result recognized has been improved by
EUR 3,664 thousand (previous year: EUR 111 thousand)
by using previously unrecognized tax loss carryforwards in
the amount of EUR 26,044 thousand (previous year: EUR
913 thousand), and by EUR 2,222 as a result of using an
interest carryforward in the amount of EUR 7,935 thousand
(previous year: EUR 0 thousand) which was previously not
recognized on account of the limited tax deductibility of
interest expenses.
As in the previous year, deferred tax assets were not formed
on loss carryforwards for the tax group of ALNO AG.
Deductible temporary differences for which deferred tax
assets were not recognized due to impairment totalled
EUR 5,608 thousand (previous year: EUR 15,264 thousand).
Deferred tax assets are reinstated when the loss-making
history of the tax group of ALNO AG has sustainably been
broken through. The amount of this reversal depends on the
expected tax gains based on the four-year tax budgeting.
Due to the prolonged history of loss, trade tax loss carryforwards of Gustav Wellmann GmbH & Co. KG, Enger,
are only formed on temporary differences to the extent
that deferred tax liabilities exceed deferred tax assets. This
consequently increases the deferred tax assets recognized
on loss carryforwards by EUR 5 thousand to EUR 425
thousand (previous year: EUR 420 thousand). In addition,
deferred tax assets on loss carryforwards of ALNO UK
Ltd., Dewsbury, United Kingdom, were formed for the first
time in the amount of EUR 408 thousand; on the basis of
positive budgetary accounting, these are used for the subsequent years and therefore considered to be unimpaired.
Tax deferrals in the amount of EUR 1,001 thousand (previous year: EUR 1,059 thousand) were not recognized
on taxable temporary differences from interests held in
subsidiaries and interests held in associated companies in
the total amount of EUR 53,700 thousand (previous year:
EUR 54,109 thousand), as the time at which the temporary difference is reversed can be influenced by the parent
company and the temporary difference will probably not
be reversed within the foreseeable future.
Income taxes payable amount to EUR 391 thousand
(previous year: EUR 8 thousand), while EUR 17 thousand
(previous year: EUR 48 thousand) can be collected in
income tax refunds.
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D. Notes to the consolidated
balance sheet
1. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

in '000 EUR

Industrial property rights and
similar rights

Down-payments and
Goodwill construction in progress

Total

Accumulated cost of acquisition
Total as at 1 January 2011

24,981

4,090

1,515

30,586

1

0

0

1

Additions

144

0

1,793

1,937

Transfers

8

0

0

8

Currency differences

Disposals

– 55

0

0

– 55

25,079

4,090

3,308

32,477

-1

1

0

0

Additions

361

0

851

1,212

Additions, scope of consolidation

268

2,242

55

2,565

Transfers

34

0

0

34

Disposals

– 186

0

0

– 186

25,555

6,333

4,214

36,102

22,891

2,607

0

25,498

2

0

0

2

967

0

0

967

76

0

0

76

– 55

0

0

– 55

23,881

2,607

0

26,488

0

0

0

0

Amortization

860

0

0

860

Impairment losses

221

0

0

221

Total as at 31 December 2011
Currency differences

Total as at 31 December 2012
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses
Total as at 1 January 2011
Currency differences
Additions
Amortization
Impairment losses
Disposals
Total as at 31 December 2011
Currency differences
Additions

Transfers
Disposals

34

34

– 186

0

0

– 186

24,810

2,607

0

27,417

31 December 2012

745

3,726

4,214

8,685

31 December 2011

1,198

1,483

3,308

5,989

1 January 2011

2,090

1,483

1,515

5,088

Total as at 31 December 2012
Carrying amounts
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2. PROPERT Y, PL ANT AND EQUIPMENT

in '000 EUR

Technical
Down-payments
equipment and
Other plant, factory and construction
Land and buildings
machinery and office equipment
in progress

Total

Accumulated cost of acquisition
Total as at 1 January 2011

113,884

129,236

61,457

2,692

307,269

0

0

32

0

32

Additions

84

1,442

13,065

2,069

16,660

Transfers

0

973

0

– 981

–8

Disposals

– 93

– 6,773

– 6,052

0

– 12,918

113,875

124,878

68,502

3,780

311,035

0

0

26

0

26

Currency differences

Total as at 31 December 2011
Currency differences
Additions

535

1,982

9,788

692

12,997

1,325

273

220

0

1,818

Transfers

0

3,777

– 31

– 3,780

– 34

Disposals

–5

– 1,982

– 8,051

0

– 10,038

115,730

128,928

70,454

692

315,804

68,112

114,263

52,616

0

234,991

0

0

27

0

27

1,221

2,146

7,265

0

10,632

8

265

3,954

0

4,227

– 93

– 6,755

– 5,484

0

– 12,332

69,248

109,919

58,378

0

237,545

0

0

18

0

18

1,284

2,297

8,030

0

11,611

0

260

2,898

0

3,158

Write-ups

– 2,488

0

– 280

0

– 2,768

Transfers

0

0

– 34

0

– 34

Disposals

–5

– 1,948

– 7,441

0

– 9,394

68,039

110,528

61,569

0

240,136

31 December 2012

47,691

18,400

8,885

692

75,668

31 December 2011

44,627

14,959

10,124

3,780

73,490

1 January 2011

45,772

14,973

8,841

2,692

72,278

Additions, scope of consolidation

Total as at 31 December 2012
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses
Total as at 1 January 2011
Currency differences
Additions
Amortization
Impairment losses
Disposals
Total as at 31 December 2011
Currency differences
Additions
Amortization
Impairment losses

Total as at 31 December 2012
Carrying amounts
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3. FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012, financial assets totalled EUR
2,595 thousand (previous year: EUR 3,168 thousand).
The financial assets comprise non-current securities to
protect commitments associated with employees' preretirement part-time working against insolvency, in the
amount of EUR 2,456 (previous year: EUR 3,163 thousand), which were pledged to the employees, as well
as interests in associated companies. Compared to the
previous year, the interests held in associated companies
have increased by EUR 83 thousand for an interest in mkc
Mega Küchencenter Rothrist AG, Rothrist, Switzerland,
by EUR 26 thousand for an interest in A’Flair Habitat,
Haguenau, France, and by EUR 25 thousand for an
interest in tielsa GmbH, Pfullendorf, resulting in a total of
EUR 139 thousand (previous year: EUR 5 thousand).
4. AT-EQUIT Y INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2012, the consolidated financial statements do not include any investments measured at equity.
As at 31 December 2011, ALNO Middle East reported
the following assets and liabilities in its balance sheet;
these were attributable to ALNO AG in accordance with
its holding of 50%.

in '000 EUR
Assets
thereof non-current
thereof current
Liabilities

4,085
942
3,143
3,214
1,354

thereof current

1,860

In 2011, ALNO AG accrued income and expenses in the
following amounts:

Income
Expenses
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The loss of EUR 2,351 thousand borne by ALNO AG
in 2011 reduced the carrying amount of the holding as
posted in profit and loss. In addition, ALNO AG waived
EUR 1,000 thousand when a loan receivable was transformed into a capital contribution. The carrying amount
of the associated company also increased as a result of
currency translation differences in the amount of EUR 41
thousand, which were recognized outside profit or loss in
the shareholders' equity of ALNO AG.
5. FINANCIAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Non-current financial accounts receivable comprise security for a provider of IT services in the amount of EUR
583 thousand (previous year: EUR 676 thousand) and
earmarked credit balances with banks in the amount of
EUR 474 thousand (previous year: EUR 473 thousand) for
future investments. In the previous year, a loan granted
to ALNO Middle East in the amount of EUR 170 thousand with specific valuation allowance in the amount of
EUR 118 thousand was also recognized here.
6. TR ADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

in '000 EUR

Total

Remaining term
< 1 year 1 to 5 years > 5 years

31 December 2012

45,336

44,773

563

0

31 December 2011

41,339

40,056

1,283

0

31.12.2011

thereof non-current

in '000 EUR

|

Sales of accounts receivable by the ALNO Group in the
amount of EUR 8,209 thousand (previous year: EUR
15,295 thousand) do not satisfy the criteria for complete
derecognition of the receivables. This resulted in trade
accounts receivable as at 31 December 2012 with a
carrying amount of EUR 389 thousand (previous year:
EUR 596 thousand). Currency risks and interest risks
basically continue to apply as a result of possible belated
payment of the accounts receivable. The accounts payable
which are associated with the transferred and not derecognized accounts receivable amount to EUR 521 thousand
(previous year: EUR 810 thousand) and are recognized in
other liabilities.

2011
93
2,444
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As at the balance sheet date, the age structure of the trade
accounts receivable is as follows:

Not impaired and overdue within the following periods
Carrying amount

Neither overdue
nor impaired

Less than 30
days

Between 30 and
365 days

More than
365 days

31 December 2012

45,336

35,442

3,876

2,567

71

31 December 2011

41,339

32,987

3,240

1,404

22

in '000 EUR

The adjusted accounts receivable have a gross value
of EUR 11,522 thousand (previous year: EUR 11,341
thousand).
Write-downs on trade accounts receivable developed as
follows:

in '000 EUR

2012

2011

1 January

7,655

8,659

6

–9

179

1,844

1,204

158

734

1,007

Addition, scope of consolidation

1,130

0

31 December

8,142

7,655

Currency differences
Consumption
Reversal
Allocation

With regard to the unimpaired trade accounts receivable,
there were no indications at the closing date that these
payment obligations would not be discharged.
7. INVENTORIES

in '000 EUR

31.12.2012

31.12.2011

16,881

18,211

Work in progress

2,627

2,713

Finished goods and services

5,661

5,513

Down-payments received

– 717

– 522

24,452

25,915

Raw materials and supplies

Total

8. OTHER ASSETS

Remaining term
< 1 year 1 to 5 years > 5 years

in '000 EUR

Total

31 December 2012

4,632

4,395

237

0

31 December 2011

5,288

4,953

335

0

Other current assets essentially comprise turnover tax
refunds, accounts receivable from employees and prepaid
expenses.
Other non-current assets primarily comprise accounts
receivable from the Federal Employment Agency in conjunction with pre-retirement part-time working.
Write-downs on other assets developed as follows:

in '000 EUR
1 January

2012

2011

51

129

Currency differences

0

0

Consumption

0

103

Reversal

3

0

Allocation

47

25

31 December

95

51

The adjusted other assets have a gross value of EUR 115
thousand (previous year: EUR 109 thousand).
The unimpaired accounts receivable do not include any
overdue items.

In 2012, inventory impairments increased by EUR 38 thousand (previous year: EUR 231 thousand) to EUR 2,356
thousand (previous year: EUR 2,318 thousand).
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9. LIQUID ASSETS

Liquid assets comprise the cash in hand and credit
balances with banks. Non-disposable liquid assets comprise current security deposited with banks.
As at the balance sheet date, the cash fund (cash and cash
equivalents) is made up as follows:

in '000 EUR
Liquid assets
Not freely disposable liquid assets
Total

31.12.2012

31.12.2011

5,402

2,243

– 1,085

– 1,609

4,317

634

10. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUIT Y

a. Subscribed capital
The subscribed capital totals EUR 70,095 thousand as at
31 December 2012 and is divided into 70,094,979 (previous year: 26,094,979) no-par-value shares. The shares are
issued as bearer shares and fully paid up. Each no-par-value
share accounts for EUR 1.00 of the subscribed capital.

in '000 EUR
Total as at 1 January 2011

45,231

Changes in 2011

22,616

Total as at 31 December 2011

67,847

Changes in 2012
Total as at 31 December 2012

2,248
70,095

In accordance with the draft resolution of the Board of
Management and Supervisory Board of 13 July 2012, a
simplified reduction in the company's share capital was
undertaken within the scope of the measures adopted by
the Ordinary General Meeting of ALNO AG on 21 August
2012. The company's share capital in the amount of EUR
67,846,945.40, comprising 26,094,979 no-par-value bearer
shares each with a prorated share of EUR 2.60 in the company's share capital, was reduced by EUR 41,751,966.40
to EUR 26,094,979.00. This reduction in share capital was
undertaken in compliance with the regulations governing
the simplified capital reduction pursuant to Sections 229 et
seq. of the Stock Companies Act (AktG), without changing
the number of individual shares, so that each no-par-value
share accounted for EUR 1.00 of the share capital following
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the capital reduction. The capital reduction was undertaken
entirely in order to cover losses. The capital reduction was
entered in the Register of Companies on 12 October 2012.
By resolution of the Board of Management and with the
approval of the Supervisory Board on 2 November 2012,
it was decided to increase the company's share capital
within the scope of the measures adopted by the Ordinary
General Meeting of ALNO AG on 21 August 2012. The
capital increase was realized on 21 November 2012 with
the issue of 44,000,000 no-par-value ordinary shares, each
corresponding to a share of EUR 1.00 in the share capital.
The subscription price per no-par-value ordinary share
equalled EUR 1.05. This increased the share capital by
EUR 44,000,000.00 to EUR 70,094,979.00. The surplus
cash contribution in the amount of EUR 2,200,000.00 was
allocated to the capital reserve which subsequently totalled
EUR 3,258,275.93. The capital increase was entered in the
Register of Companies on 21 November 2012.
The most recent statutory notifications by shareholders
pursuant to Section 21 (1) of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG) and their respective voting shares at the
time of reaching, exceeding or undershooting the reporting thresholds pursuant to Section 21 (1) of the German
Securities Trading Act (WpHG) are set out below. Actual
voting shares held at the balance sheet date may differ
as a result of non-notifiable acquisitions and/or disposals.
In accordance with Section 21 (1), first sentence, of the
German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), Mr. Alexander
Nothdurft, Munich, informed us on 31 March 2006 that his
share of voting rights in ALNO AG fell below the threshold
of 5% on 28 March 2006 and totalled 3.38% on that date.
In accordance with Section 21 (1), first sentence, of the
German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), Mr. Oliver Nothdurft, Munich, informed us on 31 March 2006 that his
share of voting rights in ALNO AG fell below the threshold
of 5% on 28 March 2006 and totalled 3.24% on that date.
The aforementioned notifications were published in the
Frankfurter Allgemeine Zeitung on 5 April 2006.

In accordance with Sections 21 (1) and 24 of the German
Securities Trading Act (WpHG), the company IRE Beteiligungs GmbH, Stuttgart, Germany, informed us on 22 July
2010 that its share of voting rights in ALNO AG, Pfullendorf, Germany, ISIN: DE0007788408, WKN: 778840,
had exceeded the threshold of 15% on 16 June 2010 and
totalled 18.64% (3,242,627 votes) on that date.
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In accordance with Sections 21 (1) and 24 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), the company Bauknecht Hausgeräte
GmbH, Stuttgart, Germany, informed us on 22 July 2010 that its
share of voting rights in ALNO AG, Pfullendorf, Germany, ISIN:
DE0007788408, WKN: 778840, had exceeded the threshold of
15% on 16 June 2010 and totalled 18.64% (3,242,627 votes) on
that date. The ascribed voting share is held through the following
companies under its control, each of which holds 3% or more of
the shares in ALNO AG: IRE Beteiligungs GmbH.

In accordance with Section 21 (1), first sentence, of the German
Securities Trading Act (WpHG), the company Milano Investments
S.à.r.l., Esch-sur-Alzette, Luxemburg, informed us on 2 February
2012 that its share of voting rights in ALNO AG, Pfullendorf,
Germany, had fallen below the threshold of 50% on 30 January
2012 and totalled 35.33% (corresponding to 9,219,422 votes)
on that date. All the aforementioned votes are ascribed to it in
accordance with Section 22 (1), first sentence, No. 1, third sentence, para. 3, of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG).

In accordance with Sections 21 (1) and 24 of the German
Securities Trading Act (WpHG), the company Whirlpool Greater
China Inc., Wilmington, USA, informed us on 22 July 2010 that
its share of voting rights in ALNO AG, Pfullendorf, Germany, ISIN:
DE0007788408, WKN: 778840, had exceeded the threshold of
15% on 16 June 2010 and totalled 18.64% (3,242,627 votes) on
that date. Of this holding, 18.64% (3,242,627 votes) are ascribed
to the company within the meaning of Section 22 (1), first sentence, No. 1, of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG). The
ascribed voting share is held through the following companies
under its control, each of which holds 3% or more of the shares
in ALNO AG: Bauknecht Hausgeräte GmbH, IRE Beteiligungs
GmbH.

The votes held by Milano Investments S.à.r.l. are ascribed to it
through the following companies under its control, each of which
holds 3% or more of the shares in ALNO AG: Küchen Holding
GmbH.

The aforementioned notification was published through Deutsche
Gesellschaft für Ad-hoc-Publizität (DGAP) on 23 July 2010.

In accordance with Section 21 (1) of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), the company Küchen Holding GmbH, Munich,
Germany, informed us that its share of voting rights in ALNO AG,
Düsseldorf, Germany, had exceeded the threshold of 50% on
9 March 2011 and totalled 54.14% (corresponding to 14,128,716
votes) altogether on that date. Of this total, 18.81% (4,909,294
votes) are ascribed to it through IRE Beteiligungs GmbH in accordance with Section 22 (1), first sentence, No. 6, of the German
Securities Trading Act (WpHG).
In accordance with Section 21 (1) of the German Securities Trading
Act (WpHG), the company Milano Investments S.à.r.l., Esch-surAlzette, Luxemburg, informed us that its share of voting rights in
ALNO AG, Düsseldorf, Germany, had exceeded the threshold of
50% on 4 March 2011 and totalled 54.14% (corresponding to
14,128,716 votes) altogether on that date. Of this total, 35.33%
(corresponding to 9,219,422 votes) are ascribed to it through the
company Küchen Holding GmbH in accordance with Section
22 (1), first sentence, No. 1, of the German Securities Trading
Act (WpHG), and 18.81% (corresponding to 4,909,294 votes)
are ascribed to it through IRE Beteiligungs GmbH in accordance with Section 22 (1), first sentence, No. 6, second and third
sentences, of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG).
Both the aforementioned notifications were published through
Deutsche Gesellschaft für Ad-hoc-Publizität (DGAP) on 23 March
2011.
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In accordance with Section 21 (1), first sentence, of the German
Securities Trading Act (WpHG), the company Küchen Holding
GmbH, Munich, Germany, informed us on 2 February 2012
that its share of voting rights in ALNO AG, Pfullendorf, Germany,
had fallen below the threshold of 50% on 30 January 2012 and
totalled 35.33% (corresponding to 9,219,422 votes) on that date.
The aforementioned notifications were published through
Deutsche Gesellschaft für Ad-hoc-Publizität (DGAP) on 3 February 2012.

In accordance with Section 21 of the German Securities Trading
Act (WpHG), the company Whirlpool Germany GmbH, Stuttgart,
Germany, informed us on 13 and 17 July 2012 that its share of
voting rights in ALNO AG, Pfullendorf, Germany, had exceeded
the thresholds of 3%, 5%, 10% and 15% on 13 July 2012 and
totalled 18.25% on that date.
After notifying us that the voting rights had exceeded these
thresholds, the company Whirlpool Germany GmbH, Stuttgart,
Germany, also notified us of the following points in a letter dated
24 July 2012, as required by Section 27a of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG):
1. Purpose of acquiring voting rights (Section 27a (1), third
sentence, of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG))

a) Acquisition of the voting rights is based on intra-Group rearrangement of the interests held in ALNO AG within the Whirlpool
Group. It consequently serves neither the implementation of
strategic objectives nor the generation of trading gains.
b) The notifying party also plans to acquire further voting rights
within the next twelve months in conjunction with the restructuring measures announced by ALNO AG in the ad hoc bulletin
dated 11 July 2012.
c) The notifying party intends to obtain representation on the
Supervisory Board of ALNO AG commensurate with its holding
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in ALNO AG. In view of the Supervisory Board's present size
and composition, it believes that representation through two or
possibly three persons would be reasonable, depending on the
size of its holding. It does not intend to exert any influence on
appointments to the administrative, executive and supervisory
bodies of ALNO AG.
d) The restructuring measures announced by ALNO AG in its
ad hoc bulletin of 11 July 2012 are associated with significant
changes in the capital structure of ALNO AG. The notifying party
does not seek any further major changes in the company's
capital structure.
2. Origin of the funds used to purchase voting rights (Section 27a
(1), fourth sentence, of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG))

The voting rights are acquired using funds owned by the
Whirlpool Group which are completely placed at the disposal of
the notifying party as equity.
The aforementioned notification was published through
Deutsche Gesellschaft für Ad-hoc-Publizität (DGAP) on 25 July
2012.
In accordance with Section 21 (1) of the German Securities
Trading Act (WpHG), the company Wolfgang Steubing AG
Wertpapierdienstleister, Frankfurt am Main, Germany informed
ALNO AG on 23 November 2012 that Wolfgang Steubing AG's
share of voting rights in ALNO AG, Pfullendorf, Germany,
exceeded the thresholds of 3%, 5%, 10%, 15%, 20%, 25%,
30% and 50% on 21 November 2012 and totalled 62.77%
(44,000,000 votes) on that date.
In accordance with Section 21 (1) of the German Securities
Trading Act (WpHG), the company Wolfgang Steubing AG
Wertpapierdienstleister, Frankfurt am Main, Germany informed
ALNO AG on 23 November 2012 that Wolfgang Steubing AG's
share of voting rights in ALNO AG, Pfullendorf, Germany,
fell below the thresholds of 50%, 30%, 25%, 20%, 15%,
10%, 5% and 3% on 22 November 2012 and totalled 0.71%
(500,000 votes) on that date.
The aforementioned notifications were published through
Deutsche Gesellschaft für Ad-hoc-Publizität (DGAP) on
26 November 2012.

In accordance with Sections 21 (1), 25a and 24 of the
German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), the company
Whirlpool Corporation, Benton Harbour, USA, informed
ALNO AG on 27 November 2012 that the following voting
shares in ALNO AG (WKN: 778 840/ISIN: DE 0007788408),
Pfullendorf, Germany, accrue to the following persons:
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1. Whirlpool Germany GmbH

a) Notification pursuant to Section 21 (1) of the German
Securities Trading Act (WpHG)
The voting shares in ALNO AG held by Whirlpool Germany
GmbH, Stuttgart, Germany, fell below the voting thresholds
of 15% and 10% on 21 November 2012 and totalled 6.80%
(corresponding to 4,762,991 votes) on that date.
b) Notification pursuant to Section 25a of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG)
Moreover, the voting share in ALNO AG held by Whirlpool
Germany GmbH, Stuttgart, as a result of the financial instrument held by the company within the meaning of Section 25a
of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG) fell below the voting thresholds of 30%, 25%, 20% and 15% on 21 November
2012 and totalled 12.50% (corresponding to 8,762,991 votes)
on that date. Of these, 6.80% (corresponding to 4,762,991
votes) are ascribed to Whirlpool Germany GmbH in accordance with Section 21 (1) of the German Securities Trading Act
(WpHG), and 5.71% (corresponding to 4,000,000 votes) to
a financial instrument within the meaning of Section 25a of
the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG). The financial
instrument concerns a contract under which Whirlpool Germany GmbH is entitled, subject to a condition precedent, to
conclude an agreement for the acquisition of 4,000,000 shares
in ALNO AG. The financial instrument becomes due when
the condition precedent is met. Occurrence of the condition
precedent depends also on circumstances beyond the control
of Whirlpool Germany GmbH.
c) Notification pursuant to Section 21 (1) of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG)
The voting shares in ALNO AG held by Whirlpool Germany
GmbH, Stuttgart, Germany, exceeded the voting thresholds
of 10%, 15% and 20% on 22 November 2012 and totalled
24.88% (corresponding to 17,437,821 votes) on that date.
d) Notification pursuant to Section 25a of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG)
Moreover, the voting share in ALNO AG held by Whirlpool
Germany GmbH, Stuttgart, as a result of the financial instrument held by the company within the meaning of Section
25a of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG) exceeded
the voting thresholds of 15%, 20%, 25% and 30% on
22 November 2012 and totalled 30.58% (corresponding to 21,437,821 votes) on that date. Of these, 24.88%
(corresponding to 17,437,821 votes) are ascribed to
Whirlpool Germany GmbH in accordance with Section 21 (1)
of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), and 5.71%
(corresponding to 4,000,000 votes) to a financial instrument
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within the meaning of Section 25a of the German Securities
Trading Act (WpHG). The financial instrument concerns a
contract under which Whirlpool Germany GmbH is entitled,
subject to a condition precedent, to conclude an agreement for
the acquisition of 4,000,000 shares in ALNO AG. The financial
instrument becomes due when the condition precedent is met.
Occurrence of the condition precedent depends also on circumstances beyond the control of Whirlpool Germany GmbH.
2. Whirlpool Corporation

a) Notification pursuant to Section 21 (1) of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG)
The voting shares in ALNO AG held by Whirlpool Corporation,
Wilmington, Delaware, USA, fell below the voting thresholds
of 15% and 10% on 21 November 2012 and totalled 6.80%
(corresponding to 4,762,991 votes) on that date.
In accordance with Section 22 (1), first sentence, No. 1 para. 3,
of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), 6.80% of these
(corresponding to 4,762,991 votes) are ascribed to Whirlpool
Corporation through its subsidiary Whirlpool Germany GmbH,
which holds 3% or more of the voting shares in ALNO AG.
b) Notification pursuant to Section 25a of the German Securities
Trading Act (WpHG)
The voting share in ALNO AG held by Whirlpool Corporation, Wilmington, Delaware, USA, as a result of the financial
instrument indirectly held by the company within the meaning
of Section 25a of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG)
fell below the voting thresholds of 30 %, 25 %, 20 % and 15 %
on 21 November 2012 and totalled 12.50% (corresponding to
8,762,991 votes) on that date. Of these, 6.80% (corresponding
to 4,762,991 votes) are ascribed to Whirlpool Corporation in
accordance with Section 21 (1) of the German Securities Trading
Act (WpHG), and 5.71% (corresponding to 4,000,000 votes) to
a financial instrument within the meaning of Section 25a of the
German Securities Trading Act (WpHG). The financial instrument concerns a contract authorizing the conclusion, subject
to a condition precedent, of an agreement for the acquisition
of 4,000,000 shares in ALNO AG. The financial instrument
becomes due when the condition precedent is met. Occurrence
of the condition precedent depends also on circumstances
beyond the control of Whirlpool Corporation.

c) Notification pursuant to Section 21 (1) of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG)
The voting shares in ALNO AG held by Whirlpool Corporation,
Wilmington, Delaware, USA, exceeded the voting thresholds
of 10%, 15% and 20 % on 22 November 2012 and totalled
24.88% (corresponding to 17,437,821 votes) on that date.
In accordance with Section 22 (1), first sentence, No. 1 para. 3,
of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), 24.88% of these
(corresponding to 17,437,821 votes) are ascribed to Whirlpool
Corporation through its subsidiary Whirlpool Germany GmbH,
which holds 3% or more of the voting shares in ALNO AG.
b) Notification pursuant to Section 25a of the German Securities
Trading Act (WpHG)
The voting share in ALNO AG held by Whirlpool Corporation, Wilmington, Delaware, USA, as a result of the financial
instrument indirectly held by the company within the meaning
of Section 25a of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG)
exceeded the voting thresholds of 15%, 20%, 25% and 30%
on 22 November 2012 and totalled 30.58% (corresponding
to 21,437,821 votes) on that date. Of these, 24.88% (corresponding to 17,437,821 votes) are ascribed to Whirlpool
Corporation in accordance with Section 21 (1) of the German
Securities Trading Act (WpHG), and 5.71% (corresponding to
4,000,000 votes) to a financial instrument within the meaning
of Section 25a of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG).
The financial instrument concerns a contract authorizing the
conclusion, subject to a condition precedent, of an agreement
for the acquisition of 4,000,000 shares in ALNO AG. The financial instrument becomes due when the condition precedent is
met. Occurrence of the condition precedent depends also on
circumstances beyond the control of Whirlpool Corporation.
The notifiable 5.71% (corresponding to 4,000,000 votes) in
accordance with the financial instrument within the meaning of
Section 25a of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG) are
indirectly held by Whirlpool Corporation through its subsidiary
Whirlpool Germany GmbH as permitted by Section 25a (1), first
sentence, of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG).
The aforementioned notifications were published through
Deutsche Gesellschaft für Ad-hoc-Publizität (DGAP) on
29 November 2012.

The notifiable 5.71% (corresponding to 4,000,000 votes) in
accordance with the financial instrument within the meaning of
Section 25a of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG) are
indirectly held by Whirlpool Corporation through its subsidiary
Whirlpool Germany GmbH as permitted by Section 25a (1), first
sentence, of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG).
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In accordance with Section 21 (1) of the German Securities
Trading Act (WpHG), the company SE Swiss Entrepreneur AG,
Zug, Switzerland, informed ALNO AG on 29 November 2012
that the share of voting rights held by SE Swiss Entrepreneur
AG, Zug, Switzerland, in ALNO AG, Pfullendorf, Germany,
exceeded the thresholds of 3% and 5% on 26 November 2012
and totalled 8.086% (corresponding to 5,668,000 votes) on
that date.
In accordance with Section 21 (1) of the German Securities
Trading Act (WpHG), Mr. Christoph Dietsche, Zug, Switzerland,
informed ALNO AG on 29 November 2012 that his share
of voting rights in ALNO AG, Pfullendorf, Germany, exceeded
the thresholds of 3% and 5% on 26 November 2012 and totalled
8.143% (corresponding to 5,708,000 votes) on that date.
Of these, 8.086% (5,668,000 votes) are ascribed to Mr. Christoph Dietsche in accordance with Section 22 (1), first sentence,
No. 1, of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG) through
the company SE Swiss Entrepreneur AG, Zug, Switzerland, a
subsidiary of Mr. Christoph Dietsche, which holds 3% or more
of the voting shares in ALNO AG.
The aforementioned notifications were published through
Deutsche Gesellschaft für Ad-hoc-Publizität (DGAP) on
30 November 2012.

In accordance with Section 21 (1), first sentence, of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), the company Küchen
Holding GmbH, Munich, Germany, informed ALNO AG on
29 November 2012 that its share of voting rights in ALNO AG,
Pfullendorf, Germany, had fallen below the thresholds of 30%,
25%, 20% and 15% on 21 November 2012 and totalled 13.15%
(corresponding to 9,219,422 votes) on that date.
In accordance with Section 21 (1), first sentence, of the
German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), the company Milano
Investments S.à.r.l., Esch-sur-Alzette, Luxemburg, informed
ALNO AG on 29 November 2012 that its share of voting rights
in ALNO, Pfullendorf, Germany, had fallen below the threshold of
30%, 25%, 20% and 15% on 21 November 2012 and totalled
13.15% (corresponding to 9,219,422 votes) on that date.
Of these, 13.15% (9,219,422 votes) are ascribed to Milano
Investments S.à.r.l. in accordance with Section 22 (1), first
sentence, No. 1, of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG)
through its subsidiary Küchen Holding GmbH, Munich,
Germany, which holds 3% or more of the voting shares in
ALNO AG.
The aforementioned notifications were published through
Deutsche Gesellschaft für Ad-hoc-Publizität (DGAP) on 4
December 2012.
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In accordance with Sections 21 (1), 25a and 24 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), the company Whirlpool
Corporation, Benton Harbour, USA, informed ALNO AG on
6 December 2012 that the following voting shares in ALNO AG
(WKN: 778 840 / ISIN: DE 0007788408), Pfullendorf, Germany,
accrue to the following persons:
1. Whirlpool Germany GmbH

a) Notification pursuant to Section 21 (1) of the German
Securities Trading Act (WpHG)
The voting shares in ALNO AG held by Whirlpool Germany
GmbH, Stuttgart, Germany, exceeded the voting thresholds
of 25% and 30% on 4 December 2012 and totalled 30.58%
(corresponding to 21,437,821 votes) on that date.
b) Notification pursuant to Section 25a of the German Securities
Trading Act (WpHG)
Moreover, the voting share in ALNO AG held by Whirlpool
Germany GmbH, Stuttgart, as a result of the financial instrument held by the company within the meaning of Section 25a
of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG) fell below the
voting thresholds of 30%, 25%, 20%, 15%, 10% and 5% on
3 December 2012 and totalled 0% (corresponding to 0 votes)
on that date. On that same date, the voting share in ALNO AG
held by Whirlpool Germany GmbH in accordance with Section
21 (1) of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG) totalled
30.58% (corresponding to 21,437,821 votes).
2. Whirlpool Corporation

a) Notification pursuant to Section 21 (1) of the German
Securities Trading Act (WpHG)
The voting shares in ALNO AG held by Whirlpool Corporation, Wilmington, Delaware, USA, exceeded the voting
thresholds of 25% and 30% on 4 December 2012 and
totalled 30.58% (corresponding to 21,437,821 votes) on
that date. In accordance with Section 22 (1), first sentence, No. 1 para. 3, of the German Securities Trading Act
(WpHG), 30.58% of these (corresponding to 21,437,821
votes) are ascribed to Whirlpool Corporation through its
subsidiary Whirlpool Germany GmbH, which holds 3% or
more of the voting shares in ALNO AG.
b) Notification pursuant to Section 25a of the German
Securities Trading Act (WpHG)
Moreover, the voting share in ALNO AG held by Whirlpool
Corporation, Wilmington, Delaware, USA, as a result of
the financial instrument held by the company within the
meaning of Section 25a of the German Securities Trading
Act (WpHG) fell below the voting thresholds of 30%,
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25%, 20%, 15%, 10% and 5% on 3 December 2012 and
totalled 0% (corresponding to 0 votes) on that date. On
that same date, the voting share in ALNO AG held by
Whirlpool Corporation in accordance with Section 21 (1)
of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG) totalled
30.58% (corresponding to 21,437,821 votes).
In accordance with Section 22 (1), first sentence, No. 1
para. 3, of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG),
the 30.58% (corresponding to 21,437,821 votes) accruing to Whirlpool Corporation are ascribed to it through its
subsidiary Whirlpool Germany GmbH, which holds 3% or
more of the voting shares in ALNO AG.
The aforementioned notifications were published through
Deutsche Gesellschaft für Ad-hoc-Publizität (DGAP) on
7 December 2012.

In accordance with Section 21 (1), first sentence, of the
German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), the company
Küchen Holding GmbH, Munich, Germany, informed ALNO
AG on 7 December 2012 that its share of voting rights
in ALNO AG, Pfullendorf, Germany, had fallen below the
threshold of 10% on 4 December 2012 and totalled 7.09%
(corresponding to 4,968,470 votes) on that date.
In accordance with Section 21 (1), first sentence, of the
German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), the company
Milano Investments S.à.r.l., Esch-sur-Alzette, Luxemburg,
informed ALNO AG on 7 December 2012 that its share
of voting rights in ALNO AG, Pfullendorf, Germany, had
fallen below the threshold of 10% on 4 December 2012
and totalled 7.09% (corresponding to 4,968,470 votes)
on that date.
Of these, 7.09% (4,968,470 votes) are ascribed to Milano
Investments S.à.r.l. in accordance with Section 22 (1),
first sentence, No. 1, of the German Securities Trading
Act (WpHG) through its subsidiary Küchen Holding GmbH,
Munich, Germany, which holds 3% or more of the voting
shares in ALNO AG.
The aforementioned notifications were published through
Deutsche Gesellschaft für Ad-hoc-Publizität (DGAP) on
10 December 2012.

In accordance with Section 21 (1), first sentence, of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), the company Küchen
Holding GmbH, Munich, Germany, informed ALNO AG on
19 December 2012 that its share of voting rights in ALNO
AG, Pfullendorf, Germany, had fallen below the thresholds
of 5% and 3% on 17 December 2012 and totalled 2.55%
(corresponding to 1,787,908 votes) on that date.
In accordance with Section 21 (1), first sentence, of the
German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), the company
Milano Investments S.à.r.l., Esch-sur-Alzette, Luxemburg,
informed ALNO AG on 19 December 2012 that its share of
voting rights in ALNO AG, Pfullendorf, Germany, had fallen
below the thresholds of 5% and 3% on 17 December 2012
and totalled 2.55% (corresponding to 1,787,908 votes)
on that date.
Of these, 2.55% (1,787,908 votes) are ascribed to Milano
Investments S.à.r.l. in accordance with Section 22 (1), first
sentence, No. 1, of the German Securities Trading Act
(WpHG) through its subsidiary Küchen Holding GmbH,
Munich, Germany, which holds 3% or more of the voting
shares in ALNO AG.
The aforementioned notifications were published through
Deutsche Gesellschaft für Ad-hoc-Publizität (DGAP) on 20
December 2012.

AUTHORIZED CAPITAL

By resolution of the Ordinary General Meeting of ALNO
AG on 14 July 2011, the Board of Management was
authorized to increase the company's share capital with
the consent of the Supervisory Board on one or more
occasions by up to EUR 33,923,471.40 by issuing up
to 13,047,489 no-par-value ordinary shares in return for
cash and/or non-cash contributions until 13 July 2016
(authorized capital 2011). It was entered in the Register
of Companies on 17 August 2011.
The shareholders can exercise their statutory subscription
right. The new shares can also be taken over by one or
more banking institutes subject to the proviso that they
be offered to the shareholders (indirect subscription right).
The Board of Management is authorized to undertake
the following actions with the consent of the Supervisory
Board:
•
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to exclude shareholders' subscription rights for fractional
amounts.
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to exclude the shareholders' subscription rights as a
whole in order to offer the company's new shares to third
parties in return for non-cash contributions in conjunction
with business combinations or the acquisition of companies or parts thereof, as well as with the acquisition of
other assets, including loans and other liabilities.

•

to exclude the shareholders' subscription rights if the
cash capital increase does not exceed 10% of the share
capital and the issuing price is not significantly lower
than the market price of correspondingly endowed shares
which are already listed on the stock market.

•

to exclude the shareholders' subscription rights if necessary in order to grant the holders of warrants or the
creditors of convertible bonds issued by the company or
its subordinate Group companies a subscription right to
the new shares commensurate with that accruing after
exercising their option or conversion rights or following
the discharge of conversion obligations.

CONTINGENT CAPITAL

By resolution of the Annual General Meeting on 14 July
2011, the Board of Management was authorized to issue,
on one or more occasions until 13 July 2016, cum-warrant and/or convertible bonds in a total nominal amount
of up to EUR 100,000,000.00 with a term of up to 20
years either through the company or through companies
in which the company has a direct or indirect majority
holding ("subordinate Group companies") and to guarantee
such cum-warrant and/or convertible bonds issued by the
company's subordinate Group companies. The holders of
cum-warrant and/or convertible bonds must be granted
option and/or conversion rights for up to 13,047,489 nopar-value ordinary shares in the company with a prorated
share of up to EUR 33,923,471.40 in the company's
share capital in accordance with the respective terms and
conditions of the cum-warrant and/or convertible bonds
("conditions").
This contingent capital increase may only be undertaken if
option and/or conversion rights are issued and only insofar as the holders of the warrants or convertible bonds
exercise their option or conversion rights, or insofar as the
holders with conversion or option obligation also discharge
their conversion / option obligation, and the contingent
capital is needed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the cum-warrant or convertible bond. The new
shares issued on the basis of the option or conversion
right exercised or through discharge of the conversion or
option obligation share in profits as from the beginning of
the financial year in which they are created.
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The Board of Management was authorized to specify further details, with the consent of the Supervisory Board,
concerning the realization of this contingent capital
increase (contingent capital 2011).
ACQUISITION OF OWN SHARES

By resolution of the Annual General Meeting on 23 June
2010, the Board of Management was authorized to buy
own shares up to 10% of the share capital existing at the
time of adopting the resolution, as permitted by Section 71
(1), No. 8, of the Stock Companies Act (AktG). This authority can be exercised in the full amount or part-amounts,
on one or more occasions and in pursuit of one or more
objectives by the company or by third parties for account
of the company. At no point may the acquired shares
together with other own shares account for more than 10%
of the share capital. This authorization became effective
on 24 June 2010 and remains valid until 22 June 2015.
The shares can be purchased through the stock exchange
or through a public offer to buy addressed to all the
company's shareholders, as preferred by the Board of
Management.
If shares are purchased through the stock exchange, the
consideration paid by the company per share (excluding
incidental expenses) must be not more than 10% higher
or lower than the stock exchange price quoted for the
company's stock on the XETRA electronic trading platform
(or an equivalent subsequent system) when the Frankfurt
stock exchange opens for trading on the date of purchase.
If they are purchased through a public offer to buy
addressed to all the company's shareholders, the purchase price offered or the limits of the price range offered
per share (excluding incidental expenses) must not be
more than 20% higher or lower than the average closing
price for the company's stock on the XETRA electronic
trading platform (or an equivalent subsequent system)
quoted on the Frankfurt stock exchange on the last three
trading days before publication of the offer. The offer can
be adjusted if the price deviates significantly following publication of the offer. In this case, the price will be based
on the corresponding average closing price on the last
three trading days before publication of the adjusted offer.
The volume offered can be limited. If the offer is oversubscribed, acceptance must be prorated in accordance with
the shares offered in each case. Priority may be given to
accepting smaller numbers of up to 100 of the shares
offered for sale per shareholder.
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The Board of Management is authorized, with the consent of the Supervisory Board, to use the company shares
acquired on the basis of this or a previous authority for the
following purposes:
The shares may also be sold by other means than through
the stock exchange or by offer to all shareholders if they
are sold in return for cash payment at a price not significantly lower than the stock exchange price quoted for
the company's stock at the time of sale. However, this
authority applies subject to the proviso that the shares
sold on the basis of this authority do not exceed a prorated
amount equal to 10% of the share capital, neither at the
time of becoming effective nor at the time of exercising this
authority. The maximum limit of 10% is reduced by the prorated amount of share capital corresponding to the shares
issued within the framework of a capital increase during
the term of this authority for which subscription rights are
excluded in accordance with Section 186 (3), fourth sentence, of the Stock Companies Act (AktG). The maximum
limit of 10% is also reduced by the prorated amount of
share capital corresponding to the shares issued or to be
issued in order to service bonds with conversion or option
rights, insofar as the bonds have been issued during the
term of this authority with exclusion of subscription rights
in accordance with Section 186 (3), fourth sentence, of the
Stock Companies Act (AktG).

This authority can be exercised in the full amount or partamounts, on one or more occasions in the pursuit of one
or more objectives. The shareholders' right of subscription
to these own shares is excluded. In addition, the Board
of Management may, with the consent of the Supervisory
Board, exclude the right of subscription for fractional
amounts, with the consent of the Supervisory Board, when
own shares are sold within the context of an offer to all the
company's shareholders.
The Board of Management is also authorized to collect the
acquired own shares with the consent of the Supervisory
Board without requiring a further resolution of the shareholders' meeting.

b. Capital reser ve
The capital reserve developed as follows in the year
under review:

in '000 EUR
Total as at 1 January 2011
Changes in 2011
Total as at 31 December 2011
Changes in 2012
Total as at 31 December 2012

Shares can be sold in return for non-cash consideration, in
particular in conjunction with business combinations and
the acquisition of companies, company parts and holdings
in companies.
The shares can be offered to persons employed by the
company or one of its affiliated companies.
The shares can be used to discharge the company's obligation under cum-warrant and/or convertible bonds issued
or guaranteed by the company in the future.

42,437
3,479
45,916
– 42,658
3,258

In conjunction with the simplified capital reduction of
12 October 2012, up to EUR 1,058 thousand from the
existing capital reserve were used to cover losses. In conjunction with the capital increase effected on 21 November 2012, the surplus of EUR 2,200 thousand exceeding
the nominal amount was allocated to the capital reserve.
The capital reserve now totals EUR 3,258 thousand.

c. Legal reser ve
In the single-entity financial statements of ALNO AG, 5% of
the balance sheet profit of EUR 9,249 thousand (EUR 462
thousand) were allocated to the legal reserve as permitted
by Section 150 (2) of the Stock Companies Act (AktG).
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d. Accumulated net income

e. Capital management

With regard to the development of accumulated net income, we refer to the figures presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Group equity has improved from EUR –73,344 thousand
as at 31 December 2011 to EUR –7,462 thousand as at
31 December 2012 and is now made up as follows:

The accumulated net income includes generated Group
equity, the reserve from currency translation and the other
transactions recognized outside profit or loss.

in '000 EUR
Subscribed capital
Capital reserve
Legal reserve

Generated Group equity comprises the accumulated consolidated income of the reporting periods, the waivers of
repayment given by the shareholders, transaction expenses
for capital increases and the reserve from remeasurement
when IFRS standards were applied for the first time.
The other transactions recognized outside profit or loss
concern actuarial gains and losses from the provisions
for pensions, changes in the fair value of securities and
the deferred taxes associated with these in each case.
The amounts recognized in the financial year 2012 are
presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Accumulated net income
Minority shares
Total

31.12.2012

31.12.2011

70,095

67,847

3,258

45,916

462

0

– 81,507

– 187,107

230

0

– 7,462

– 73,344
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Implementation of the restructuring agreement II signed
in spring 2011 and of the restructuring agreement III
signed on 11 July 2012 improved Group equity in 2012 by
EUR 69,293 thousand altogether (capital increase of
EUR 46,200 thousand less transaction costs of EUR 1,907
thousand, as well as a waiver of repayment by a shareholder
in the amount of EUR 25,000 thousand); these effects are
offset by the negative consolidated comprehensive income.
The ALNO Group's net financial liabilities are as follows:

31.12.2012
in '000 EUR

31.12.2011
in '000 EUR

Change
in '000 EUR

Change
in %

4,027

10,482

– 6,455

– 61.6

15,284

99,447

– 84,163

– 84.6

19,311

109,929

– 90,618

– 82.4

Minus liquid assets

– 5,402

– 2,243

– 3,159

140.8

Net financial liabilities

13,909

107,686

– 93,777

– 87.1

168,252

159,670

8,582

5.4%

8.3

67.4

Shareholder loans and other financial liabilities
Non-current
Current

Total assets
Net financial liabilities in % of total assets

Other financial liabilities have been significantly reduced
in the amount of EUR 90,618 thousand or 82.4%. This is
attributable, above all, to the relief of EUR 25,000 thousand
in accounts payable to banks undertaken by a shareholder
in conjunction with restructuring agreement II, and repayment of the syndicate banks in the amount of EUR 53,636
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thousand (including a waiver of EUR 10,727 thousand by
the banks) in conjunction with restructuring agreement III.
However, it is countermanded by the earn-out certificate
issued in the amount of EUR 1,820 thousand effective
31 December 2012.
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Liabilities owing to a related party were likewise repaid in
the amount of EUR 20,373 thousand. On the other hand,
financial liabilities were incurred in conjunction with the
acquisition of company shares. Liquid assets increased
following the elimination of bank lines.
Equity increased distinctly by EUR 65,882 thousand as a
result of the equity measures undertaken in 2012. These
effects resulted in an increase of EUR 8,582 thousand in
total assets.
Overall, net financial liabilities in relation to total assets
decreased from 67.4% to 8.3%.
The shareholders' equity for ALNO AG presented in the
annual financial statements as at 31 December 2012 in
accordance with the German Commercial Code (HGB)
totals EUR 82,602 thousand (previous year: EUR 26,209
thousand). The major rise of EUR 56,393 thousand in
equity is attributable to the capital increase undertaken in
the amount of EUR 46,200 thousand and to the net profit
of EUR 10,193 thousand for the year. The latter is due
above all to the waivers declared in 2012 for repayment
of a total sum of EUR 33,907 thousand. Changes in equity
are monitored by ALNO AG on a monthly basis.

11. PROVISIONS FOR PENSIONS

The ALNO Group's company pension scheme is essentially based on direct, defined-benefit pension commitments. As a rule, pensions are calculated according to
the employee's period of service and pensionable earnings.
The aforementioned commitments are measured on the
basis of actuarial assessments. These assessments are
based on the applicable legal, economic and tax conditions in the country concerned. Valuation parameters were
specifically applied for the countries concerned.
Provisions are measured according to the present value of
entitlement (Projected Unit Credit Method) in compliance
with IAS 19, taking into account the future development.
A discount rate of 3.7% (previous year: 4.8% and 5.4%)
is applied in Germany, which accounts for the lion's share
of this provision, with 99.7% (previous year: 99.8%). The
discount rate abroad equals 4.2% (previous year: 4.8%).
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In Germany, existing commitments are measured with a
rise of 0.0% and 1.0% (previous year: 0.0%) in wages
and salaries and an average pension trend of 1.5% (previous year: 1.0% and 1.5%). Higher loans and salaries are
not expected abroad. Pensions abroad are assumed to
increase by 5.0% (previous year: 5.0%) on average. Staff
fluctuation is calculated for each specific plant and is set
at 0.0% (previous year: 0.0%) in Germany. A fluctuation
rate of 2.0% (previous year: 2.1%) is expected abroad.
Expected earnings from plan assets are calculated with
an interest rate of 3.7% in Germany and 3.0% abroad
(previous year: 4.2% and 3.4%, respectively). The
expected income from plan assets corresponds to the
average return on non-current investments on which the
plan assets are based. Actual income from plan assets
amounted to EUR 138 thousand (previous year: EUR
23 thousand).
In other countries, the plan assets comprise non-current
investments in life insurance; in Germany, the plan assets
are centrally invested through Allianz Global Investors.
The plan assets posted in the balance sheet are not used
by the company.
The following figures have been recognized in the consolidated income statement:

in '000 EUR

2012

2011

10

0

Interest expense

902

952

Expected return on plan assets

– 48

– 51

864

901

Current service costs

Except for the interest expense, which is posted under
financial expenses, the expenditures are recognized as
retirement benefit expenses.
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The present value of entitlement is reconciled with the
reported provision as follows:

in '000 EUR

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

20,187

17,966

16,957

16,061

16,258

Present value of entitlement, fund-financed
benefit obligations

1,610

1,339

1,236

1,132

936

Present value of entitlement, direct benefit
obligations (DBO)

21,798

19,305

18,193

17,193

17,194

Fair value of plan assets

– 1,514

– 1,306

– 1,220

– 992

– 888

Provision for pensions

20,284

17,999

16,973

16,201

16,306

376

164

– 117

429

– 30

Present value of entitlement, benefit obligations
financed from provisions

Empirical gains (–) or losses (+) from benefit
obligations

The present value of defi ned benefi t obligations has
changed as follows:

The fair value of plan assets has developed as follows:

in '000 EUR

in '000 EUR

2012

2011

Plan assets at the start of each
financial year

1,306

1,220

Expected return on plan assets

48

51

Employers' contributions

59

61

Commitment at the start of
each financial year
Interest expense
Current service costs
Pension payments in the period

Actuarial gains (–) or losses (+)
Currency differences
Commitment at the end of each
financial year

2012

2011

19,305

18,193

902

952

10

0

– 1,214

– 1,116

Pension payments made from
plan assets

– 59

0

2,773

1,271

Actuarial gains (–) or losses (+)

139

– 28

22

5

21

2

21,798

19,305

1,514

1,306

Currency differences
Plan assets at the end of each
financial year

Due to compliance with the maximum limit pursuant to
IAS 19.58 (b), the actuarial gains and losses include an
actuarial loss in the amount of EUR 0 thousand (previous year: EUR 48 thousand). The change totalling EUR
48 thousand (previous year: EUR 3 thousand) has been
directly recognized in equity outside profit or loss with
the other actuarial gains and losses totalling EUR –2,682
thousand (previous year: EUR –1,302 thousand). As at the
balance sheet date, actuarial losses totalled EUR 4,660
thousand (previous year: EUR 2,025 thousand).
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12. OTHER PROVISIONS

1.1.2012

Utilization

Reversal

Transfer

Allocation

Accrued
interest

Exchange
difference

31.12.2012

2,873

– 23

0

– 1,077

107

92

0

1,972

319

0

–3

0

10

0

0

326

3,192

– 23

–3

– 1,077

117

92

0

2,298

2,053

– 1,724

– 350

0

1,364

0

0

1,343

10

–5

–5

0

2,501

0

0

2,501

3,503

– 1,887

– 1,205

1,077

102

0

0

1,590

Taxes

61

0

0

0

10

0

0

71

Total

5,627

– 3,616

– 1,560

1,077

3,977

0

0

5,505

in '000 EUR
Non-current
provisions
Personnel costs
Storage

Current
provisions
Warranties, damages and
contingent losses
Reorganization
Personnel costs

The provisions for personnel costs essentially comprise
provisions for the pre-retirement part-time working
arrangements customary in Germany. The provision for
pre-retirement part-time working encompasses expenses
for wage and salary payments to employees in the off-work
phase (settlement backlog) and the additional increases
required for the entire remaining duration of pre-retirement
part-time working. It also includes employee termination
payments in the amount of EUR 172 thousand (previous
year: EUR 209 thousand) in conjunction with pre-retirement part-time working. A discount rate of 1.5% (previous
year: 2.5%) is taken into account when calculating the
provision. EUR 185 thousand (previous year: EUR 284
thousand) are posted under other non-current assets for
the refunds to be expected from the Federal Employment
Agency in conjunction with rights under the German Act
on Pre-retirement Part-time Working (AltTZG).

The reorganization provision includes the payments
still outstanding in conjunction with the employment and
qualification company at the Enger location.
The non-current provisions relating to pre-retirement
part-time working arrangements will for the most part be
consumed within the next two years. The other non-current
personnel provisions and the provision for safe storage will
be consumed within the next ten years.

13. SHAREHOLDER LOANS

Financial liabilities in the amount of EUR 365 thousand
(previous year: EUR 365 thousand) existed in the financial
year, in the form of loans granted by the shareholders of
ALNO AG.

The provision for warranties, damages and contingent
losses encompasses free deliveries on account of faulty
goods, missing parts and other defects which are measured at production cost. At the same time, the provision
also covers risks in conjunction with claims for damages
by customers and suppliers; these are recognized at their
expected value. Provisions are also formed for contingent
losses from delivery obligations, for which the unavoidable costs for discharging the obligation will exceed the
expected economic benefit.
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14. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

in '000 EUR

Accounts payable
to banks

31.12.2012
Total

Remaining term
< 1 year 1 to 5 years > 5 years

3,713

1,532

2,181

0

Other financial
liabilities

15,233

13,387

1,846

0

Total

18,946

14,919

4,027

0

in '000 EUR

31.12.2011
Total

Remaining term
< 1 year 1 to 5 years > 5 years

Accounts payable
to banks

79,757

69,275

5,271

5,211

Other financial
liabilities

29,807

29,807

0

0

109,564

99,082

5,271

5,211
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Covenants (loan terms) have been agreed for the loan
extended by a subsidiary. These relate to the equity ratio
and upper limit for cost allocations charged by the Group.
As at the balance sheet date, the agreed loan terms were
not met insofar as the equity ratio was concerned. The
loan valued at EUR 750 thousand as per 31 December
2012 is therefore completely reclassified as a current
financial liability.
The accounts payable to banks are secured through
charges on property and assignment of the right to
release of free land charge portions, as well as through
the transfer of machinery and equipment by way of security. As at the balance sheet date, the assets serving as
collateral are posted in the consolidated balance sheet
with the following carrying amounts:

in '000 EUR
Total

The accounts payable to banks include an earn-out certificate in the amount of EUR 1,820 thousand. Bank loans
were repaid, except for a remaining sum of EUR 1,893
thousand, The four remaining loan agreements essentially
provide for interest rates between 5.5% p.a. and 6.4% p.a.
The loans are repaid at quarterly and half-yearly intervals.
One loan in the amount of EUR 722 thousand was repaid
prematurely in March 2013. A further loan in the amount
of EUR 420 thousand matures in July 2013.
Current financial liabilities were relieved by EUR 25,000
thousand as a result of the waiver of repayment realized
by a shareholder in early January 2012. This is offset by
new loans granted by related parties.
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31.12.2012

31.12.2011

12,478

44,349

Machinery and technical equipment

5,382

6,037

Inventories

4,119

13,630

0

12,798

Land and buildings

Trade accounts receivable

15. DEFERRED GR ANTS AND SUBSIDIES FROM
PUBLIC AUTHORITIES

Deferred grants and subsidies from public authorities
in the amount of EUR 730 thousand (previous year:
EUR 756 thousand) comprise investment grants for a
subsidiary in the new German states. In the financial year,
EUR 26 thousand (previous year: EUR 25 thousand) were
reversed and recognized as income.
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16. TR ADE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

in '000 EUR

Remaining term
1 to 5 years

31.12.2012 Total

< 1 year

Trade accounts payable

99,696

99,694

2

0

Other financial liabilities

18,528

18,496

32

0

13,797

13,797

0

0

thereof unpaid invoices

1,728

1,728

0

0

thereof customer accounts with credit balances

2,301

2,301

0

0

118,224

118,190

34

0

31.12.2011 Total

< 1 year

Trade accounts payable

62,168

62,168

0

0

Other financial liabilities

24,716

24,656

60

0

17,007

17,007

0

0

thereof unpaid invoices

3,729

3,729

0

0

thereof customer accounts with credit balances

2,855

2,855

0

0

86,884

86,824

60

0

31.12.2012 Total

< 1 year

5,479

5,479

0

0

482

482

0

0

2,701

2,701

0

0

108

108

0

0

8,770

8,770

0

0

31.12.2011 Total

< 1 year

Personnel

6,202

6,202

0

0

Other

1,067

1,067

0

0

Other taxes

848

848

0

0

Social security

152

152

0

0

8,269

8,269

0

0

thereof customer discounts

Total

in '000 EUR

thereof customer discounts

Total

Remaining term
1 to 5 years

> 5 years

> 5 years

17. OTHER LIABILITIES

in '000 EUR
Personnel
Other
Other taxes
Social security
Total

in '000 EUR

Total
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E. Notes to the consolidated
cash flow statement

F. Notes to the segment
reports

GENERAL

In conjunction with segment reporting, the activities of the
ALNO Group were defined according to business segments in compliance with the rules of IFRS 8. Segments
which reported to the Board of Management are not
combined. This breakdown is based on the internal management and reporting, and encompasses the segments
ALNO, Wellmann, Impuls, pino, the foreign subsidiaries
(ATG) and other companies.

In compliance with IAS 7 (Cash Flow Statements), the consolidated cash flow statement shows the change in cash
and cash equivalents in the Group due to payment flows
from operating activities, investment activities and financing activities, as well as through the change in exchange
rates during the year under review.
The net cash flow for operating activities shows a cash
inflow of EUR 34.4 million in the year under review (previous
year: cash outflow of EUR –3.3 million). This major increase
is due above all to the considerably improved Group
income for the period and the reduction in income without
impact on the cash flow, which had been characterized in
the previous year by a waiver of repayment of EUR 25.0
million, as well as to lower interest payments. Investment
activities resulted in a cash outflow of EUR 14.7 million in
the year under review, as compared to EUR 17.1 million in
the previous year. This decrease is essentially attributable
to lower investments in booth design and installation of
display kitchens. The EUR 36.0 million reduction in cash
flow from financing activities is essentially due to the EUR
58.6 million higher repayment of financial and current
account liabilities in conjunction with the restructuring
agreement of 11 July 2012, which was offset by the EUR
20.1 million increase in funds resulting from the capital
increase in 2012.
The cash fund (cash and cash equivalents) at the end of
each financial year is presented in D. 9.

117

The ALNO segment comprises ALNO AG in Pfullendorf,
which builds brand name kitchens in the upper and middle price group at the Pfullendorf location; the Wellmann
segment produces kitchens in the middle price group at
the Enger location. The Impuls segment comprises Impuls
Küchen GmbH in Brilon, while the pino segment comprises
pino Küchen GmbH in Coswig (Anhalt); both produce
kitchens in the lower price range. The foreign subsidiaries
encompass the marketing companies in other European
countries. Two special purpose entities, the logismo Group
and an intermediate holding company are recognized
under other companies.
The segment reports are based, as a matter of principle,
on the same reporting, recognition and measurement policies as the consolidated financial statements. For segment reporting purposes, the leases of the special purpose
entities are always treated as operating leases. At-equity
investments are recognized at cost. Internal sales reflect
the value of sales between Group companies; these were
effected at market prices.
Decisions concerning the allocation of resources and
assessment of the reportable segments' performance are
made by the full Board of Management.
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The segment data are presented below according to fields of business:

2012
According to segments in '000 EUR

ALNO

Wellmann

Impuls

pino

ATG

Other

Consolidation

Total

Foreign sales

92,266

123,800

109,106

89,236

31,850

0

0

446,258

Domestic sales

14,906

3,681

2,168

39

0

1,732

– 22,526

0

107,172

127,481

111,274

89,275

31,850

1,732

– 22,526

446,258

Segment EBITDA

– 10,255

34,963

11,522

7,668

– 5,143

1,855

– 26,651

13,959

Segment EBIT

– 11,842

28,654

8,768

5,383

– 5,459

1,745

– 26,372

877

Segment profit/loss
before income taxes (EBT)

– 16,808

26,559

9,013

5,575

– 5,991

1,119

– 20,684

– 1,217

Sales revenue

Total sales
Earnings

Income taxes

– 507

– 27

– 96

– 110

422

94

21

– 203

Income for the period

– 17,315

26,532

8,917

5,465

– 5,569

1,213

– 20,663

– 1,420

Scheduled write-downs

696

6,309

2,754

2,285

241

110

76

12,471

Impairment losses

3,379

0

0

0

75

0

– 75

3,379

Write-ups

2,488

0

0

0

0

0

280

2,768

Financial income

8,767

1,150

1,774

1,780

0

2

– 4,469

9,004

13,733

3,245

1,529

1,588

532

628

– 10,433

10,822

0

0

0

0

0

0

– 276

– 276

Segment assets

129,985

60,619

52,479

48,283

20,124

62,982

– 206,220

168,252

Segment liabilities

104,319

55,864

45,043

42,955

18,396

1,507

– 92,370

175,714

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

5,189

3,328

2,078

2,395

1,184

35

0

14,209

Financial expenses
Income from investments measured
at equity
Assets and liabilities

At-equity investments
Other segment information
Investments

RZ_ALNO_13001_GB_2012_Inhalt_final_ENG.indd 118

19.06.13 13:45

C O N S O L I D AT E D F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

|

NOTES TO THE SEGMENT REPORTS

ALNO

Wellmann

Impuls

pino

ATG

Other

Consolidation

Total

90,415

130,105

112,009

95,183

25,098

0

0

452,810

7,958

5,562

4,084

31

0

1,729

– 19,364

0

98,373

135,667

116,093

95,214

25,098

1,729

– 19,364

452,810

Segment EBITDA

-21,746

– 12,636

7,534

2,891

131

1,570

27,460

5,204

Segment EBIT

-26,779

– 18,311

4,667

745

– 118

1,483

27,615

– 10,698

Segment profit/loss
before income taxes (EBT)

– 33,729

– 21,996

4,332

540

– 350

718

25,269

– 25,216

103

– 235

– 60

– 95

–6

– 73

21

– 345

Income for the period

– 33,626

– 22,231

4,272

445

– 356

645

25,290

– 25,561

Scheduled write-downs

738

5,675

2,867

2,146

93

87

–7

11,599

2011
According to segments in '000 EUR

119

Sales revenue
Foreign sales
Domestic sales
Total sales
Earnings

Income taxes

Impairment losses

4,295

0

0

0

156

0

– 148

4,303

772

38

799

618

3

0

– 2,158

72

6,722

3,723

1,134

823

235

765

– 2,163

11,239

– 1,000

0

0

0

0

0

– 2,351

– 3,351

Segment assets

115,138

61,254

39,149

32,155

9,425

63,952

– 161,403

159,670

Segment liabilities

147,689

84,145

31,893

27,034

11,014

10,042

– 78,803

233,014

5,000

0

0

0

0

0

– 4,129

871

6,528

7,217

2,415

2,433

4

0

0

18,597

Financial income
Financial expenses
Income from investments measured
at equity
Assets and liabilities

At-equity investments
Other segment information
Investments

Internal sales within the ALNO Group have been eliminated
in the consolidated sales revenue.
The consolidation entries posted in the line "Segment result
before income taxes" are comprised as follows:

in '000 EUR

2012

2011

Capital consolidation

6,168

– 808

– 26,632

28,114

– 220

– 2,037

– 20,684

25,269

Debt consolidation
Other consolidation entries
Total
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The other consolidation entries concern the elimination
of interim results in inventories, the corrections made at
Group level on write-downs in the ATG segment, and the
effect of at-equity measurement on results.
The figures presented for amortization, depreciation and
impairment losses in the column Consolidation are the
result of corrections made at Group level on the basis of
impairment testing in the ATG segment.
Consolidation entries posted for fi nancial income and
expenses comprise the elimination of intra-Group interest,
as well as the elimination of an intra-Group write-down
on participating interests in the amount of EUR 5,927
thousand.
The consolidation entries in conjunction with segment
assets are made up as follows:

in '000 EUR

2012

2011

– 111,438

– 108,443

– 84,257

– 44,314

At-equity measurement

– 5,000

– 4,129

Other consolidation entries

– 5,525

– 4,517

– 206,220

– 161,403

Capital consolidation
Debt consolidation

Total

Regional sales are determined according to the place
of delivery. There is no external customer in the ALNO
Group with whom 10% or more of the total sales revenue
is generated.

Total sales according to regions
in '000 EUR

2012

2011

Germany

318,458

326,397

Rest of Europe

107,306

105,456

20,494

20,957

446,258

452,810

2012

2011

79,144

80,349

Rest of Europe

3,397

1

Other foreign countries

1,812

0

84,353

80,350

Other foreign countries
Total

Intangible assets, property, plant
and equipment and investments
measured at equity in '000 EUR
Germany

Total

The other consolidation entries refer to deferred taxes in
the amount of EUR 5,022 thousand (previous year: EUR
4,031 thousand) and the elimination of interim results in
other assets and inventories which are all netted at Group
level.
The consolidation entries in conjunction with segment
liabilities comprise the elimination of intra-Group liabilities
and offsetting deferred taxes.
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G. Management of
financial risks
1. RISK MANAGEMENT PRINCIPLES

The basic principles of financial policy are defined annually by the Board of Management and monitored by
the Supervisory Board. Group Treasury is responsible
for implementing the financial policy, as well as for the
ongoing risk management. Certain transactions require
prior approval by the Board of Management, which is also
regularly informed of the scope and magnitude of the current risk appraisal. Effective management of the market
risks is one of the main Treasury responsibilities. Simulations using various worst case and market scenarios are
performed to assess the impacts of different conditions in
the marketplace.
The Group is exposed to financial risks from financial
assets and liabilities, as well as from planned transactions.
Financial assets, such as trade accounts receivable and
liquid assets, are the direct result of operating activities.
Financial assets also include securities which serve as
hedges for claims from pre-retirement part-time working
arrangements. The financial liabilities primarily comprise
bank loans, other financial liabilities and loans on current
account, as well as trade accounts payable. The main
purpose of financial liabilities is to finance the Group's business operations.
The main risks arising for the Group from the financial assets
and liabilities comprise interest rate risks, liquidity risks, currency risks and risk of default.
Due to the Group's low-risk investment strategy, the risk
of changes in the fair value of securities (price risk) is not
a material risk from a Group vantage.

MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS
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2. CURRENCY RISKS

The currency risk refers to the risk of changes in the fair
value or future cash flows of monetary items on account
of fluctuations in exchange rates.
Currency risks basically arise from investments, financing
activities and operating activities which are undertaken in
a currency other than the company's functional currency.
However, currency risks without impact on the Group's
cash flows, e.g. due to translating foreign corporate entities' assets and liabilities into the Group currency, are
never considered in further detail by Group Treasury.
There was no material risk in the investment sector as at
the balance sheet date.
Currency risks in the financing sector arise from foreign
currency loans which are extended to Group companies
for financing purposes.
Since 1 August 2012, the ALNO plant has restored double
invoicing (euro and local currency) for the United Kingdom,
thus giving rise to currency risks. Other German plants will
likewise changeover to double invoicing for customers in
the United Kingdom, Switzerland and the USA in 2013.
The following table shows the effect of changes in the fair
value of monetary foreign currency items on Group profit/
loss before income taxes. There are no effects on equity
outside profit and loss.

2012

Development of exchange
rate

Effect on result in '000 EUR
Income (+)/Expense (-)

GBP

10.0%

– 10.0%

486

– 486

CHF

10.0%

– 10.0%

116

– 116

USD

10.0%

– 10.0%

76

– 76

AED

10.0%

– 10.0%

229

– 229

2011
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Development of exchange
rate

Effect on result in '000 EUR
Income (+)/Expense (-)

GBP

10.0%

– 10.0%

482

– 482

CHF

10.0%

– 10.0%

81

– 81

USD

10.0%

– 10.0%

0

0

AED

10.0%

– 10.0%

0

0
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3. INTEREST R ATE RISKS

The interest rate risk refers to the risk of changes in the fair
value or future cash flows of financial assets and liabilities
on account of changes in current interest rates.
The Group is primarily exposed to interest rate risks in the
eurozone. To minimize the effect of fluctuations in interest rates in these regions, the interest rate risk for net
financial liabilities made out in euros is managed by ALNO
AG. Financial liabilities in foreign currencies only exist to
a subordinate extent. There are no financial derivatives as
at the balance sheet date.
Financial liabilities and the variable-interest factoring volume have been taken into account in the following analysis
of sensitivity to interest rate movements. Only financial
liabilities with variable interest rates have been included in
the analysis. The analysis is also based on the assumption
that the principal amounts and the ratio of fixed to variable
interest rates remain unchanged.
If the average interest rate were to be increased by 100
(previous year: 150) basis points, the result before taxes
on income would decrease by EUR 249 thousand (previous
year: EUR 1,352 thousand). A reduction of 100 (previous
year: 150) basis points would lead to an increase of EUR
249 thousand (previous year: EUR 1,352 thousand) in
profit/loss before income taxes.

4. RISK OF DEFAULT

The risk of default refers to the risk that a contractual partner fails to discharge its payment obligations in conjunction
with financial assets.
Accounts receivable in operating business are continuously monitored at segment level, i.e. decentralized. In
conjunction with Group receivables management, minimum
requirements as regards creditworthiness and maximum
exposure limits are defined for all business partners of the
ALNO Group. These are based on a system of specified
limits for which compliance is constantly monitored. In
addition, the ALNO Group safeguards its trade receivables
through domestic credit insurance which, if an account
receivable is not paid, will indemnify the loss incurred in
the contractually agreed amount. Specific valuation allowances are used to take account of the risk of default. Trade
receivables are secured through domestic credit insurance
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and the del credere liability of the central regulatory offices
in the overall amount of 90% (previous year: 90%). The
ALNO Group companies decide in each individual case
whether or not to make use of the credit insurance.
In Germany, the kitchens produced by the ALNO Group
are mainly sold through furniture stores and specialized
kitchen retailers, as well as self-service and RTA stores,
most of which are members of purchasing associations.
Due to these market structures, the ALNO Group is
dependent on a small number of customers. The risk of
default by individual key accounts, however, is met through
domestic credit insurance or del credere liability by central
regulatory offices.
The risk of default for unimpaired financial assets and the
development of specific valuation allowances are summarized in section D.6. "Trade accounts receivable".

5. LIQUIDIT Y RISKS

The liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group is unable
to meet its contractual obligations in settling its financial
liabilities.
ALNO AG acts as financial coordinator for all Group
companies in order to ensure that the financing required
for the operational business is always adequate and as
cost-efficient as possible. The information required for this
purpose is updated on a monthly basis through roll-over
financial planning with a planning horizon of one year and
subjected to variance analyses.
This financial planning is supplemented by daily cash flow
development planning for the German companies which
is constantly reconciled with the actual payment flows.
The foreign subsidiaries are updated on a monthly basis.
Available liquidity reserves are monitored constantly by
ALNO AG.
Accounts receivable by Wellmann KG, as well as by Impuls
and pino, are assigned within the scope of factoring agreements in order to extend the liquidity margin needed by
the ALNO Group. The three companies can make variable
use of total factoring commitments in the amount of EUR
35,000 thousand. Of this total, EUR 18,714 thousand (previous year: EUR 23,291 thousand) were used on average
over the year.
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The table below presents the contractually agreed interest
payments and principal portions of the financial liabilities.
All liabilities which were included in the portfolio on the
closing date and for which payments had already been
contractually agreed have been included. The waiver of
repayment which was contractually agreed with a major
shareholder in 2011 and realized in early January 2012
with regard to accounts payable to banks in the amount of
EUR 25 million has already been included in the following
calculation. Budgeted figures for new liabilities in the future
are not included in the calculation. Amounts in foreign
currency have been translated at the rate prevailing on
the reporting date. Variable interest payments have been
calculated on the basis of the last interest rates fixed prior
to the balance sheet date. Financial liabilities which can
be repaid at any time are always assigned to the earliest
possible time frame.

in '000 EUR

Carrying amount
31.12.2012

2013

Due in
2014 – 2017

2018 or later

Other financial liabilities
Accounts payable to banks

3,713

1,645

2,384

0

15,233

14,108

1,846

0

118,224

118,190

34

0

365

455

0

0

0

399

0

0

Carrying amount
31.12.2011

2012

Due in
2013 – 2016

2017 or later

Accounts payable to banks

79,757

46,673

7,548

7,726

Other financial liabilities

29,807

30,257

0

0

86,884

86,824

60

0

365

420

0

0

0

273

0

0

Other financial liabilities

Trade accounts payable and other financial liabilities
Shareholder loans
Warranty obligations

in '000 EUR
Other financial liabilities

Trade accounts payable and other financial liabilities
Shareholder loans
Warranty obligations

With regard to the measures taken to assure the company's continuation as a going concern and to assure its
liquidity, we refer to the information provided in Sections
B.1. "Basis for preparation of the financial statements" and
N. "Events after the closing date".
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6. OTHER INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

The following table presents the carrying amounts and
fair values of all financial assets and liabilities recognized
in the Group.

in '000 EUR

31.12.2012

Financial assets

31.12.2011

Carrying
amount

Fair value

Carrying
amount

Fair value

Liquid assets

LaR

5,402

5,402

2,243

2,243

Trade accounts receivable

LaR

45,336

45,336

41,339

41,339

Financial accounts receivable

LaR

1,057

1,057

1,319

1,319

Securities

AfS

2,456

2,456

3,163

3,163

Investments in associated companies

AfS

139

*

5

*

Financial liabilities
Trade accounts payable

FLaC

99,696

99,696

62,168

62,168

Other financial liabilities

FLaC

18,528

18,528

24,716

24,716

Shareholder loans

FLaC

365

365

365

365

Other financial liabilities

FLaC

18,946

18,946

109,564

109,564

* Fair value cannot be determined reliably.

Classification according to categories within the meaning
of IAS 39

in '000 EUR

31.12.2012
Carrying
amount

Loans and Receivables
(LaR)

The carrying amounts of current financial assets and liabilities correspond to their fair value on account of the short
term to maturity.

31.12.2011

Fair
value

Carrying
amount

Fair
value

51,795

51,795

44,901

44,901

2,456

2,456

3,163

3,163

139

*

5

*

137,535

137,535

Available-for-Sale (AfS)
measured at fair value
measured at amortized
cost of acquisition
Financial Liabilities
measured at cost (FLaC)

The carrying amounts of non-current financial assets and
liabilities correspond to their fair value on account of their
fair market rates.
The following hierarchy is used to measure and recognize
the fair value of financial instruments:
•

Stage 1: Fair values determined with the aid of prices
quoted in active markets.

•

Stage 2: Fair values determined with the aid of measurement policies for which the input factors of significance
for the fair value are based on observable market data.

•

Stage 3: Fair values determined with the aid of measurement policies for which the input factors of significance
for the fair value are not based on observable market
data.

196,813 196,813

* Fair value cannot be determined reliably.

The posted securities are recognized at fair value in their
full amount.
Shares held in associated companies are capitalized at the
amortized cost of acquisition, as there is no active market
for these. What's more, the fair value cannot be reliably
determined in any other way.

RZ_ALNO_13001_GB_2012_Inhalt_final_ENG.indd 124

19.06.13 13:45

C O N S O L I D AT E D F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

The securities measured at fair value in the ALNO Group,
in the amount of EUR 2,456 thousand (previous year: EUR
3,163 thousand) fall under Stage 1 in this hierarchy.
This resulted in the following net gains and losses for
the financial assets and liabilities, classified according to
categories:
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H. Contingent liabilities and
other financial commitments
As at 31 December 2012 liabilities under warranty
agreements exist in the amount of EUR 399 thousand
(previous year: EUR 273 thousand).
Other financial commitments are as follows:

2012
in '000 EUR
Loans and
Receivables
Available-for-Sale
(fair value)
Financial
Liabilities
measured at cost

Interest

2

0

– 9,803

ImpairOther net
ment gains/losses

– 734

0

0

842

29

10,504

Total

110

29

701

Due in
2018 or
later

Total

6,430

1,630

11,201

12,190

28,422

9,875

50,487

499

243

91

833

2,700

3,900

800

7,400

18,530

38,995

12,396

69,921

2011
in '000 EUR

Due in
Due in
2012 2013 – 2016

Due in
2017 or
later

Total

Accounts payable
under lease arrangements with
third parties

2,811

4,568

1,323

8,702

Other contractual
arrangements with
third parties

11,381

25,313

10,137

46,831

685

0

0

685

2,600

6,000

800

9,400

17,477

35,881

12,260

65,618

2012
in '000 EUR

Due in
Due in
2013 2014 – 2017

Accounts payable
under lease
arrangements
with third parties

3,141

Other contractual
arrangements
with third parties
Ongoing investment projects

2011
in '000 EUR

Interest

ImpairOther net
ment gains/losses

Supply contracts
Total
Total

Loans and
Receivables
Available-for-Sale
(fair value)
Financial
Liabilities
measured at cost

26

– 1,007

102

–879

0

0

30

30

–10,184

0

25,623

15,439

Impairment of the "Loans and Receivables" relates to
the allocation to specific valuation allowance for trade
accounts receivable. The other net gains and losses
include income from the receipt of derecognized accounts
receivable and from the reversal of specific valuation allowances, expenses from derecognized accounts receivable,
and gains and losses from currency translation.
The other net gains and losses recognized in the category "Available-for-Sale – measured at fair value" include
income from investments in securities and the unrealized
changes in value recognized in equity.
Income from derecognized liabilities, expenses from measurement of foreign currency loans on the closing date and
income from realized waivers of repayment are recognized
under the other net gains and losses of "Financial Liabilities
measured at cost".

RZ_ALNO_13001_GB_2012_Inhalt_final_ENG.indd 125

Ongoing investment projects
Supply contracts
Total

Rental and leasing agreements with third parties primarily
concern leased vehicles and factory and office equipment.
The other contractual agreements with third parties concern maintenance, service and power supply contracts.
Ongoing investment projects in the amount of EUR 833
thousand (previous year: EUR 685 thousand) relate to intangible assets totalling EUR 15 thousand and property, plant
and equipment totalling EUR 818 thousand.
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I. Related persons and
companies
Associated persons and companies are defined as persons or business entities which can be controlled by the
reporting company, insofar as they are not already included
in the consolidated financial statements as consolidated
companies, or which can directly or indirectly exercise
control over the reporting company.
Business relations are as follows:

Persons concerned

Major shareholders

Joint ventures

Other related companies

2012
in '000 EUR

2011
in '000 EUR

2012
in '000 EUR

2011
in '000 EUR

2012
in '000 EUR

2011
in '000 EUR

75,846

84,725

0

0

24

371

Interest expense

3,231

3,188

0

0

1,707

116

Interest received

0

0

0

0

0

0

Other expense

8

3

0

0

416

3,054

Other income

0

0

0

0

0

25,000

Business relationship
Purchased goods and services

Financial accounts receivable and
trade accounts receivable
Financial liabilities
Trade accounts payable and
other liabilities

Interest rate

0

0

0

249

0

0

2,841

389

0

0

8,525

29,009

70,172

24,992

0

0

53

18

6.5% p. a.

6.5% p.a.
plus 3.5%
risk premium

6.5% or
9% or
Euribor +9%

6.5% or 9% or
Euribor +9%

Major shareholders with whom business relations are
directly maintained are: Küchen Holding GmbH, Munich
(parent company until 30 January 2012), IRE Beteiligungs
GmbH, Stuttgart, and Whirlpool Germany GmbH, Stuttgart, as well as indirectly: RCG International Opportunities
S.à r.l., Luxemburg, Cognis S.à r.l., Luxemburg, Bauknecht
Hausgeräte GmbH, Stuttgart, and Whirlpool Corporation,
Wilmington, Delaware, USA.
The joint venture concerned in the previous year was
ALNO Middle East.
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0%

3%

The other related companies with which business relations
exist comprise Comco Holding AG, Nidau, Switzerland,
Comco Finanz AG, Nidau, Switzerland, Comco Management GmbH, Stuttgart, Max Müller + Partner AG, Biel,
Switzerland, and Ludmilla and Max Müller, Magglingen,
Switzerland.
The figure reported for purchased goods and services
essentially relates to the contract for delivery between
ALNO AG and Bauknecht Hausgeräte GmbH, Stuttgart.
This contract governs the supply of electrical appliances
to the ALNO Group and was concluded subject to standard market conditions. The contract for delivery runs until
30 November 2015 and also includes an interest-bearing
delinquency schedule on which interest is charged at a
customary market rate of 6.5% p.a.
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Küchen Holding GmbH charged fees totalling EUR 150
thousand (previous year: EUR 300 thousand) for consulting services within the framework of its service contract.
EUR 5 thousand (previous year: EUR 3 thousand) were
additionally charged for travel expenses of a shareholder
of Küchen Holding GmbH.
In early January 2012, the major shareholder Küchen Holding GmbH waived repayment of EUR 25,000 thousand.
This has been recognized outside profit or loss in the accumulated net income.
Travel expenses and telecommunications charges in the
amount of EUR 36 thousand were invoiced by Comco
Holding AG, Nidau, Switzerland. Comco Holding AG and
Ludmilla and Max Müller also charged out travel expenses
in the amount of EUR 34 thousand. Comco Finanz AG,
Nidau, Switzerland, received EUR 18 thousand for rents
and EUR 20 thousand for other expenses. Comco Holding
AG, Nidau, Switzerland, received EUR 144 thousand for
the provision of personnel. Remuneration of the Supervisory Board of ALNO (Switzerland) AG, Nidau, Switzerland,
is accounted for by Comco Holding AG, Nidau, Switzerland, as a corporate borrowing in the amount of EUR 164
thousand. Comco Management GmbH, Stuttgart, received
a total of EUR 24 thousand for consulting services provided. All the above expenses and services were charged
at customary market rates.
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J. Supervisory Board and
Board of Management
Members of the SUPERVISORY BOARD:

Shareholder representatives:
•

Henning Giesecke, Zell (chairman)

Managing director of GSW Capital Management GmbH,
Munich
Managing director of HBconbet GmbH, Zell
•

Dr. oec. HSG Marc Bitzer, Stevensville, USA
(as from 27 November 2012)
President Whirlpool Corporation, Benton Harbor/MI, USA

•

Dr. oec. Jürgen Diegruber, Gräfelfing

Managing director of German Capital GmbH, Munich
Partner in Partners Group AG, Baar-Zug, Switzerland
Managing director of Partners Group (Deutschland)
GmbH, Munich
Managing director and shareholder of
Imacon GmbH, Munich
Managing director and shareholder of
GiVermögensverwaltungs GbR, Munich
Managing director and shareholder of German Capital
Partners GbR, Munich
Managing director and shareholder of
Germanincubator Erste Beteiligungs mbH, Munich
(until 23 January 2013)
Managing director and shareholder of
Felicitas GmbH, Munich (until 1 March 2013)

At the end of 2011, Comco Holding AG, Nidau, Switzerland, granted the ALNO Group loans which were valued at
EUR 8,525 thousand as at 31 December 2012. These run
until the end of April 2013, as at the balance sheet date.
Interest in the amount of 6.5% p.a. plus a once-only risk
premium of 3.5% in the amount of EUR 1,707 thousand
became due for these loans in 2012.
•

Anton Walther, Sulzbach/Taunus

Lawyer, chartered accountant, tax consultant

Business transactions and the emoluments of corporate
officers are listed in Section J.
•

Ruth Falise-Grauer, Geneva, Switzerland
Freelance industrial and interior designer

•

Norbert J. Orth, Monaco, Monaco

Investor
•

Werner Devinck, Knokke-Heist, Belgium

(until 2 November 2012)
Vice President Strategic Business Initiatives Whirlpool
Europe s.r.l., Comerio, Italy
Managing director of Bauknecht Hausgeräte GmbH,
Stuttgart (until 20 June 2012)
Managing director of Whirlpool Austria GmbH,
Wiener Neudorf, Austria
Managing director of IRE Beteiligungs GmbH, Stuttgart
(until 4 July 2012)
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Employee representatives:
•

Rudolf Wisser, Messkirch (vice-chairman)
Freed for full-time works council activity at ALNO AG,
Pfullendorf

•

Jörg Kespohl, Löhne

•

Dr. oec. Jürgen Diegruber, Gräfelfing
President of the Supervisory Board of Caldergroup
Swiss AG, St. Gallen, Switzerland
Director of Calder Finco UK Ltd, Chester,
United Kingdom
Chairman of the Shareholder Committee, Milano
Investments S.à r.L., Esch-sur-Alzette, Luxemburg
Member of the Supervisory Board of Leclanché S.A.,
Yverdon-les-Bains, Switzerland (until 16 April 2012)
Chairman of the Advisory Board of Küchen Holding
GmbH, Munich
Member – Board of Directors, Calder Group Limited,
Chester, United Kingdom

•

Norbert J. Orth, Monaco, Monaco
Member – Board of Directors Frieden Ltd, Thun,
Switzerland
Vice President Smaragd AG, Thun, Switzerland

•

Werner Devinck, Knokke-Heist, Belgium

Commercial clerk at Gustav Wellmann GmbH & Co. KG,
Enger
•

Gerhard Meyer, Brilon

Member of the works council at Impuls Küchen GmbH,
Brilon
Further mandates held by members of the Supervisory Board
in Supervisory Boards and other controlling bodies within
the meaning of Section 125 (1), fifth sentence, of the Stock
Companies Act (AktG):
•

Henning Giesecke, Zell

Member of the Supervisory Board of Rothenberger AG,
Kelkheim
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Endurance Capital AG,
Munich (as from 23 January 2013 Vice-chairman of the
Supervisory Board)
Member of the Executive Board of Erste Abwicklungsanstalt,
Düsseldorf
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Valovis Bank, Essen
(as from 21 January 2013 Vice-chairman of the
Supervisory Board)
Member of the Supervisory Board of
Maillefer International Oy, Helsinki, Finland
Member of the Supervisory Board of Maillefer SA Ecublens,
Switzerland
Member of the Supervisory Board of Maillefer Extrusion Oy,
Helsinki, Finland
•

Dr. oec. HSG Marc Bitzer, Stevensville, USA
Member of the Supervisory Board of Simex Trading AG,
Appenzell, Switzerland
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Member of the Supervisory Board, Gedelegeerd
Bestuurder Whirlpool Benelux N.V.,
Strombeek-Bever, Belgium
Member of the Supervisory Board, Bestuurder
Whirlpool Nederland B.V., Breda, Netherlands
Member of the Supervisory Board, Bauknecht AG
Switzerland, Lenzburg, Switzerland
For their activities for the Supervisory Board, the members
of the Supervisory Board received total remuneration in the
amount of EUR 228 thousand in the financial year 2012
(previous year: EUR 230 thousand).
As in the previous year, members of the Supervisory
Board did not receive any fees for consulting services.
As at 31 December 2012 the members of the Supervisory
Board held a total of 325,333 (previous year: 106,666)
no-par-value shares.
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MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT:

•

Max Müller, Magglingen/Switzerland (CEO)

•

Ipek Demirtas, Überlingen (CFO)

•

Elmar Duffner, Constance (COO)

•

Ralph Bestgen, Hagen (CSO)

•

Christoph Fughe, Bad Salzuflen (Director Sales Germany)

(until 29 February 2012)
Further mandates held by members of the Board of
Management in Supervisory Boards and other controlling bodies within the meaning of Section 125 (1), fifth
sentence, of the Stock Companies Act (AktG):
•

Max Müller, Magglingen/Switzerland

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of ALNO (Schweiz) AG,
Nidau, Switzerland
Director of ALNO UK Ltd. Dewsbury, United Kingdom
Director of ALNO Middle East FZCO, Dubai, UAE
President of the Supervisory Board of Comco Holding AG,
Nidau, Switzerland
Member of the Supervisory Board of Comco Finanz AG,
Nidau, Switzerland
Director of Comco Fashion Ltd.,
Hong Kong, People's Republic of China
President of the Supervisory Board of Starlet Investment AG,
Nidau, Switzerland
Member of the Supervisory Board of Max Müller +
Partner AG, Biel, Switzerland
Director of East West Finance Ltd.,
Jersey, Channel Islands
President of the Supervisory Board of Schaerer Mayfield
Holding AG, Nidau, Switzerland
Member of the Supervisory Board of Renishaw Mayfield AG,
Nyon, Switzerland
President of the Supervisory Board of Smaragd Holding AG,
Thun, Switzerland
Member of the Supervisory Board of Frieden
Creative Design AG, Thun, Switzerland
Administrator of La Boutique Suisse Distribution S.r.l.,
Bucharest, Romania
Administrator of Helvetansa S.r.l., Bucharest, Romania
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Elmar Duffner, Osnabrück

Member of the Economic Advisory Board, Cologne
Trade Fair and Exhibition Centre (Messe Köln),
Cologne (advisory)
President of the German Furniture Industry Association
(Verband der Deutschen Möbelindustrie e. V.),
Bad Honnef (honorary post)
Member of the Executive Board "Arbeitsgemeinschaft
Die Moderne Küche e. V.", Mannheim (honorary post)
Chairman of the German woodworking and plastics
processing industries (Verbände der Holzindustrie
und Kunststoffverarbeitung Westfalen-Lippe e. V.),
Herford

(as from 1 February 2013)
•

|

•

Ralph Bestgen, Hagen
Member of the Advisory Board of Severin Elektrogeräte
GmbH, Sundern

As at the balance sheet date, the active members of the
Board of Management held 3,730,050 (previous year:
545,507) no-par-value shares.

REMUNER ATION REPORT

Responsibility, objective and structure of remuneration for
the Board of Management
The Supervisory Board is responsible for defining the structure
and amount of remuneration for the Board of Management of
ALNO AG. The structure of the remuneration system for the
Board of Management is also regularly discussed and reviewed
by the Supervisory Board.
The purpose of the system of remuneration for the Board of
Management is to reasonably compensate the members of the
Board of Management in accordance with their activities and
responsibilities while at the same time clearly and directly taking
account of the Board members' joint and personal performance
as well as that of the company through a high level of variability.
To this end, the remuneration system includes both a fixed
basic element and a variable risk-like element as incentive for
the medium and long term. In order to ensure that the Board
members' remuneration is both competitive and reasonable,
this structure, the individual components and the complete
remuneration are reviewed each year.
The remuneration paid to the Board of Management in 2012
therefore comprised the following elements as outlined in detail
below.
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The fixed basic remuneration including non-cash emoluments is paid out in twelve monthly instalments and is
based on each Board member's area of responsibility.

Substantial commitments to a member of the Board
of Management following premature termination of his
service

The variable element based on the company's medium and
long-term development is always based on consolidated
revenues, operational Group EBITDA and the consolidated
contribution margin, as well as on individual agreements
on targets. The variable element is paid out in equal instalments in 2013, 2014 and 2015 following appropriation of
the profit by the Annual General Meeting.

A termination payment was agreed for 2012 with the Board
member Mr. Christoph Fughe in the event of premature
termination of his service contract. The service contract
concluded with Mr. Fughe was terminated prematurely
as per 31 May 2012 and a termination payment in the
amount of EUR 260 thousand remitted in lieu of all the
remuneration payable had the contract remained in force.
After retiring from the Board of Management, Mr. Fughe
continued to serve the company in an advisory capacity and for special tasks until 31 May 2012. During this
time, he received remuneration in the amount of EUR 62
thousand.

Amount of remuneration paid to the Board of
Management in 2012
The following figures include payments promised or paid
to individual Board members by ALNO AG in conjunction
with their respective activities as a member of the Board of
Management. Total emoluments for the Board of Management comprise the sum of all remuneration paid in cash
and all non-cash benefits. The latter essentially comprise
the provision of company cars. EUR 1,642 thousand
(previous year: EUR 1,822 thousand) were expensed altogether in 2012. Of this total, the fixed element unrelated to
performance accounted for EUR 1,102 thousand (previous
year: EUR 1,163 thousand) and the performance-related
variable element in the nature of a medium-term incentive
payment accounted for EUR 540 thousand (previous year:
EUR 659 thousand).
Of the total expensed in 2012, Mr. Müller received EUR
774 thousand (previous year: EUR 309 thousand), of
which EUR 420 thousand (previous year: EUR 309 thousand) comprised fixed remuneration elements and EUR
354 thousand (previous year: EUR 0 thousand) comprised
variable remuneration elements. Ms. Demirtas received
EUR 376 thousand (previous year: EUR 115 thousand), of
which EUR 255 thousand (previous year: EUR 115 thousand) comprised fixed remuneration elements and EUR
121 thousand (previous year: EUR 0 thousand) comprised
variable remuneration elements. Mr. Duffner received
EUR 450 thousand (previous year: EUR 85 thousand), of
which EUR 385 thousand (previous year: EUR 64 thousand) comprised fixed remuneration elements and EUR
65 thousand (previous year: EUR 21 thousand) comprised
variable remuneration elements. Prior to his retirement on
29 February 2012, Mr. Fughe received EUR 42 thousand
(previous year: EUR 157 thousand) as fixed remuneration.
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Due to the ongoing lawsuit with Mr. Deisel in conjunction
with his dismissal, a provision in the amount of EUR 1,600
thousand was formed in 2011 in accordance with the settlement proposed by Düsseldorf Regional Court to cover
all expected claims (outstanding salary, bonus, termination
payment, etc.). In accordance with the provisional judgement of 10 May 2012 by Düsseldorf Regional Court, a
total of EUR 395 thousand was paid out to Mr. Deisel in
2012 and recognized outside profit or loss as a depletion
of the provision. Due to the positive assessment of the
ongoing lawsuit, the remaining provision in the amount
of EUR 1,205 thousand was reversed as at 31 December
2012 and recognized as income.
For the period up to expiration of his contract (31 May
2012), Mr. Jörg Artmann received fixed remuneration in
the amount of EUR 112 thousand, the prorated RE-IPO
bonus of EUR 98 thousand and the prorated bonus for
2011 and 2012 totalling EUR 49 thousand in 2012. These
sums were recognized outside profit or loss as depletion
of the provision formed in previous years.

Remuneration of former members of the Board
of Management of ALNO AG and their surviving
dependants
Emoluments paid to former members of the Board of
Management of ALNO AG and their surviving dependants
totalled EUR 551 thousand in the financial year (previous
year: EUR 527 thousand). Provisions for pension commitments for former members of the Board of Management and their surviving dependants totalled EUR 8,892
thousand in 2012 (previous year: EUR 7,858 thousand).
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Provision for retirement benefi ts
A defined-contribution retirement benefit arrangement
including benefits for surviving dependants was agreed for
Mr. Deisel in October 2010 for the duration of his service
to the company until 30 September 2011, with benefits
becoming due on reaching the age limit of 60 years or
on occurrence of disability or death. Further contributions were not paid into this scheme for the financial year
2012 (previous year: EUR 300 thousand). Disposal of the
account prior to occurrence of an event triggering benefits
is excluded as a matter of principle. There are no further
pension commitments or similar retirement benefit obligations for active members of the Board of Management in
2012.

K. Companies utilizing the
exemption pursuant to
Sections 264 (3) and
264 b of the German
Commercial Code (HGB)

SHAREHOLDINGS
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L. Shareholdings
Share of
capital in %

Name and head office
SHARES HELD IN SUBSIDIARIES

ALNO Germany
Impuls Küchen GmbH, Brilon

100

pino Küchen GmbH, Coswig (Anhalt)

100

Zweitmarkenholding Impuls Pino GmbH,
Pfullendorf

100

Gustav Wellmann GmbH & Co. KG, Enger

100

Casawell Service GmbH, Enger

100

ALNO Trading GmbH, Enger

100

Grundstücksverwaltungsgesellschaft
tielsa Küchen GmbH & Co. KG, Enger

100

Wellmann Bauteile GmbH, Enger

100

ALNO International GmbH, Pfullendorf

100

logismo Möbellogistik Spedition S.I.G. GmbH,
Pfullendorf

100

logismo Möbellogistik Spedition H.S.K. GmbH,
Brilon

100

logismo Möbellogistik Spedition A.Z.E. GmbH,
Coswig (Anhalt)

100

tielsa GmbH, Pfullendorf

The subsidiaries Impuls Küchen GmbH, Brilon, pino
Küchen GmbH, Coswig (Anhalt), Zweitmarkenholding Impuls Pino GmbH, Pfullendorf, ALNO International
GmbH, Pfullendorf, Gustav Wellmann GmbH & Co. KG,
Enger, and the property management company tielsa
Küchen GmbH & Co. KG, Enger, have made use of the
reliefs pursuant to Section 264 (3) and Section 264 b of the
German Commercial Code (HGB). The consolidated
financial statements and Group management report are
published in the electronic Federal Gazette.

|

1

100

ALNO abroad
ALNO (Switzerland) AG, Nidau/Switzerland

100

ALNO U.K. Ltd, Dewsbury/United Kingdom

100

Built-In Living Limited, Sevenoaks/United Kingdom

100

Built-In Kitchens Limited, Sevenoaks/United
Kingdom

100

ALNO USA Corporation, New York/USA

100

ALNO Manhattan LLC, New York/USA

1

ALNO Middle East FZCO, Dubai/UAE
A’Flair Habitat, Haguenau/France1

100
85
100

SHARES HELD IN JOINT VENTURES:

mkc Mega Küchencenter Rothrist AG,
Rothrist/Switzerland1

50

OTHER PARTICIPATING INTERESTS:

ALNO China Holding Limited, Hong Kong/China1
1
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M. Auditors' fees

N. Events after the closing date

The following fees were expensed for the auditors of the
consolidated financial statements:

REPORT ON SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

in '000 EUR

2012

2011

Audit of financial statements

407

338

Other consulting services

368

97

Tax consulting services

166

79

5

4

946

518

Other services
Total

The item Audit encompasses fees for the statutory final
audit of the separate and consolidated financial statements
of ALNO AG as at 31 December 2012, as well as for checking the report on controlled companies in accordance with
Section 313 of the Stock Companies Act (AktG) for the
period 1 to 30 January 2012 in the total amount of EUR
385 thousand, as well as additional charges for auditing
the separate and consolidated financial statements of the
company of ALNO AG as at 31 December 2011 in the
amount of EUR 22 thousand.
In 2012, other consulting services essentially comprise
expenses associated with preparing a Comfort Letter
in conjunction with the capital increase undertaken in
November 2012. In the previous year, other consulting
services comprised expenses associated with preparing
a Comfort Letter in conjunction with the capital increase
originally planned for autumn 2010 but ultimately postponed until 2011.
Tax consulting costs comprise the fees charged for
ongoing tax consulting activities.
Other services relate to consulting services required to
obtain certification.
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On 13 January 2013, Ralph Bestgen was appointed
member of the Board of Management effective 1 February 2013, with responsibility for sales. Mr. Bestgen was a
long-standing member of the management of Bauknecht
Hausgeräte GmbH, Stuttgart, most recently serving as
chairman of the management.
By resolution of 21 February and 10 April 2013, Manfred
Scholz was appointed member of the Board of Management effective 29 April 2013, with responsibility for production, purchasing and logistics. Mr. Scholz can look back
on many years of international management experience,
as well as extensive know-how in the field of lean company management and improving supply chain processes.
From 2000 onwards, he worked for the American Steelcase Group in Rosenheim, most recently as Vice President
Operations EMEA.
The Board of Management of ALNO AG currently comprises Max Müller (Chief Executive Officer), Ipek Demirtas
(CFO), Elmar Duffner (COO) and Ralph Bestgen (CSO),
as well as Manfred Scholz (COO) from 29 April 2013
onwards.
AGREEMENT RE ACHED WITH METALWORKERS UNION
(IG METALL) AT THE ENGER LOCATION

ALNO AG has reached a long-term agreement with the
Metalworkers Union (IG Metall) safeguarding jobs at the
Enger plant of Gustav Wellmann GmbH & Co. KG in Westphalia. These measures conclude the personnel measures
to be undertaken by the ALNO Group in conjunction with
the restructuring. The overall agreement reached includes
a collective agreement for the company, a settlement of
conflicting interests and social plan, as well as the settingup of a transfer company. In July 2012, the district leadership of the Metalworkers Union in Baden-Württemberg and
North Rhine-Westphalia agreed to a restructuring contribution as part of the financial and capitalization concept to
safeguard jobs in the long term.
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EXPANSION OF THE US PRESENCE

In the course of its expansion in the US market, ALNO AG
opened a new showroom in Miami, Florida, USA, in May
2013. Since early 2012, ALNO has been represented in
the USA through its own subsidiary and a company-owned
kitchen studio in New York.
DISTINCTIONS

ALNOSTAR CERA won the German Design Council's
internationally acclaimed "Interior Innovation Award
– Selection 2013" for its special design quality. Innovative ideas and outstanding design are rewarded by the
German Design Council with its "Interior Innovation
Award". The highly innovative nature of VINTUCINA ALNOSPLIT/ALNOVETRINA was distinguished in the category
"Winner 2013".
Impuls Küchen GmbH, Brilon, was awarded the certificate "Family-friendly company" ("Familienfreundliches
Unternehmen") by the economic development company
"Wirtschaftsförderungsgesellschaft Hochsauerlandkreis".
The distinction rewards the kitchen manufacturer's manifold activities to reconcile private and working life at its
location in Brilon.
ALNO AG is one of Germany's 15 top employers in the
consumer goods sector. According to an independent
study "Best employers" undertaken by the news journal
FOCUS in collaboration with the career network XING,
ALNO is the undisputed No. 1 among manufacturers of
kitchen furniture. Around 13,000 employees in a total of
17 different sectors were interviewed for this study, which
was recently published. They were asked to assess such
categories as development opportunities, salary, job and
working hours. The survey included employees of all age
groups, sectors and hierarchy levels.
CAPITALIZ ATION AND FINANCIAL CONCEPT 2013
Bond issue

To finance the company's further strategy, the Board of
Management of ALNO AG decided to issue a so-called
"SME bond" on the Entry Standard of the German Stock
Exchange in Frankfurt. The bond has a volume of up to
EUR 45 million and a term of five years. A cash inflow is
expected up to the end of May 2013.
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Following initial talks with potential investors, the Board
of Management is confident that the issue can be placed
completely. The proceeds of the issue will be used, among
other things, to implement the planned growth strategy,
especially in other countries. Selective company acquisitions are planned in Germany and abroad, in addition to
organic growth. The proceeds of the issue will also be
used to finance planned investments in property, plant
and equipment, as well as current assets, and to reduce
overdue trade liabilities.
Moratorium by Comco Holding AG

In an agreement dated 21 December 2012 and supplement dated 28 January 2013, the company Comco Holding
AG, Nidau/Switzerland, agreed to defer repayment by the
ALNO Group of overdue accounts payable in the amount of
EUR 8.5 million as at the closing date until 30 April 2013.
In the first quarter of 2013, Comco Holding AG granted
ALNO AG four further loans totalling EUR 4.8 million with
a fixed term until 30 April 2013 and an interest rate of
6.5% p.a. to enhance liquidity. As at 31 March 2013, the
ALNO Group owed Comco Holding AG a total of EUR 13.3
million in loans granted and deferred accounts receivable.
The accounts payable to Comco Holding AG were
rescheduled under the agreement outlined below on the
rescheduling of accounts payable dated 11 April 2013.
Moratorium by Bauknecht Hausgeräte GmbH

In an agreement dated 18 December 2012 and supplement dated 28 January 2013, the company Bauknecht
Hausgeräte GmbH, Stuttgart, promised to defer repayment by the ALNO Group of the overdue trade accounts
payable in force as at the closing date. The accounts
payable which were covered by this moratorium totalled
a maximum of EUR 40.8 million as at 28 February 2013,
and were successively reduced to EUR 37.8 million as at
1 March 2013 and EUR 32.8 million as at 1 April 2013.
Deferral of the total EUR 32.8 million outstanding and due
was subsequently agreed until 30 April 2013.
This moratorium was superseded by the following agreement on the rescheduling of accounts payable dated
11 April 2013
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Agreement on the rescheduling of accounts payable

Factoring agreement, ALNO UK

Under this agreement, the following points were agreed
by and between Bauknecht Hausgeräte GmbH, Stuttgart,
Comco Holding AG, Nidau/Switzerland and the ALNO
Group:

Under an agreement dated 8 April 2013, the company
Centric SPV 1 Limited, Surrey/United Kingdom, granted
the subsidiary ALNO UK Ltd., Dewsbury/United Kingdom,
a factoring line of up to GBP 4.0 million for a term of
36 months.

(1) Bauknecht Hausgeräte GmbH grants ALNO AG a loan
in the amount of EUR 30.0 million. This loan is granted
in the form of rescheduling existing, overdue liabilities of
the ALNO Group for deliveries by Bauknecht Hausgeräte
GmbH. The loan has a fixed term until 30 June 2017 and
accrues interest at a rate of 6.5% p.a. Of this loan, EUR
10.0 million are due for repayment on 30 September 2014.
The right to ordinary termination of the loan agreement
has been excluded. However, Bauknecht Hausgeräte
GmbH can terminate the loan agreement prematurely if
the delivery agreement with the ALNO Group is terminated
for good cause or if ALNO AG is not able to realize gross
proceeds of at least EUR 40.0 million from the bond issue
by 30 May 2013.
In addition, Bauknecht Hausgeräte GmbH will grant ALNO
AG up to EUR 10.0 million to bolster liquidity until 30 April
2013, as well as up to EUR 5.0 million from 1 May to
1 July 2013. At the same time, Bauknecht Hausgeräte
GmbH and ALNO AG agreed to reduce the time allowed
for payment under the delivery agreement with Bauknecht
to the market's customary period of 60 days, backdated
to 15 March 2013.
(2) Comco Holding AG grants ALNO AG a loan in the
amount of EUR 3.7 million, as well as a loan of EUR 4.8
million for Wellmann KG. These new loans consequently
replace the existing accounts payable to Comco Holding
AG by ALNO AG and Wellmann KG. The loans have been
granted with a term of one year until 11 April 2014 and
accrue interest at a rate of 6.5% p.a. Comco Holding AG's
right to ordinary termination of the loan agreements has
been excluded.
In addition, the fixed terms of the loans granted to ALNO
AG by Comco Holding in the first quarter of 2013 and
totalling EUR 4.8 million have been extended. The loans
can be terminated with 4 weeks' notice effective at the
end of a month, but not earlier than 31 December 2013.
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Other financing activities

The capitalization and financial concept 2013 also provides
for new credit lines. The Board of Management presumes
that, following implementation of the bond issue with a
minimum volume of EUR 40.0 million as outlined above,
new credit lines in the amount of EUR 15.0 million can be
agreed by the end of May 2013 with banks previously not
involved in the financing.
It is also planned to increase the ALNO Group's liquidity by
selling accounts receivable by ALNO AG in the amount of
roughly EUR 7.0 million which were previously not included
in the factoring.
DEVELOPMENT OF SALES AND NEW ORDERS,
FIRST QUARTER OF 2013

Sales revenue in the first quarter of 2013 remained below
the previous year's level. This trend is in line with the corporate planning, which provides for a focus on sales with
high margins. However, orders received fell short of the
planned level in the first quarter of 2013. The company still
expects to meet the planned sales targets for the financial
year 2013, with higher revenues than in the previous year.
GOING CONCERN

Continuation of the business activities of ALNO AG and
the ALNO Group presupposes that the aforementioned
capitalization and financial concept for 2013, i.e. issuance
of a bond with a volume of at least EUR 40.0 million, taking
out new credit lines in the amount of EUR 15.0 million
and increasing the ALNO Group's factoring volume with
a liquidity effect of roughly EUR 7.0 million, can be implemented in full and in good time, as planned, and that strict
liquidity management continues to apply. The assumptions made in corporate planning, particularly with regard
to sales and profit targets, must also apply as planned.
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D E C L A R AT I O N O F C O M P L I A N C E P U R S U A N T TO S E C T I O N 161 O F T H E S TO C K C O M PA N I E S A C T ( A K TG )

O. Declaration of compliance
pursuant to Section 161
of the Stock Companies
Act (AktG)
The declaration of compliance with the recommendations
of the "Government Commission on the German Corporate
Governance Code" and Section 161 of the Stock Companies Act (AktG) was reviewed and re-issued by the Board
of Management and Supervisory Board on 2 October 2012.
The declaration is permanently accessible to shareholders
on the company's website and reprinted in the singleentity and group management report 2012.
In accordance with Section 3.10 of the German Corporate
Governance Code, the Board of Management and Supervisory Board of ALNO AG report on the ALNO Group's
corporate governance in the Annual Report for the financial
year ending 31 December 2012. Information on the basic
principles of the system of remuneration for the Board
of Management can be found in Section J. "Supervisory
Board and Board of Management".
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P. Earnings per share
The earnings per share are obtained by dividing the net
consolidated income accruing to the shareholders by a
weighted number of issued shares. There was no diluting
effect due to so-called potential shares in either the year
under review or the previous year.

in '000 EUR
Group income for the period
Minority shares
Number of shares in thousands
(weighted average)
Earnings per share in EUR

2012

2011

– 1,420

– 25,561

0

0

30,904

24,617

– 0.05

– 1.04

Pfullendorf, 15 April 2013
ALNO Aktiengesellschaft

Board of Management

MAX MÜLLER
Chief Executive Officer of ALNO AG

IPEK DEMIRTAS
Chief Financial Officer

ELMAR DUFFNER
Chief Operations Officer

RALPH BESTGEN
Chief Sales Officer
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Auditor's report
We have audited the consolidated financial statements
prepared by ALNO Aktiengesellschaft, Pfullendorf, which
comprise the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, balance sheet, cash flow statement,
statement of changes in equity and the notes to the
consolidated financial statements, as well as the singleentity and group management report, for the financial year
from 1 January to 31 December 2012. The company's
statutory representatives are responsible for preparing the
consolidated financial statements and Group management report in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, as adopted by the EU, and the
additional requirements of German commercial law pursuant to Section 315a (1) of the German Commercial
Code (HGB). Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Section 317
of the German Commercial Code (HGB) and German generally accepted standards for auditing financial statements
promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer (Institute
of Public Auditors in Germany) (IDW.) We are therefore required to plan and perform the audit in such a way that
errors and violations significantly affecting presentation of
the company's net assets, financial position and results
of operations as conveyed by the consolidated financial
statements in compliance with the applicable accounting
standards and by the Group management report can be
detected with reasonable assurance. Knowledge of the
Group's business activities, its economic and legal environment and expectations in respect of possible misstatements have been taken into account when defining the
audit procedures. The effectiveness of the internal control
system relevant for accounting and evidence supporting
the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
and Group management report is primarily assessed on
the basis of spot checks during the audit. The audit also
includes evaluating the annual financial statements of the
companies included in the consolidated financial statements, the defined scope of consolidation, the recognition
and consolidation principles applied and the main accounting estimates made by the Group's statutory representatives, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements and Group management
report. We are of the opinion that our audit provides a
sufficiently sound basis for our evaluation.

|

AUDITOR'S REPORT

In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the consolidated financial statements comply with the International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU, and
the additional requirements of German commercial law
pursuant to Section 315a (1) of the German Commercial
Code (HGB) and give a true and fair view of the Group's
net assets, financial position and results of operations. The
Group management report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements, as a whole provides a suitable
view of the Group’s position and suitably presents the
opportunities and risks of future development.
Without restricting this assessment, attention is also drawn
to the information in the Group management report, which
has been combined with the separate management report
for the company. In the sections "Events after the reporting
period" and "Opportunity and risk report", it states that
continuation of the business activities of the ALNO Group
presupposes that the capitalization and financial concept outlined for 2013 in the Group management report,
i.e. issuance of a bond with a volume of at least
EUR 40.0 million, taking out new credit lines in the amount
of EUR 15.0 million and increasing the ALNO Group's
factoring volume with a liquidity effect of roughly EUR 7.0
million, can be implemented in full and in good time, as
planned, and that strict liquidity management continues
to apply. The assumptions made in corporate planning,
particularly with regard to sales and profit targets, must
also apply as planned.
Ravensburg, 15 April 2013

Ernst & Young GmbH
Auditors

Nover

Prüsse

Auditor

Auditor

Our audit has not led to any reservations.

RZ_ALNO_13001_GB_2012_Inhalt_final_ENG.indd 138

19.06.13 13:46

C O N S O L I D AT E D F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

Declaration by the statutory
representatives of ALNO AG
IN COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 297 (2), FOURTH
SENTENCE, OF THE GERMAN COMMERCIAL CODE
(HGB), CONCERNING THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SINGLE-ENTIT Y AND GROUP
MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2012:

"We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and on
the basis of the accounting standards to be applied,
the consolidated financial statements convey a true and
fair picture of the Group's net assets, financial position
and results of operations, and that the Group management report presents the development of business and
the Group's position in such as way as to convey a true
and fair picture of actual conditions, and that it sets out
the essential opportunities and risks associated with the
Group's probable development."
Pfullendorf, 15 April 2013
ALNO Aktiengesellschaft

Board of Management

MAX MÜLLER
Chief Executive Officer of ALNO AG
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Legal note
This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements are not based on historical
events and facts. These statements are based on assumptions, forecasts and estimates of future developments by
the Board of Management. The assumptions, forecasts
and estimates concerned are based on all the information
currently available. However, the actual results may deviate from those presently expected if the assumed future
developments underlying the statements and estimates do
not materialize. Neither the Board of Management nor the
company can warrant that the forward-looking statements
will actually materialize. Both the Board of Management and
the company are under no obligation, above and beyond
their statutory obligations, to update any statements or to
bring them into line with future events and developments.
Neither in the Federal Republic of Germany nor in any
other country does this Annual Report and the information contained in it constitute either an offer to sell or a
request to buy or subscribe to securities held or issued
by ALNO AG. In the United States of America, shares in
ALNO AG may only be sold or offered after prior registration or, without such prior registration, on the basis of
an exception to the registration requirement pursuant to
the provisions of the US Securities Act of 1933 as most
recently amended. ALNO AG does not intend to realize a
public offering of shares in the United States. The Annual
Report of ALNO AG is published in German and English.
In the event of discrepancies between the two versions,
the German version shall prevail.

IPEK DEMIRTAS
Chief Financial Officer

ELMAR DUFFNER
Chief Operations Officer

RALPH BESTGEN
Chief Sales Officer
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Financial calendar 2013

30 APRIL 2013
Publication of the annual financial statements
2012
16 MAY 2013
Interim report on the 1st quarter 2013
26 JUNE 2013
Annual General Meeting
31 AUGUST 2013
Mid-year financial report 2013
14 NOVEMBER 2013
Interim report on the 3rd quarter 2013
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G RO U P F I N A N C I A L figur es

T h e A lno b ran ds

Publication data
The ALNO Group unites four distinctive individual brands under a common umbrella. Each brand successfully
addresses very different customer groups. Our brand portfolio has been revised in order to assure the Group's future
success. We consider it important to offer our customers and consumers innovative products through different sales
channels and in different price segments. The distinctions which we have won are an incentive spurring constant
further improvement.

simultaneously stands
for 85 years of tradition
and innovation. ALNO is
also the Group's premium brand. It combines top quality with
award-winning design.
Being made-to-measure, ALNO kitchens
offer the customer an
immense variety of
design options, including kitchens without
handles and kitchens
which appear to float,
as well as perfect
service.

is characterized by
variety, modern design
and flexibility when
planning the kitchen.
Simplicity, classic
modernity and individual
elegance are the focal
features. The new
generation of kitchens
from Wellmann covers
the trendy consumer
sector in the middle
to upper price ranges
and is characterized
by excellent value for
money.

is the brand for quick
kitchens which are
completely ready for
use, anywhere in the
country, within only a
few working days. The
brand offers a fresh,
attractively priced,
minimalist design with a
clear focus on logistics,
distribution and
punctuality. Impuls
covers the lower to
middle price ranges.

is the entry-level brand
with compact, allinclusive kitchens. The
brand is characterized
by a fresh, modern
and uncluttered design
with strong, striking
colours. Pino kitchens
concentrate on the RTA
and self-service markets
and cover the lower
price ranges.

Group financial figures (IFRS)

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

Consolidated income statement

PUBLISHER

Sales revenue

'000 EUR

446,258

452,810

467,297

493,373

511,204

Total operating revenues

‘000 EUR

456,452

459,962

472,366

496,109

525,443

EBITDA

‘000 EUR

13,959

5,204

986

17,272

19,266

EBIT

'000 EUR

877

– 10,698

– 11,118

– 22,914

– 921

EBT

'000 EUR

– 1,217

– 25,216

– 12,178

– 39,201

– 14,964

Consolidated net profit/loss

'000 EUR

– 1,420

– 25,561

– 13,084

– 38,964

– 22,638

EUR

– 0.05

– 1.04

– 0.78

– 2.46

– 1.44

Non-current assets

'000 EUR

89,213

86,455

86,598

85,295

109,921

Investments in property, plant and equipment

'000 EUR

12,997

16,660

15,220

15,117

10,585

Liquid assets

'000 EUR

5,402

2,243

3,041

2,857

3,174

Shareholders' equity

'000 EUR

– 7,462

– 73,344

– 69,722

– 71,132

– 36,964

Subscribed capital

'000 EUR

70,095

67,847

45,231

41,124

41,124

Total assets

'000 EUR

168,252

159,670

157,698

165,026

198,243

Cash flow from operating activities

'000 EUR

34,378

– 3,261

11,540

21,210

– 17,108

Cash flow from investment activities

'000 EUR

– 14,737

– 17,138

– 14,300

– 15,967

– 10,581

Cash flow from financing activities

'000 EUR

– 15,959

20,051

2,488

– 5,303

27,003

Change in cash and cash equivalents due to business activities

'000 EUR

3,682

– 348

– 272

– 60

-686

Employees as at 31 December

1,926

1,845

1,787

1,900

1,853

Year-average number of employees

1,856

1,806

1,840

1,885

2,010

Earnings per share (diluted and undiluted)
Consolidated balance sheet

Consolidated cash flow statement

Employees

Personnel expenses

'000 EUR

97,204

98,529

97,900

98,539

102,871

Personnel expenses per employee on average for the year

'000 EUR

52

55

53

52

51

Sales per employee on average for the year

'000 EUR

240

251

254

262

254
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